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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year").

In 2013, the Chinese pharmaceutical industry maintained steady growth in
production and sales. The massive reform in pharmaceutical and hygiene
systems by the Chinese government is considered as a key area of the
domestic reform, which will significantly influence domestic pharmaceutical
industry and relevant industries, as well as bring new strategic opportunities
for domestic pharmaceutical industry. Meanwhile, the continuous downward
trend in drug price, particularly medical insurance drugs, shall have certain
influence in the overall profit margin in the domestic pharmaceutical industry.

During the Year, the Group continuously strengthened and developed its
various pharmaceutical business including herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion and anti-tumor drugs and the research and development (“R&D")
of modern biological pharmaceuticals, as well as expand its purchase and sales
operation of medicines, healthcare foods and foods business through merger
and acquisition of Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”). These provided the short term, medium term
and long term direction of business expansion and new points of growth for
the Group's operation. During the Year, the Group has been dedicated to the
R&D of biological pharmaceuticals and chemosynthetic anti-tumor drugs and
the application of bio-technology in the fields of bioagriculture. The Group’s
first bioagriculture product will be industrialized soon.

The new GMP and GSP certification currently implemented by the
nation bring challenges as well as opportunities for pharmaceuticals and
healthcare products manufacturing enterprises and circulation enterprises.
During the Year and in the first quarter of 2014, Neptunus Fuyao and its
subsidiaries successfully completed the upgrade and enhancement of partial
existing production lines to meet the new GMP requirements (the “GMP
Enhancement”) according to the schedule. Relevant production lines and
forms of drugs produced has obtained the new GMP certificate. Meanwhile,
combining the experience gained in obtaining the new GMP certificate
and the Group’s current production condition, the Board expected that
the Group shall smoothly complete the GMP Enhancement and new GMP
certification of remaining production lines on schedule. With the new GMP
certificate, certain out-dated and unqualified production capacities in
the general domestic market are expected to be replaced, which will bring
positive impact on drugs and healthcare products manufacturing enterprises
that have already passed or will be able to pass the new GMP certification.
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Given the Group’s understanding on the current rapid development in the
pharmaceutical and healthcare industry and combined with the Group’s R&D
advantages and production criteria, the Group has decided to focus on the
R&D and industrialization of in-vitro diagnostic reagents as its new direction
of development in the near-mid term. Upon investigation and research, initial
R&D and negotiation in 2013, the Group has dedicated itself in the R&D and
industrialization of in-vitro diagnostic reagents through collaboration in early
2014.

Looking forward to 2014, the Group will tap on the opportunities in the
pharmaceutical and healthcare industry brought by the national policies,
while also striving to eliminate the impact of unfavourable conditions, so as
to ensure continuous growth of current production of pharmaceuticals and
healthcare products and circulation business. Meanwhile, the Group will
maintain its on-going input in R&D projects with a view to rapidly launch
new products in the market. The Board believes the business of the Group is
developing well and is confident about the business prospects of the Group.

On behalf of the Company and the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and staff for their
continuing support to and trust in the Group.

Zhang Feng
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in various
pharmaceutical businesses such as herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion and anti-tumor drugs, the research and development (“R&D")
of modern biological pharmaceuticals and purchase and sales of medicines,
healthcare foods and foods business (“Purchase and Sales of Medicines
and Healthcare Foods Business”). Among which, businesses such as
herbal medicine, generic drugs, transfusion and anti-tumor drugs were
operated through Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Neptunus Fuyao”) and its subsidiaries while the industrialization
of biological technology products was operated by our subsidiary, Jiangsu
Neptunus Bio-pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Jiangsu Neptunus”),
Purchase and Sales of Medicines and Healthcare Foods Business was mainly
operated by our subsidiary, Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”). Meanwhile, the Company
dedicated itself to the R&D of biological pharmaceuticals and expanded the
scale of the R&D in the fields of chemosynthetic anti-tumor drugs and the
application of bio-technology in the fields of bioagriculture. Meanwhile,
the Group has dedicated itself in the R&D and industrialization of in-vitro
diagnostic reagents through collaboration in early 2014.

NEPTUNUS FUYAO BUSINESS

Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries together own more than 40 production
lines for 17 types of medications in dose form, as well as 450 approvals in
relation to the production of drugs. The number of types of generic drugs
in the National Essential Drugs List issued by the Ministry of Health (the
“List”) in March 2013 was increased from 307 to 520. Besides significantly
increasing the number of types of generic drugs, the List also required
prioritized use of generic drugs in grade Il hospitals. Neptunus Fuyao
currently owns 210 types or forms of drugs which are included in the List.
The issue of the List was favourable for Neptunus Fuyao's operation in the
Year. Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries operated normally during the
Year and recorded an income from principal business of approximately
RMB504,612,000. Due to the upgrade and enhancement work, certain
production lines of Neptunus Fuyao have to be suspended, therefore, income
from principal business of Neptunus Fuyao during the Year slightly decreased
compared with the same period last year. Neptunus Fuyao has also obtained
the high and new technology enterprise certificate, therefore, starting from
2012 and its subsequent three years, Neptunus Fuyao is subject to the PRC
enterprise income tax (“EIT”) at a rate of 15%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As the focused work for Neptunus Fuyao’s operation during the Year and
in 2014, GMP Enhancement and new GMP certification were proceeded
smoothly during the Year. Among Neptunus Fuyao’s production lines, those
required to meet the new GMP requirement have reached the standard
before the required deadline of 2013 and obtained relevant GMP certificates.
After the end of this Year, GMP Enhancement in Neptunus Fuyao’s
subsidiary Fuzhou Neptunus lJinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Neptunus Jinxiang”) progressed smoothly. All 15 formulations in
production have passed the GMP certification and currently obtained the
new GMP certificates. Meanwhile Neptunus Fuyao is commencing GMP
Enhancement for the production lines of chemical medicine tablets, capsules
and powder, special production line of amoxicillin capsules and production
line of active pharmaceutical ingredients, and will submit the application
of certification to the relevant competent departments. It is expected that
Neptunus Fuyao and its subsidiaries will complete the GMP Enhancement
and new GMP certification for all production lines in the first half of 2014.
Although the GMP Enhancement and new GMP certification temporarily
affected Neptunus Fuyao’s normal production and supply of certain drugs
in the short term, such impact was reduced by Neptunus Fuyao’s various
initiatives, and, as such , only a minor drop in key operating revenue was
recorded while its profit continued to demonstrate positive growth. As the
alternations required for those production lines which are proceeding GMP
Enhancement are not significant, it is expected that the normal production
and supply of the relevant products in 2014 will not be substantially affected.

In order to ensure the sustainable development, Neptunus Fuyao also
emphasized on the R&D of new drugs. During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao
(1) completed the verification of formulation of Moxifloxacin injection; (2)
completed preparatory work on three category Il medical devices licenses;
(3) passed the on-site checking for the production and registration of
new anti-tumor drug namely “Tegafur, Gimeracil and Oteracil Potassium
Tablets” (BFH ). After the end of the Year, on 7 March 2014, Neptunus
Fuyao obtained the production approval of Tegafur, Gimeracil and Oteracil
Potassium Tablets, details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 March 2014.

Regarding the relevant construction work of the Lianjiang Production
Base, the new production base of Neptunus Fuyao, as the progress of
demolition by the local government is slower than expected, the Land
Use Rights Transfer Contracts have not been signed as at the date of this
report. The Company and Neptunus Fuyao are communicating with the
local government department proactively in order to facilitate the local
government department for completion of demolition and relocation of such
piece of land and so that the signing of Land Use Rights Transfer contracts
could be completed as soon as possible.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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RECOMBINANT PROTEINS AND POLYPEPTIDE
DRUGS BUSINESS

The current key business scope of Jiangsu Neptunus, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company includes the construction work of a production
base, the clinical trial on recombinant human thymosin « 1 for injection and
the technology transfer testing on recombinant human interleukin-2(125Ser)
for injection.

Jiangsu Neptunus’ clinical trial on recombinant human thymosin a1 for
injection is undergoing according to the plan. Phase | clinical trial was
completed in December 2012. From the results of phase | clinical trial, under
the conditions stipulated by the clinical programs, the safety of recombinant
human thymosin « 1 for injection is well performed. Phase Il clinical trial has
begun in the first quarter of the Year. As at the end of 2013, phase Il clinical
trial was launched smoothly and completed 147 trials. According to the
current trial, the use of thymosin demonstrated satisfactory results in terms
of safety, whereas its effectiveness will be tested in subsequent laboratory
trials.

The "approval for recombinant human thymosin « 1 clinical research”
and related technology were originally owned by Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Company Limited FINGLZEZHFR AT (“Neptunus
Pharmaceutical”). In order to apply for the new drug certificate of
recombinant human thymosin « 1 for injection and obtain support from
local government in the future, on 9 April 2013, Jiangsu Neptunus entered
into the Technology Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical for
the acquisition of “approval for recombinant human thymosin « 1 clinical
research” and related technology for a consideration of RMB13,000,000.
Consideration will be paid by four installments, the first and second of which
amounting to RMB 6,000,000 have been paid by Jiangsu Neptunus pursuant
to the agreement and progress of clinical trial.

During the Year, the construction and settlement for completion of the
production base were completed. Scale-up testing for recombinant human
thymosin a 1 for injection and the production of Phase Il clinical trial samples
have been completed smoothly. At present, according to the relevant
laws and rules, Jiangsu Neptunus is conducting the process confirmation
and verification work for the technology transfer of recombinant human
interleukin-2(125Ser) for injection. It has proceeded smoothly and the trial
production of concentrated solution of recombinant human interleukin-
2(125Ser) for injection has been completed.

SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In line with the Group’s development in in-vitro diagnostic reagents,
establishment work for relevant production line of in-vitro diagnostic
reagents has been launched in January 2014. The progress in various projects
of Jiangsu Neptunus will significantly enhance the Group’s future expansion
of business and profitability. As such, the Group will continue to increase
input in the research and development and construction work of Jiangsu
Neptunus, which will cause certain impact to the Group’s profitability and
production in the short term.

PURCHASE AND SALES OF MEDICINES AND
HEALTHCARE FOODS BUSINESS

Neptunus Fuyao and the Company have a small amount of operation in the
Purchase and Sales of Medicines and Healthcare Foods Business in 2012
and the previous years. In order to expand the development by the Group
in such business, the Company acquired Neptunus Changjian in January
2013, and the business development of Neptunus Changjian was confirmed
as purchase and sales of medicines, healthcare food products and food
products.

Neptunus Changjian’s Purchase and Sales of Medicines and Healthcare
Foods Business developed rapidly during the Year, and gradually developed
a sales team which comprised of more than 200 people and also entered
into annual sales agreements with over 100 downstream customers,
and recorded an income from principal business totaling approximately
RMB113,961,000 during the Year, which brings a new source of income for
the Group and provides positive support to the profitability.

On 6 February 2013, Neptunus Changjian entered into (i) a distribution
agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical (“Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Distribution Agreement”) pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will
purchase various medicines manufactured by Neptunus Pharmaceutical for
distribution in the PRC for the period from 6 February 2013 to 31 December
2013 and (i) a distribution agreement with Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-
engineering Co., Ltd. MINETZ AWM ITEAEMR AR (“Hangzhou Neptunus”)
pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will purchase various food products
and healthcare food products manufactured by Hangzhou Neptunus for
distribution in the PRC for the period from 6 February 2013 to 31 December
2015. The Board considered that the entering into the abovementioned
distribution agreements will (i) bring the Company higher operating revenues
by the distribution and sales of medicines, food products and healthcare
food products which will have a positive impact on the profitability of the
Company; and (ii) assist the Company to expand its marketing team and
retail network and strengthen its connections with distributors and retailers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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On 3 July 2013, based on the Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution
Agreement, Neptunus Changjian and Neptunus Pharmaceutical entered
into a supplementary agreement (“Supplementary Agreement”), upon
the approval obtained at the extraordinary general meeting held on 13
September 2013, the period of Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution
Agreement was extended to 31 December 2015, and the annual cap for the
year 2013 was increased, and two annual caps for the two years 2014 and
2015 were newly added.

Given the increase in population of China, aging of the average population,
as well as on-going increase in the government input in medical protection,
pharmaceutical and healthcare product market is expected to remain in the
upward trend in 2014. Amid the generally positive external environment,
Neptunus Changjian will continue to enhance internal management in 2014.
Through optimizing team structure, adjusting market allocation, refining
sales management and streamlining workflow processes, the company aims
at making continuous breakthroughs in its results.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Since January 2009, the Company has been focusing on the R&D of modern
biological technology. During the Year, the Company has focused on the
R&D of its own products. The Company also endeavored to seek R&D
projects for new products externally starting from 2012, thereby exploring a
new direction for its future development.

The Company entered into a technical cooperation agreement with the
School of Life Sciences, Jilin University on 1 March 2012 to cooperate in
the R&D of polypeptide and chemicals primarily by microsphere technology
and to explore and establish a more advanced platform for long term
drug delivery technology. The bench-scale testing has almost completed at
present. The pilot-scale testing is expected to start in 2014, the results of
which will be based on in order to decide whether the interim testing for
scale-up research will be launched.

The Company entered into academic subsidy and entrusted R&D agreements
with Harbin Institute of Technology (“Harbin Institute”) on 2 May 2012 and
31 May 2013 respectively for the cooperative R&D of the Project ET-743 (a
chemosynthetic anti-tumor drug). The bench-scale synthetic testing was fully
completed during the Year and optimization of the synthetic process has
taken place at the same time. Optimization and scale-up experiments are
currently under progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the national policy of supporting application of bio-technology to
the field of agriculture, the Company utilized its strengths and resources in
bio-technology since 2012, cooperated with top-class research institutions
in relevant fields in China, and explored in the field of bio-agriculture. At
present, it is developing biological products aiming to prevent common
piglet intestine diarrhea and to protect intestine function of piglet. The first
product is ready to be industrialized and is now proceeding to the stage of
administrative examination. It is expected to be industrialized after obtaining
the administrative approval.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s turnover for the Year was approximately RMB611,666,000,
representing an increase of approximately 15.31% from that of
approximately RMB530,458,000 in the corresponding period last year. The
turnover for the Year was mainly derived from sales income of medicines of
Neptunus Fuyao and sales income of medicines and healthcare food products
of Neptunus Changjian. As a result of upgrade and enhancement, Neptunus
Fuyao suspended certain production lines, therefore the turnover decreased
slightly as compared with the same period last year. However, with the newly
added sales income of Neptunus Changjian this Year, the overall sales of the
Group maintained an upward trend.

The Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin for the Year were
approximately RMB251,162,000 and 41% respectively, increasing by
approximately RMB55,664,000 and 4% respectively compared with that
of the same period last year. The increase in gross profit and gross profit
margin was because newly acquired Neptunus Changjian provided additional
gross profit, and the products sold by Neptunus Changjian are products with
higher gross profit margin.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB101,640,000, representing an significant increase of
approximately RMB25,897,000 over approximately RMB75,743,000 of the
same period last year. The increase in selling and distribution expenses was
mainly due to selling and distribution expenses generated from newly-added
Neptunus Changjian’s sale business and the expansion of sales network of
Neptunus Changjian which resulted in the increase in selling expenses.

The Group’s administrative expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB59,039,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB10,786,000 and 22.35%, as compared to approximately
RMB48,253,000 in the corresponding period last year. The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to (i) the newly added management
expenses of Neptunus Changjian, (i) the increased foreign exchange loss
incurred due to appreciation of RMB during the second quarter this Year,
and (jii) the fact that Jiangsu Neptunus is now at stage of trial production,
which resulted in the increase in management expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s other operating expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB46,478,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB10,173,000 from approximately RMB36,305,000 in the corresponding
period last year. The increase in other operating expenses was mainly due to
the significant increase in the R&D expenses and written down of inventories.

The Group's finance costs for the Year was approximately RMB7,684,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,094,000 from
approximately RMB6,590,000 in the corresponding period last year, which
was mainly due to (i) as compared to the corresponding period last year,
an increase in the interest expenses of total bank loans of Neptunus Fuyao
for the Year; (ii) the shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance
obtained by the Company from its parent company, Shenzhen Neptunus
Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”) amounted to
RMB23,000,000, which is bearing an annual interest rate of 6.60%; and (iii)
the shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance obtained by Neptunus
Fuyao from Neptunus Bio-engineering on 5 June 2013 amounted to
RMB27,000,000, which is bearing an annual interest rate of 6.60%.

The Group's profit after taxation for the Year increased to approximately
RMB46,998,000 from approximately RMB36,078,000 for the corresponding
period last year. The increase in profit was mainly due to new source of
profit from Neptunus Changjian, and that the EIT rate of Neptunus Fuyao
was adjusted to 15%, resulting in a decrease of deferred tax liabilities of
approximately RMB 13,966,000 of Neptunus Fuyao.

As such, profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB35,855,000 for the Year, compared with profit of
approximately RMB24,298,000 for the corresponding period last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group usually finances its operating and investing activities with its
internal financial resources and bank loans. The Group’s transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the Group reviews its working capital
and finance requirements on a regular basis.

As at 31 December 2013, total bank borrowings of the Group was
approximately RMB86,000,000, all of which were short-term bank
borrowings.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's short-term bank borrowings were
RMB86,000,000, all of which were short-term bank borrowings of Neptunus
Fuyao.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 1 August 2013, Neptunus Fuyao was granted a short-term loan of
RMB50,000,000 from the Sanshan Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia
Bank, by pledging its land use rights and buildings. This loan will be repaid
on 1 February 2014 and is bearing an annual interest rate of 5.60%.

On 6 August 2013, Neptunus Fuyao was granted a short-term loan of
RMB36,000,000 from the Sanshan Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia
Bank, by pledging its land use rights and buildings. This loan will be repaid
on 6 February 2014 and is bearing an annual interest rate of 5.60%.

SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST-BEARING FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE

As at 31 December 2013, the shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance obtained by the Company from Neptunus Bio-engineering
amounted to RMB23,000,000. Such shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance is unsecured and bearing an annual interest rate of 6.60%.
The Company has provided such fund to Neptunus Fuyao by way of
shareholder’s interest-bearing financial assistance for the construction plan of
Lianjiang Production Base.

As at 31 December 2013, the shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance obtained by Neptunus Fuyao from Neptunus Bio-engineering
amounted to RMB27,000,000. Such shareholder’s interest-bearing financial
assistance is unsecured and bearing an annual interest rate of 6.60%, and
was used in the upgrade and enhancement work of Neptunus Fuyao's
certain production lines.

SHAREHOLDER'S ENTRUSTED LOANS

The Company obtained a shareholder’s entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000
from Neptunus Bio-engineering through an entrusted arrangement with
a bank. Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the Company that
it would not demand repayment of the above-mentioned shareholder’s
entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the repayment of such shareholder’s
entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations of the Company
and/or its business objectives as set out in the prospectus published by
the Company on 29 August 2005 (the “Prospectus”); (2) each of the
independent non-executive Directors was of the opinion that the repayment
of such shareholder’'s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the
operations of the Company and/or the implementation of its business
objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company would make an
announcement in respect of the decision of the independent non-executive
Directors made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive cash flow and
had retained profits in the relevant financial year.
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NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB198,540,000. Current assets comprised cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB253,511,000, inventories of approximately
RMB120,743,000, tax recoverable of approximately RMB28,000, fixed
deposit of approximately RMB2,000,000, trade and other receivables of
approximately RMB114,940,000. Current liabilities comprised trade and
other payables of approximately RMB187,954,000, interest-bearing bank
borrowings to be repaid within one year of approximately RMB86,000,000,
tax payable of approximately RMB7,446,000, entrusted loans of
approximately RMB9,000,000, and deferred revenue of approximately
RMB2,282,000. The net current assets increased approximately by
RMB25,722,000 as compared with that of approximately RMB172,818,000
as at 31 December 2012. The increase in net current assets was because
that Neptunus Changjian was acquired during this Year and most assets of
Neptunus Changjian are current assets.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Pursuant to the loan agreements entered into between Neptunus Fuyao,
the Company'’s subsidiary, and Sanshan Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia
Bank on 1 August 2013 and 6 August 2013, respectively, Neptunus Fuyao
has pledged part of the land use rights and building it owned to Sanshan
Subbranch (Fuzhou) of Fujian Haixia Bank.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

During the Year, the Group’s operating revenue, major selling costs and
capital expenditure were denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in RMB.
As such, the foreign currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the
Group has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and segment results by business and region of the Group
for the Year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

0

RBEEFE

BE_ZT—=ZF+_A=+—8 KEEXH
BEFELY B AR 198,540,000 KB E
ERERekRSEEWHARK 253,511,000
T FE A AR120,743,0007T ¢ A Ug [E
R4 AR 28,000t EHERHOARE
2,000,000 7T + F& YR 3 & B B IR IB 49 A
R #114,940,0007T © 7t 8) B & B 1E FE IR 5K
N E b FE AT R A R 187,954,000 © — &
LA B HR 89 B S 3R 1T 18 5 49 A R 5 86,000,000
TC ERTEHARYE 7,446,000 70 © TREMEK
# AR #9,000,000T ' RIELEW = ARE
2,282,000 - FE——F+-_HA=+—HBH
MBEEFEHARKE 172,818,000 T8 » 1
M7 AR 25,722,0007T ° #MNE R E AR
FEHATEEIRE METRENEEZ AR

BEERR

REARBMNBAREBEREDHIN _T—=F
NA—BM-Z—=F \ANHBBEEWRT
BMZWZITRRTNVERER - BERED MK
ETRE W ER D L P HE B R R AR AR T K
RITRM= 1L AT -

BEE == L B

RAFE  REBZEERA - TEHERAR
BRRAXHUAREINE R-F—=F+_H
=t —AAEERE RS EFBNEARARAR
% Bt AREEEOEERRRTAK - BAIA
SETEXRAEFESBRTAELS RS -

7 EhE
AEERAFEINES RIE DL HBRAR

N

& H

EIpA
DEEERN T B REMTE 12 -

14 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013




V- N

Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has contracted commitments for future
capital expenditure of approximately RMB47,513,000. The Board believes
that such capital expenditure can be financed by the Group’s bank deposits
and bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2013, neither the Group nor the Company had any
significant contingent liability.

MAJOR INVESTMENT PLANS

During the Year, other than developing the businesses disclosed in the
Prospectus, the aforesaid proposed Lianjiang Production Base of Neptunus
Fuyao in Fuzhou City and the production base of Jiangsu Neptunus, the
Company did not make any other major investments.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of 1,410 staff (2012:
1,139).

During the Year, the staff costs including directors’ remuneration which
amounted to approximately RMB75,966,000 (2012: approximately
RMB62,213,000). The salaries and fringe benefits of the Group’s employees
remained competitive. The employees’ incentives were reviewed and
determined annually pursuant to the remuneration and bonus policies of the
Group based on the performance of the employees. The Group also provided
various other benefits to its employees.

Compared with 31 December 2012, the movement in the number of
employees of the Group for the Year was due to following reasons: (i) the
Company significantly increased the number of employees due to merger
and acquisition and business development of Neptunus Changjian; (i) the
Company increased input in R&D projects, therefore increased its R&D staff;
and (iii) Jiangsu Neptunus recruited more staff as a result of engineering
progress.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe benefits of the
employees and rewarded employees in accordance with the Group's business
performance. In addition, training and development opportunities for the
employees were also provided by the Group.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (3k$%), aged 42, has been the chairman of the Board since
June 2011. He is also the Compliance officer of the Company. He obtained
a MBA degree from University of Technology, Sydney. Mr. Zhang studied
in Goteborg University, Sweden. He is a member of the 10th session of All-
China Youth Federation and the 10th session of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee of Jilin Province, the deputy chairman of Jilin Youth
Federation, the deputy president of the 8th session of council of Guangdong
Province Youth Entrepreneurs Association and the 5th session of council
of Shenzhen City Youth Entrepreneurs Association. Mr. Zhang served as
the general manager of Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd.,
the deputy general manager and the chief marketing officer of Shenzhen
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”), and a
director of Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Technology Development Co., Ltd.
CRYITE ERERHTERE AR AR]). He is currently the deputy chairman of
the 5th session of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the
controlling shareholder of the Company which holds 71.67% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (4£[A)3), aged 53, has been appointed as the general
manager of the Company since February 2000, and is responsible for the
Company’s day-to-day management and overall activities. In April 2002,
he was appointed as director of the Company. Mr. Chai is a doctor in
chemistry jointly cultivated by Jilin University of the PRC and Super Molecule
Chemical Laboratory of Collége de France (ABIFAZFE) of France, and
was a former deputy director and professor of Chemistry Department of
Jilin University of the PRC. Mr. Chai also obtained an EMBA degree from
Euro-China International Business College. Mr. Chai is currently a visiting
professor of Shenzhen University and member of MBA Education Committee
of Shenzhen University. He has extensive experience in listed medical
companies management and international project cooperation with domestic
companies.

Mr. Xu Yan He (##%#), aged 57, has been appointed as a director of
the Company since June 2011. He graduated from Zhejiang Engineering
College, the PRC, with a bachelor degree in 1982, and has nearly 30 years
of experience in pharmaceutical manufacturing industry in China. He is
the deputy president of Fujian Pharmaceutical Profession Association (&35
HEEITERS), Fujian Pharmaceutical Association (f@i2E #Ed) and
Fujian Medical Insurance Association (1&f4 BEFERERHE). Mr. Xu is the
managing director of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
authorized representative of Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd.. Mr. Xu has
received a number of recognition, including Outstanding Entrepreneur in

Fujian and Outstanding Pharmacist in China.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (8|5 ), aged 56, has been appointed as a director of the
Company since June 2011. He graduated from Nankai University, the PRC
in 1997, with a doctoral degree in Economics and a postdoctoral degree
in Management. As a professor, he is a renowned expert in corporate
management and development strategies. Mr. Liu served as assistant to
the secretary and head of Research and Consulting Department of China
Development Institute in Shenzhen, China, and an independent director of
Neptunus Bio-engineering. He led and participated in a number of national
key research projects and corporate consulting programmes. Mr. Liu has
extensive experience in corporate management and capital operation. He is
currently a director of the 5th session of the board of directors and president
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Ms. Yu Lin (F#f), aged 57, has been appointed as a director of the
Company since February 2005. Currently, she is the director and vice-
president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and is responsible for its new
products research and development. Ms. Yu graduated from Sun Yat-
Sen University of the PRC, and has more than 30 years of experience in
biochemical and pharmaceutical industries in the PRC.

Mr. Ren De Quan ({Ef&#&), aged 69, has been appointed as a director of
the Company since November 2006. Mr. Ren has previously served as the
deputy Commissioner of National Chinese Medicine Administrative Bureau
and the deputy Commissioner of National Drugs Surveillance Administrative
Bureau, and retired in early 2005. Mr. Ren is also an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of China Shineway
Pharmaceutical Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ren retired as a non-executive director of
the Company on 31 January 2014.

Mr. Song Ting Jiu (R#LA), aged 57, has been appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company since 31 January 2014. Mr Song graduated from
Northeast Dianli University in 1982. He is currently the vice-president of
Neptunus Bio-engineering and the general manager of Jiangsu Neptunus
Health Food Company Limited (IL#/8 FHEERMBR AT, a subsidiary of
Neptunus Bio-engineering. Mr. Song was engaged in the macroscopic and
strategic research regarding energy and the State’s economic development
at the Energy Research Institute under Chinese Academy of Sciences and
was granted the First Class Award of the State Scientific and Technological
Progress Award during such period. Since 1985, he has been engaged in
financial management and was appointed the positions of office supervisor,
vice-president and president at the Branch and Sub-branch of the Bank of
China in Shenzhen. Since 2002, he started taking tasks regarding enterprise
management and worked as deputy general manager at Guangdong
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Hengfeng Investment Company Limited, deputy general manager at
Shenzhen Hengfeng Real Estate Company, managing deputy general
manager at Hengfeng Haiyue Hotel, and the deputy general manager of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon (£7k#), aged 56, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since August 2005.
Mr. Yick holds a bachelor Degree in business administration, majoring
in accounting, from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in England. Mr. Yick has
more than 29 years of experience in auditing, direct investment, investment
banking and corporate advisory services. In addition, Mr. Yick is also an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee
of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited and China
Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited, (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung (&32F5), aged 47, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since August 2005. Mr.
Poon obtained his bachelor degree in mathematics with minor in economics
and marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and
was further admitted to the MBA degree by the University of Hull, United
Kingdom, in 1996. Mr. Poon has been appointed as a Honorary Institute
Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong since April 2002. He has been teaching marketing-related
subjects for the master degree in science program, MBA program and
Global Executive MBA program (OneMBA) of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Since June 2008, he has been appointed as visiting Adjunct Associate
Professor in the Department of Marketing of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.
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Mr. Yu Bo (F3h), aged 54, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company since August 2013. Mr. Yu graduated
from the Harbin Institute of Technology with a Master’'s Degree in
Engineering Management and Doctorate in Management Science and
Engineering. He is currently the dean, a professor and a PhD supervisor
of the School of Economics and Management at the Harbin Institute of
Technology. Mr. Yu is also an executive member of China Energy Research
Society, a member of National MBA Education Committee, a councilor of
Chinese Society of Technology Economics and an executive member of
System Engineering Society of China. In addition, Mr. Yu is an independent
non-executive director, member of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of Harbin Electric Company Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as an
independent director in Mudanjiang Hengfeng Paper Company Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, where he
acts as the chairman of the nomination committee, as well as a member of
the audit committee and the remuneration committee.

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong (R&#EER), aged 58, has been a supervisor of the
Company since June 2008. Mr. Xiong obtained a doctorate degree in
accountancy from Xiamen University in 1992. Mr. Xiong was appointed as
an independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering up to August 2007.
Mr. Xiong is currently the department head and professor of the Accounting
Department of School of Economics of Shenzhen University, the independent
director of Shahe Industry Company Limited, Shenzhen Laibao High-Tech
Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Feima International Supply Chain Company Limited and
Shenzhen Beauty Star Company Limited.

Mr. Wang Bin (E#), aged 54, has been a supervisor of the Company
since June 2011. He graduated from Precision Instrument Department of
Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC, with a master degree in 1986. He
served as a teacher in Precision Instrument Department of Harbin Institute
of Technology, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Jingshan Group
Joint-stock Company Limited C3IIR L& B D AR A ), the chief human
resources officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Limited (between
1997 and 2000) and the deputy dean of Harbin Institute of Technology
Shenzhen Graduate School.

Mr. Yu Jun ("81E), aged 42, has been elected as a supervisor of the Company
since June 2002. Mr. Yu is now the manager of IT Department of the
Company.
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Senior Management

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang (832 4), aged 39, is currently the general manager of
Neptunus Changjian, a subsidiary of the Company. Graduated from Harbin
Normal University, Mr. Zhao has been engaging in the sales management of
pharmaceutical products. He joined Neptunus Bio-engineering since 1998
and previously served as regional sales manager as well as other positions.
Mr. Zhao joined the Group in January 2013 and was appointed as the
general manager of Neptunus Changjian in May 2013. He has over 10 years
experience in the marketing management of pharmaceutical products.

Mr Wang Man Chao (Ejm%H), aged 36, is currently the executive
general manager of Jiangsu Neptunus, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr
Wang graduated from the School of Life Sciences in Anhui University
with a Bachelor of Science degree. Mr Wang has been engaging in bio-
pharmaceutical manufacturing and quality management. Since joining the
Group in 2003, he acted as the quality director and production director of
the Company and the deputy general manager of a subsidiary. Mr Wang
has many years of experience in pharmaceutical manufacturing, quality and
engineering management.

Ms. Lee Mei Yi (Z=Z{%), aged 46, has been appointed as a joint company
secretary of the Company since 1 December 2008. Ms. Lee is a director
of Corporate Services Department of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow
member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 20
years of experience in the corporate secretarial area.

Mr. Huang Jian Bo (E#)&), aged 38, has been appointed as a joint
company secretary and an authorized representative of the Company since 1
December 2008 and as a financial controller of the Company since 1 January
2012. Mr. Huang graduated from College of Accounting at Hunan University
with a bachelor degree in economics. Mr. Huang has been the secretary
to the Board of the Company since 2007. Mr. Huang is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the report of Directors and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the sale of a variety
of pharmaceuticals, such as herbal medicine, generic drugs, transfusion and
anti-tumor drugs, and the R&D Business in the PRC and commission income
derived from the distribution of healthcare food products and food products.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last two financial years ended 31 December 2013, and the
published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
Year is set out on pages 49 to 177.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of any dividends for the
Year (2012: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are set
out in note 30 to financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during the
Year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2013, the Company had no distributable reserves, while its
accumulated loss, calculated in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association and relevant rules and regulations, amounted to approximately
RMB119,214,000.

Capitalized Interest
The Group has no capitalized interest during the Year.
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Report of the Directors
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale Or Redemption of the Listed Shares
of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the
Company'’s listed shares during the Year. The Company and its subsidiaries
also did not redeem, purchase or cancel any of their redeemable securities.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 15.31% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 4.16%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 22.78% of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 9.47%.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, the supervisors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Company’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and supervisors of the Company during the Year and their
terms of employment were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng 3 years from his appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Xu Yan He 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ren De Quan re-appointed on 25 June 2011, retired on 31

January 2014

Ms. Yu Lin 3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Huang Yao Wen appointed on 25 June 2011, retired on 5
August 2013

Mr. Yu Bo from his appointment on 5 August 2013 up

to 24 June 2014

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2011

Mr. Yu Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2011

Mr. Wang Bin 3 years from his appointment on 25 June
2011

The Company confirms that as at the date of this report, it has received
annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung, Mr. Yu Bo and Mr. Huang Yao Wen (retired on 5 August
2013). The Company still considers the three current independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with a term up to 24 June 2014 and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 7
to the financial statements.

According to the service contracts entered into between the Company and
its supervisors, the Company shall pay the supervisors Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong,
Mr. Wang Bin and Mr. Yu Jun the remuneration of RMB30,000, RMB30,000
and RMB20,000 per annum respectively.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees and their remuneration are set out in note 8
to the financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors' Interests in Contracts

Save for the service contracts of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company as disclosed above, there were no contracts of significance to
which the Company or its controlling shareholder was a party and in which a
Director or supervisor of the Company had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives in the Listed
Securities

As far as the Directors or supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2013, the interests and short position of the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") (including interests
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or were required, pursuant to the “required
standard of dealings” for directors as set out in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or had
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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RARBBMD 2R

Approximate
Approximate percentage of

percentage of the Company’s

Number of all the issued

domestic domestic shares share capital

Type of shares held s HAEARE

Director/supervisor Capacity interests =] RNERZ BITRAZ

-9 514 ERES NEREE BHEI BHEI

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (Note (1)) Beneficial owner Personal 30,561,000 2.44% 1.82%
SemER A (M (1)) BalEBA (EPN

Mr. Yu Jun (Note (2)) Beneficial owner Personal 1,014,000 0.08% 0.06%
WIE S (M (2) BE=EAA EA

Notes: His

(1) Executive Director and general manager of the Company

(2)  Supervisor and employee of the Company.

(1) BRARRHITEERELHE

(2) RARAREEFRES
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Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company:

RARBEBOEERD 2R

Approximate

percentage of

associated

Number of corporation’s

Name of shares in issued

associated associated share capital

Type of corporation corporation {LAEE L E

Director Capacity interests pizki HERBEE ERITREZ

= 37 ERER EEEB ZBREE BMABESL

Mr. Zhang Feng (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 532,437 0.07%
wEgSAE (Kiita@) okt 2PN fEA  Bio-engineering
BEEY)

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 266,217 0.04%
Bl5ERAE (Bab) BEmEEA fEA  Bio-engineering
HEEY)

Ms. Yu Lin (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 79,864 0.01%
Fihzzt (Hitc) EaEEA 8 A  Bio-engineering

Notes:

(a)

Mr. Zhang Feng, deputy chairman of the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, was beneficially interested in approximately 0.07% of the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, which in turn held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest
in approximately 71.67% of the entire issued share capital of the Company,
of which 70.38% was directly held and 1.29% was indirectly held through
Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment Company Limited (“Neptunus
Oriental”).

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, director and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was
beneficially interested in approximately 0.04% of the entire issued capital of
Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn
held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 71.67% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 1.29% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.
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(© Ms. Yu Lin, director and vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was
beneficially interested in approximately 0.01% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in
turn held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 71.67%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly
held and 1.29% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “required standard of dealings” for
directors as set out in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme, Convertible Securities and
Warrants

Up to 31 December 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries have not
adopted any share option scheme and have not granted any option,
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Share Options,
Warrants or Convertible Bonds

At any time during the Year, none of the Directors or supervisors of the
Company or their respective spouse or minor children were granted any
share options, warrants or convertible bonds of the Company, its subsidiaries
or associated corporation.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors and supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2013, the interests and/or short positions held by shareholders
(not being a Director, a supervisor or a chief executive of the Company)
in shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
entered in the register pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:
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Long positions in the shares of the Company:

RARBBM 252 -

Approximate

Approximate
percentage of

Number of percentage of the Company’s
domestic all the issued
shares held domestic shares share capital
¥E 15FE RN
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity AER AERH ERITRAMN
FTERRER 54 RHEE BRES BYBES
Neptunus Bio-engineering (Note (a)) Beneficial owner 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
BEEY (K@) BEnlEBA
Interest in controlled 21,650,000 1.73% 1.29%
corporation
BAEXERVEE RS
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) corporation
(Note (b)) BHAEXERVEE RS
s EEERGERAR
(DeE&E ) (H72b)
Shenzhen Yinhetong Investment Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
Company Limited (“Yinhetong”) corporation
(Note (c)) BEXEREE MR
YT R ERE B R AT
(F8RAm 1) (K et ()
Mr. Zhang Si Min (Note (d)) Interest in controlled 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
REBREE K137 () corporation
BAEXEREE RS
Ms. Wang Jin Song (Note (e)) Interest of spouse 1,202,650,000 96.06% 71.67%
TSR+ (15t () it £
Bank of Hangzhou Co., Ltd., Security interest in shares 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%

Shenzhen Branch

("Bank of Hangzhou") (Note (1))

MNERITRMD BR A

RN 1T (THINERTT D) (A ()

A REER
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

Neptunus Bio-engineering was deemed to be interested in the 21,650,000
domestic shares of the Company held by Neptunus Oriental as the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Oriental was beneficially owned by Neptunus
Bio-engineering. Neptunus Bio-engineering was also directly interested in
1,181,000,000 domestic shares of the Company. Therefore, Neptunus Bio-
engineering was directly and indirectly interested in 1,202,650,000 domestic
shares of the Company.

Neptunus Group was deemed to be interested in the 1,202,650,000 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Group was
beneficially interested in approximately 24.66% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Yinhetong was deemed to be interested in 1,202,650,000 domestic shares of the
Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to in note (a) above,
held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Yinhetong was beneficially interested in
approximately 58.96% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Group,
which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately 24.66% of the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Mr. Zhang Si Min (“Mr. Zhang"”) was deemed to be interested in 1,202,650,000
domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares
referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Mr.
Zhang was beneficially interested in 70% of the entire issued share capital of
Yinhetong, which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately 58.96% of
the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Group, which in turn was beneficially
interested in approximately 24.66% of the entire issued share capital of
Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Ms. Wang Jin Song (“Ms. Wang”) was deemed to be interested in
1,202,650,000 domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel
of shares referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Ms.
Wang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang and was taken to be beneficially interested in
any shares held by Mr. Zhang.

Bank of Hangzhou was deemed to be interested in 1,181,000,000
domestic shares of the Company held by Neptunus Bio-engineering
which has pledged its domestic shares to Bank of Hangzhou.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and supervisors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons (except the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company) who held any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2013.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

The continuing connected transactions that are exempt from the disclosure
requirement under the GEM Listing Rules during the Year are set out as
follows:

(i) Trademark licensing

The Company entered into trademark licence contracts (the
“Trademark Licence Contracts”) with Neptunus Pharmaceutical on
28 December 2002 and 1 April 2004 respectively pursuant to which
Neptunus Pharmaceutical granted a non-exclusive licence to the
Company to use the trademarks owned by Neptunus Pharmaceutical
at nil consideration for the period until the term of registration of
such trademarks expires. The term of the Trademark Licence Contracts
will be extended automatically as long as the registrations of such
trademarks remain effective.

As there was no consideration payable under the Trademark Licence
Contracts for the Year, pursuant to Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the above transaction was exempt from any reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

(ii)  Property lease

Factory

On 1 January 2013, the Company and Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai
Pharmaceutical Information Consulting Company Ltd. (“Tongai
Pharmaceutical”) (previous known as Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd.), a fellow subsidiary and
a connected person of the Company, entered into a property lease
contract pursuant to which Tongai Pharmaceutical as landlord agreed
to lease a property with a total gross floor area of approximately 3,722
sg.m. to the Company as tenant for factory and R&D manufacturing
uses for a period of three years commencing from 1 January 2013 and
expiring on 31 December 2015 at an annual rental of RMB267,984.
The leased property is located at portions of levels 1 and whole of level
4, Neptunus Industrial Complex, the Fifth Industrial Zone, Beihuan
Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC. Tongai Pharmaceutical has
waived the rental of RMB267,984 payable by the Company in the Year.

As the aggregate rental under the lease contracts payable to Tongai
Pharmaceutical for the Year were less than HK$1,000,000 and each of
the percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) was less than 5% on
an annual basis, pursuant to Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM Listing Rules,
the above transaction was exempt from any reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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(iii) Financial assistance

Details of the financial assistance by controlling shareholder and
management shareholder are set out in the section headed “Material
Related Party Transactions” in note 35 to the financial statements.
As the financial assistance was on normal commercial terms and
no security over the assets of the Company was granted in respect
of the financial assistance, pursuant to Rule 20.65(4) of the GEM
Listing Rules such financial assistance was exempt from any reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transactions exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 20.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules undertaken by the Group during the Year are set out below:

Nepstar Distribution Agreement

On 30 March 2012, Neptunus Fuyao entered into a distribution agreement
("Nepstar Distribution Agreement”), with Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Nepstar”) a company indirectly owned by the former
chairman of the Company’s Board, Mr. Zhang Si Min pursuant to which
the Group agreed to supply self-manufactured drugs at prescribed prices
to Nepstar for the period from 30 March 2012 to 31 December 2014.
The Company has made an announcement in relation to such continuing
connected transactions on 30 March 2012 and disclosed that the annual
caps of such transactions for the period from 30 March 2012 to 31
December 2012 and the two financial years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2014 would not exceed RMB 13,000,000, RMB 16,000,000 and
RMB21,000,000 respectively.

During the Year, the Group has supplied self-manufactured drugs
of approximately RMB19,174,000 to Nepstar pursuant to Nepstar
Distribution Agreement, which exceeded the annual cap disclosed in the
relevant announcement dated 30 March 2012 mentioned above due
to administrative over sight. Details of this incident can be found in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 March 2014.
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Neptunus Changjian Distribution Agreement

On 30 March 2012, Neptunus Fuyao entered into a distribution agreement
(“Neptunus Changjian Distribution Agreement”) with Neptunus Changjian,
which was a connected person of the Company by virtue of being a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Neptunus Bio-engineering but ceased to be so after
becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 4 January 2013,
pursuant to which Neptunus Fuyao agreed to supply self-manufactured
drugs to Neptunus Changjian at the prescribed prices for the period
from 30 March 2012 to 31 December 2014. The Company has made an
announcement in relation to such continuing connected transactions on 30
March 2012. The annual caps of such transactions for the period from 30
March 2012 to 31 December 2012 and for the two financial years ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2014 would not exceed RMB13,000,000,
RMB 14,000,000 and RMB 17,000,000 respectively.

On 4 January 2013, the Company completed the acquisition of the entire
equity interest of Neptunus Changjian. In this respect, the transactions under
Neptunus Changjian Distribution Agreement would not be considered as
continuing connected transactions during the Year.

Hangzhou Neptunus Distribution Agreement

On 6 February 2013, Neptunus Changjian entered into a distribution
agreement with Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. #u/i/&
TEWMTEBRZAR (“Hangzhou Neptunus”), a fellow subsidiary and a
connected person of the Company pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian
will purchase various food products and healthcare food products
manufactured by Hangzhou Neptunus for distribution in the PRC for the
period from 6 February 2013 to 31 December 2015. The term of the
distribution agreement is from 6 February 2013 to 31 December 2015.
The Company has made an announcement regarding such continuing
connected transactions on 6 February 2013, disclosing the purchase caps
of RMB4,500,000, RMB5,500,000 and RMB6,500,000 for the period from
6 February 2013 until 31 December 2013 and for 2014 and 2015 financial
years respectively.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased food products and
healthcare food products of approximately R\MB2,593,000 from Hangzhou
Neptunus pursuant to the Hangzhou Neptunus Distribution Agreement,
which did not exceed the annual cap disclosed above.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion
that the terms of the Nepstar Distribution Agreement and the Hangzhou
Neptunus Distribution Agreement are fair and reasonable and on normal
commercial terms, the entering into of these agreements is in the interests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transactions Not Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transactions not exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 20.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules undertaken by the Group during the Year are set out below:

Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement

On 16 October 2012, the Company entered into a distribution agreement
(“Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement”) with ;&Y /EE@EHER
KERAMR AT (Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Technology Development
Company Limited (“Neptunus lJiankang”), a fellow subsidiary of the
Company pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase various food
products and healthcare food products manufactured by Neptunus Jiankang
at prescribed prices. The Company has issued a circular in relation to such
continuing connected transactions on 3 September 2012 and disclosed that
the annual caps of such transactions for the period from the date of entering
into Jiankang Distribution Agreement to 31 December 2012 and for the two
financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 would not
exceed RMB35,000,000, RMB62,000,000 and RMB65,000,000 respectively.
Such continuing connected transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 15 October 2012.

During the Year, the Group purchased various food products and healthcare
food products of approximately RMB8,400,000 from Neptunus Jiankang
and received total distribution commission of approximately RMB1,531,000
pursuant to Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement, which did not
exceed the annual cap disclosed above.

Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement

On 6 February 2013, Neptunus Changjian entered into a distribution
agreement (“Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement”) with
Neptunus Pharmaceutical , a fellow subsidiary and a connected person of
the Company pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will purchase various
medicines manufactured by Neptunus Pharmaceutical for distribution
in the PRC for the period from 6 February 2013 to 31 December 2013.
On 3 July 2013, based on the Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution
Agreement, Neptunus Changjian and Neptunus Pharmaceutical entered into
a supplementary agreement (“Supplementary Agreement”), pursuant to
which, upon the approval of independent shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 13 September 2013, the period of Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement was extended to 31 December 2015,
and the annual cap for the year 2013 was increased to RMB38,000,000
while two annual caps of RMB45,000,000 and RMB54,000,000 for the two
years 2014 and 2015 were newly added respectively.
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During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased drugs of approximately
RMB29,026,000 from Neptunus Pharmaceutical pursuant to the Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement , which did not exceed the annual
cap disclosed above.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion
that the terms of the Neptunus Jiankang Distribution Agreement and the
Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement are (as supplemented
by the Supplementary Agreement) fair and reasonable and on normal
commercial terms, the entering into of these agreements is in the interests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Connected Transaction Exempt from Independent Shareholders’
Approval Requirements

Equity Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering and
Neptunus Yinhe

On 11 December 2012, the Company entered into an Equity Transfer
Agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and Shenzhen Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical Investment
Company Limited (“Neptunus Yinhe"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase the
entire equity interests in Neptunus Changjian. The consideration for the
acquisition is RMB5,080,000 of which RMB1,524,000 shall be payable
to Neptunus Bio-engineering and RMB3,556,000 shall be payable to
Neptunus Yinhe. The acquisition was completed on 4 January 2013, and the
consideration for the acquisition has been fully paid during the Year. Through
the acquisition of Neptunus Changjian, the Group may expand its businesses
in marketing, sales and distribution of drugs and healthcare food by utilising
the licences held by Neptunus Changjian. It will also help to build up stronger
connection among the Group, its distributors and retail outlets and lay a solid
foundation for the distribution of the products to be launched by the Group in
the future.

Technology Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical

On 9 April 2013, Jiangsu Neptunus, a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a Technology Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical, a
fellow subsidiary and a connected person of the Company, pursuant to which
Jiangsu Neptunus agreed to acquire an intangible asset called “approval for
recombinant human thymosin a1 clinical research” and all related technology
thereunder (“Recombinant Technology”) owned by Neptunus Pharmaceutical
for a consideration of RMB13,000,000. The consideration will be paid by four
installments according to the progress of clinical trial of Jiangsu Neptunus’
recombinant human thymosin a1 for injection. Pursuant to the Technology
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Transfer Agreement, Jiangsu Neptunus has already paid the consideration of
RMB6,000,000 during the Year. The acquisition of Recombinant Technology is
the precondition for applying the new drug certificate of recombinant human
thymosin a1 for injection, therefore the obtaining of Recombinant Technology
will benefit the entire development of the Group (including Jiangsu Neptunus).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Competing Interests

On 21 August 2005, Neptunus Bio-engineering entered into an agreement
with the Company containing undertakings relating to non-competition and
preferential rights of investments (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”),
pursuant to which Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the
Company and its associates (among others), that as long as the securities of
the Company are listed on GEM:

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, whether within or
outside the PRC, directly or indirectly (other than those indirectly
held as a result of the equity interest in any listed company or its
subsidiaries), participate in or operate any business in whatever form, or
manufacture any products (the usage of which is the same as or similar
to that of the products of the Company) which may constitute direct
or indirect competition to the business operated by the Company from
time to time; and

(i) it will not, and will procure its associates not to, hold any interest,
whether within or outside the PRC, in any company or organization
(directly or indirectly, other than those indirectly held as a result of
its equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries) when the
business of such company or entity will (or may) compete directly or
indirectly with the business of the Company.

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertakings, at a time when the
Non-Competition Undertakings are subsisting, whenever Neptunus Bio-
engineering or any its associates enters into any negotiations, within or
outside the PRC, in relation to any new investment projects which may
compete with the existing and future business of the Company, the
Company will also be entitled to the preferential rights to participate in the
investments in such new investment projects.
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Report of the Directors
EEgHE

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Staff Retirement Scheme

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Company are set out in note
1(0) and 5 to the financial statements.

Auditor

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was
appointed as the Company’s auditor in 2013. The financial statements have
been audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited
Zhang Feng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
21 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain a high standard of corporate governance. The
principles of corporate governance adopted by the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal control transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

(A) Corporate Governance Practices

(B)

(@)

The Corporate Governance Code was effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The Company put strong
emphasis on the superiority, steadiness and rationality of corporate
governance. The Board is of the view that the Company has complied
with the requirements set out in Appendix 15 “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Year.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

During the Year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the “required standard of dealings” and the Company’s
internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.

The Board

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Company with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance and oversight of the
management. As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised nine
Directors, including three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board
delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to executive
Directors, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. And
the management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company under the guidance of the General Manager.

During the Year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance duties:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
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(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Company’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
16 to 19, with details of diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications concerning the Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

The Board held four board meetings during the Year.

The Directors did not authorize any alternate director to attend any
board meetings during the Year.

(D) Committees

The Board strives to maintain an excellent corporate governance and
has established committees with written terms of reference setting out
the powers and duties of the committees.

1.  Audit Committee

The Company had established the Audit Committee on 21
August 2005. The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Yu Lin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka
Yeung. Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The scope of duties of the Audit Committee is stated
in the Corporate Governance Handbook of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

to consider, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and to resolve
any issues of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the auditing process
in accordance with applicable accounting standards;

to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations with the external auditors before the auditing
commences, and to ensure co-ordination where more than
one audit firm are involved,;

to review and monitor the integrity of the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, reports and accounts of
the Company, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein, before submission to the
Board, focusing particularly on any changes in accounting
policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant
adjustments resulting from the audit, etc.

to review the Company’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal
control and to ensure the management has discharged its
duties in maintaining an effective internal control system;

to review the external auditors’ letter to the management
and answer any material queries raised by the auditors to
management in respect of the accounting records, financial
accounts or system of internal control;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’'s letter to the
management;

to report to the Board on the matters set out herein and,
in particular, the matters required to be performed by the
Audit Committee under the Corporate Governance Code;

to act as the key representative body overseeing the
Company'’s relationship with the external auditors; and
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(xi) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary).

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year.
Besides, the Audit Committee also held two meetings with the
external auditors for the discussions on issues including the
accounting policies adopted by the Group, internal control and
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16
March 2012. Currently the Nomination Committee comprises one
executive Director, Mr. Zhang Feng, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Poon
Ka Yeung and Mr. Yu Bo. Mr. Zhang Feng is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
(the “Policy”) which became effective on 1 September 2013. A
summary of this Policy together with the measureable objectives
set for implementing this Policy, and the progress towards
achieving those objectives are outlined below.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for
identifying qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with candidates being considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of this Policy.

Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
members discussed the policy for the nomination of Directors and
evaluated the Board Diversity Policy of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 August
2005, comprising one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing
Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Poon Ka Yeung is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The scope of duties
of the Remuneration Committee is stated in the Corporate
Governance Handbook of the Company.

The principal terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are prepared in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
include:

() pursuant to code provision B.1.2(c)(ii), making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and the
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(i) the determination of the remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company and the making of recommendations to the Board
of the remuneration of the non-executive Directors; and

(i) the review and approval of their performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
of the Company resolved by the Board from time to time.
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The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
of the Directors according to their expertise, knowledge and
commitment to the Company with reference to the Company’s
profitability and the prevailing market conditions. The
Remuneration Committee should consult the executive Director
and the General Manager about its proposals relating to the
remuneration of the Senior Management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.

(E) Record of number of Board and committee

FHEZBRENRESTNEXERRE A
BEBHARANER 2RARA
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(E) EXEERMBZREESERRY

meetings and Directors’ attendance REEEN H:';J’ﬁfaBﬁ’
During the Year, the number of Board and committee meetings and REERN EZFRMNBZESERAK
Directors’ attendance are set out below: REEFZEEDRENT

Annual General Audit Nomination = Remuneration
Directors Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
S RRBFASE =g EREEY REZE" FHESS
Zhang Feng (Chairman) 11 4/4 N/A ival 171
g () NEA
Chai Xiang Dong (Chief Executive Officer) 171 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
LemsR (7TEAEE) TiEMA TEA NiE A
Xu Yan He 11 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
TRIRA TEMA TiEA NiE A
Liu Zhan Jun 171 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
2EE TEMA TEA NiE A
Yu Lin 1Al 4/4 4/4 N/A N/A
Tk TEH i A
Ren De Quan 71 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
RR LY NEA E A TiERA
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 11 4/4 4/4 171 11
Sk EE
Poon Ka Yeung 11 4/4 4/4 11 11
ERS
Huang Yao Wen (note (1)) 11 3/4 N/A 171 N/A
FHEX TiEMA TiEA
Yu Bo (note (2)) 171 1/4 N/A 0/1 N/A
T3 TEMA NiEA
Notes: Biet -

(1) Mr. Huang Yao Wen retired as an independent non-executive Director and
member of the Nomination Committee on 5 August 2013;

(2)  Mr. Yu Bo was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
member of the Nomination Committee on 5 August 2013.
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(F) Continuous Professional Development for

Directors

During the Year, each member of the Board has attended relevant
professional development such as trainings or seminars according to
their own professionals. The Company also gave advice to Directors
from time to time in respect of training courses. At the same time, the
Company arranged Stephenson Harwood, the Company’s legal advisor,
to provide training in relation to “duties and responsibilities of a director
of a company that listed on the GEM” for all Directors and part of the
management of the Company on 11 November 2013. All Directors of
the Company (except an executive Director), the senior management
officers of the Group including the Company Secretary and the
supervisor of the Company have attended such training in person.

(G) Chairman and General Manager (Chief

Executive Officer)

As the leader of the Board, the Chairman is responsible for the
approval and supervision of the overall strategies and policies of the
Company, approval of annual budgets and business plans, evaluation
of the Company’s performance and oversight of the management. The
General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company. The articles of the association of the Company has set out
the role and powers of the Chairman and General Manager. The roles
of the Chairman and General Manager should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

(H) Directors’ Responsibility for Accounts

(1)

The Directors have confirmed and acknowledged their responsibility for
the preparation of the Company’s financial statements is in compliance
with the relative regulations and applicable accounting standards. The
Board has also warranted that the Company’s financial statements
would be distributed in due course.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, an amount of approximately RMB1,938,000
(2012:RMB1,751,000) was charged to the Group’s income statement
for the external auditors’ services.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the system of internal control
of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. To facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, the Company emphasizes the
importance of a sound internal control system. The Company’s system
of internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance against
any material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business objectives.

During the Year, the management of the Company has appointed
an external consultant to review the effectiveness of the internal
control system with focus on risk management of the Company and
has submitted the results of the review and its recommendations and
opinions for consideration to the Audit Committee and the Board. The
Audit Committee and the Board have discussed the relevant results
of the review and appropriate modifications will be made to the
management system of the Company according to the findings and
recommendations therein. The Board is satisfied that, based on the
information supplied, coupled with its own observations and with the
assistance of the Audit Committee, the present internal controls and
risk management process are satisfactory for the nature and size of the
Group's operations and business.

(K) Constitutional Documents

(L)

The constitutional documents of the Company have been published
both on the GEM and the Company’s website. The Company’s articles
of association have been amended upon the approval on the EGM held
on 15 Oct 2012.

Shareholder’s Rights

(i)  According to the article of association of the Company, two or
more shareholders holding more than 10% or more of the shares
with voting rights can sign one or more written requests with
the same format and contents, requesting the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, and stating the topics of the
meeting. After receipt of the aforesaid written request, the Board
shall hold the extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible.
If the Board does not distribute the notice on holding the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
shareholder(s) putting forward such requirement can convene
the meeting on his/their own within four months after the Board
receives such request.
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(ii)

(iii)

AN

Shareholders of the Company can make enquires to the Board
or the Company in relation to corporate governance or other
matters. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company, by email to hjb@interlong.com, or by fax to
(86) 755 26416299 ext.8014 or by mail to Room F, 18th Floor,
Tower A, Neptunus Mansion, Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend and give advice
in the general meeting, or appoints proxies to attend general
meetings, and vote for them when they could not attend general
meetings. Under appropriate circumstances, chairman of the
Board, other members of the Board, Chairman of committees
under the Board or representative appointed by them, and
external auditors would attend general meeting of the Company,
and they would answer for the shareholders. They will also
consider or respond to the suggestions made by shareholders.

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting, the shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with detailed contact information to the Company, by
email to hjb@interlong.com, or by fax to (86) 755 26416299 ext.8014
or by mail to Room F, 18th Floor, Tower A, Neptunus Mansion, Nanhai
Avenue, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.
The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the general meeting.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

ESTHRE

To: All shareholders

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has exercised its powers
seriously to safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders,
complied with the principle of good faith, discharged its duties
conscientiously and undertaken tasks in a diligent and proactive manner
in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the relevant Hong Kong
laws, regulations and the articles of association of the Company (the
" Articles of Association”).

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed in detail and
approved the audited financial statements and this report which will be
presented at the annual general meeting. Supervisors of the Company have
reviewed prudently the operation and development plans of the Company,
and carried out strict and effective supervision as regards whether major
decision-making and exact decisions by the management of the Company
are in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association and safeguard the interests of shareholders. Supervisors
believe that during the Year, the operating results of the Company were
sufficient to reflect its position, and all expenses and costs incurred were
reasonable. The profit sharing scheme was in the long-term interest of
shareholders and the Company. The provision for statutory surplus reserve
and public welfare fund made during the Year has complied with the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee,
no Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to
have abused his authority or have harmed the interests of shareholders
and employees. To the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee, no
Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to have
violated any applicable laws or regulations, the Articles of Association or the
relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. Supervisors
believe that the Directors and other senior management of the Company
have strictly observed their respective duties and acted prudently and
exercised their powers in good faith in the best interest of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is full of confidence in the
future of the Company and would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to all shareholders, Directors and staff for their strong support to
the Supervisory Committee.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xiong Chu Xiong
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
21 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Crowe Horwath..

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 177, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2013 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International
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9/F Leighton Centre,
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Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

%55 Main +852 2894 6888
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR A Ry

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 March 2014

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEeBmK

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

2013 2012
—E-—=F —ET——fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
s ARET T ARETT
TURNOVER = 2 3,12 611,666 530,458
COST OF SALES SHE A (360,504) (334,960)
GROSS PROFIT EF 251,162 195,498
OTHER REVENUE Hablg A 4 6,051 11,371
OTHER NET INCOME HA g A H 58 4 1,196 625
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HFx< (101,640) (75,743)
Administrative expenses TEFES (59,039) (48,253)
Other operating expenses H AR (46,478) (36,305)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS KRR 51,252 47,193
Finance costs B & 5(a) (7,684) (6,590)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BRABH A1 a2 F 5 43,568 40,603
Income tax FriS i 6(a) 3,430 (4,525)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 46,998 36,078
Attributable to: AT EELL -
Owners of the Company PAN/NGIEZZ DN 35,855 24,298
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A 11,143 11,780
46,998 36,078
Earnings per share sRER
Basic and diluted EAREE 11 2.14 cents & 1.45 cents 7>
The notes on pages 59 to 177 form part of these financial statements. %59 %=
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and OtherComprehensive Income

GEeBEaRkHEMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE_Z—=F+_"_H=+—HItFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETIT
Profit for the year AEERR 46,998 36,078
Other comprehensive income AEENEMEEKE
for the year - -
Total comprehensive income REEHEZENSALE
for the year 46,998 36,078
Attributable to: DU FEL
Owners of the Company RAREE A 35,855 24,298
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 2 11,143 11,780
Total comprehensive income AEENEZEKSHARE
for the year 46,998 36,078
The notes on pages 59 to 177 form part of these financial statements. FE59BEE 177 BRI R I F I HRR A —
o e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-—=F —F——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR¥T T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - WE k& 13 184,790 164,635
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 14 67,159 68,729
Intangible assets | EE 15 140,247 130,770
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEYE  BEREESN
plant and equipment Ze 16 11,570 2,614
Deposit for acquisition of land BE L Hhmitse 17 17,330 17,330
Available-for-sale investments A HHERE 19 300 300
Deferred tax assets IR IR B B 26(b) 1,491 1,308
422,887 385,686
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories rE 20 120,743 134,365
Trade and other receivables JFE Ui B 5% R EL i R LK R TR 21 114,940 81,931
Tax recoverable A el R IE 26(a) 28 1,328
Pledged bank deposit EHIRRITIER 22 - 19,060
Fixed deposit TE BifF K 23 2,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEY 23 253,511 248,366
491,222 485,050
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBEE
Trade and other payables JEATBR SR M oA A< 5B 24 187,954 211,689
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 25 86,000 86,000
Entrusted loans from the immediate BB AREFLER
parent company 27 9,000 9,000
Deferred revenue IRAEW 29(0) 2,282 =
Current taxation BNHATS 18 26(a) 7,446 5,543
(292,682) (312,232)
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFH 198,540 172,818
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEERREEE 621,427 558,504

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBORR

As at 31 December 2013
RZB—=F+=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(= AR¥T T AREET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Financial assistance from the immediate =15 ISYNG|
parent company &R 28 27,000 =
Deferred revenue FEIEW 29(c) 12,608 3,937
Deferred tax liabilities FERIE S F 26(b) 21,215 36,213
(60,823) (40,150)
NET ASSETS EEFE 560,604 518,354
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to PN 2= DN
owners of the Company bR
Share capital A& 30 167,800 167,800
Reserves A 31 308,878 273,171
476,678 440,971
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEER R 83,926 77,383
TOTAL EQUITY ERsE 560,604 518,354

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March

2014.

RIB-—ME=A -+ HEEFSHERRE

T -

Zhang Feng Chai Xiang Dong
REE 4emR
Director Director
5ZE =
The notes on pages 59 to 177 form part of these financial statements. ES9EFEFE 177 BN A UL S KR —
5 o
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Statement of Financial Position

BFBEAR L AR

As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LiEss ARBT T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 13 13,112 14,734
Intangible assets | EE 15 5 12
Investments in subsidiaries RITEB AR HIEE 18 546,520 499,440
Deposit for acquisition of property, HBEME  BEX
plant and equipment RERIRS 16 38 =
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 19 300 300
Deferred tax assets IR IR E B 26(b) 969 969
560,944 515,455
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables FEMS R R B o Ath 8 LR IE 21 79,466 59,988
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEY 23 11,277 78,579
90,743 138,567
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and other payables JEATBR 3R M E A AT 5RTB 24 31,484 36,873
Entrusted loans from the immediate HEBEERARERER
parent company 27 9,000 9,000
Deferred revenue RIEW = 29(c) 588 =
Current taxation BNHATS 18 26(a) 2,342 2,342
(43,414) (48,215)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 47,329 90,352
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&ERREEE 608,273 605,807
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Statement of Financial Position
7 SN
B RSR
As at 31 December 2013
RZZE—=%+=-A=+—H
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Fa5E AR¥T T AREET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREAE
Deferred revenue EEW 29(0) 1,513 2,689
(1,513) (2,689)
NET ASSETS EEFE 606,760 603,118
EQUITY ez
Equity attributable to PN 2= DN
owners of the Company bR
Share capital A& 30 167,800 167,800
Reserves i 31 438,960 435,318
TOTAL EQUITY FETRAAEE 606,760 603,118
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March RE-ZE-—MOF=A - t+—HLEFSHERKE

2014.

Zhang Feng
R

Director

EE

The notes on pages 59 to 177 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e ER

As at 31 December 2013

RZZE—=%+=-RA=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROFEA AL
Statutory Non-
Share Share  reserve  Capital Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium fund  reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity

R RGEE ZENR ARG ZHER NOFERER AR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
(Note30) ~ (Note31)  (Note 31)
(&£30)  (MsE31)  (BaE3n)

At 1 January 2012 RZE-—5-F-H 167,800 554,844 12276 (194339) (123,908) 416,673 69,603 486,276
Change in equity for 2012 ZE-CEREEY
Profit for the year AEEER - - - - 24298 24298 11,780 36078
Total comprehensive income AEENEEANEEE

for the year, net of tax (5 %) - - - - 24298 24298 11,780 36,078
Dividend paid from subsidiary TR ER

to non-controlling interests HHERZRS - - - - - - (4,000 (4,000
Transfer to other reserves BRHE MRS - - 5,633 - (563 - - -
At 31 December 2012 R=ZB-=§+-A=1-H 167,800 554,844 17909  (194339)  (105,243) 440971 77,383 518,354
At 1 January 2013 R-F—=F-F-H 167,800 554,844 17,909 (194339)  (105,243) 440,971 77383 518354
Change in equity for 2013 SER-CEERED
Profit for the year REEER - - - - 3585 35855 11,143 46998
Total comprehensive income REENR2ENHAR

for the year, net of tax (FHi#) - - - - 3585 35855 11,143 46998
Dividend paid from subsidiary TR

to non-controlling interests HEBRERS - - - - - - (4,600)  (4,600)
Deemed distribution arising on REETREMELD

the acquisition of Neptunus Changjian RIEDK - - = (148) = (148) = (148)
Transfer to other reserves ERHMEE - - 4,807 - (4,807) - = =
At 31 December 2013 RZB-=§+ZA=1-A 167,800 554,844 22,716 (194,487) (74,195 476,678 83,926 560,604
The notes on pages 59 to 177 form part of these financial statements. FEIBEF 177 BN EBA I S B hRA —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

7R Eﬂiﬂaﬁﬁzj"bggiigz

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE_Z—=F+_"_H=+—HItFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E ARBTT ARETIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEER
Profit before taxation FR 2% B A 43,568 40,603
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation e 18,042 16,421
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE 5 T E FOE 5 1,570 1,570
Amortisation of intangible assets T B B 4,160 3,957
Impairment of trade receivables FEUBR FORE 379 504
Impairment of other receivables Eith e RIE R E 331 65
Recovery of impairment on FEURBR TR (B R T
trade receivables (1,154) (282)
Recovery of impairment on H At fEWGRIB R E
other receivables [l (32) (148)
Write off of other payable H A FE AT FRIE I (10) (195)
Finance costs W5 A 7,684 6,590
Interest income FEYA (2,186) (1,508)
Subsidy income released from R A IRE =R
deferred revenue WA (3,340) (8,911)
Written down of inventories WoRF & 6,957 359
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEERSSE - 649
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE RZE
plant and equipment "E1E 442 412
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESHE 76,411 60,086
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R, /() 10,061 (40,390)
Increase in trade and other receivables JFEE L32 BIR 3R R LAt R LS R TR 385 (16,130) (4,498)
(Decrease)/increase in trade JRE 15 BIR 5 R EL At P A5 SRR
and other payables CRA) /18 hn (31,698) 46,658
(37,767) 1,770
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
/\‘/ N Eﬁzi;/zﬁ:%%

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+_A=+—HILEE

2013 2012
—EBE-=F —F——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR¥T T ARETFT
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS REEERS 38,644 61,856
Income tax paid — PRC EHFEH — (9,653) (10,228)
CASH GENERATED FROM REFHELERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 28,991 51,628
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME  BERELENZRS
plant and equipment (10,071) (1,115)
Deposit for acquisition of land BB TS - (8,700)
Payment for purchase of property, BEYX  BEREENNR
plant and equipment (36,792) (46,710)
Net cash outflow for acquisition IR I A RV ER €07 558
of a subsidiary 34 (2,661) -
Payment for expenditure of intangible assets & & & F S A~ 3K (12,630) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « BEKREN
plant and equipment Fr{S 5838 53 157
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BHEPIRITIFK
bank deposits (35 hn) 19,060 (8,892)
Interest received B RS 2,186 1,508
Government grants received AT A B U A 14,293 1,405
Increase in fixed deposits TE BR1F EE 0 (2,000) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REZHFMARESERE
ACTIVITIES (28,562) (62,347)

YT ERBEEVRMBROBRAT  2013FF5H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meaRenER
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T—=F+_A=+—HIFE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FasE AR¥T T AREET T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES SE5TH
Proceeds from new bank loans I IRITE FKFTS 5KIE 86,000 91,000
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER (86,000) (81,000)
Proceeds from financial assistance B R B A RIS E B AT
from a fellow subsidiary I8 - 10,000
Repayment of financial assistance to a A EE PN U5 =8
fellow subsidiary (10,000) -
Proceeds from financial assistance HES QR EBAERIE
from the immediate parent company 27,000 30,000
Repayment of financial assistance EEEE RIS AR
to the immediate parent company - (7,000)
Proceeds from entrusted loan from the HEBES QR RTEAREHRIEAE
immediate Parent company - 30,000
Repayment of entrusted loans from the HEESARERZER
immediate parent company - (30,000)
Interest paid BAFLE (7,684) (6,590)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests AN EH5E AR 2o O L2, (4,600) (4,000)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING E& B EL B RE
ACTIVITIES 4,716 32,410
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH REPRESEEYIEM
EQUIVALENTS HE 5,145 21,691
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—BA—HWREREELEEY
AT | JANUARY 248,366 226,675
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-A=+t—HWEER
AT 31 DECEMBER REZEEY 23 253,511 248,366

The notes on pages 59 to 177 form part of these financial statements.

o
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a)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are consistent with those set out in the Group’s
2012 annual financial statements except for changes in accounting
policies, if required, in adopting new or revised HKFRSs and
interpretations that are first effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Note 2 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), and it is also the functional currency of the Company and the
Group's presentation currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousand except where otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), and it is also the
functional currency of the Company and the Group’s presentation
currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statement is the historical cost basis.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE

a)

b)

By 755 S 3R B &

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have a significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 39.

c¢) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those return
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

b)

(9)
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)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

)

d)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)),
the investment is classified as held for sale.

unless

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

e  a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in a business combination and the
potential tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards
of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result
of the acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

o assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits;
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d)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

d)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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e)

f)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investments in equity securities

Available-for-sale equity securities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve except foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised directly in profit or loss. When these investments
are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses (see note 1(j)) at the end of the
reporting period.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group and/
or the Company commits to purchase/sell the investments or when they
expire.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(j)).

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

f)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value of 5% to 10%
on cost, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;

—  other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements 5 to 30 years or over the

remaining term of
the lease, if shorter

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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f)

g)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and machinery and
equipment under construction and equipment pending installation,
which is stated at cost less any recognised impairment losses. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when substantially all of
the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are completed. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

Technical know-how 10 years
Computer software 5to 10 years
Trademarks 10 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

g) Intangible assets (Continued)
Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sales;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.
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g)

h)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Other intangible assets arising from business combinations
Anesthetic drug production & selling right, trade name, customer list
and selling licenses acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The anesthetic drug production &
selling right and trade name has indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less impairment losses. The useful life of the anesthetic drug production
& selling right and trade name are considered by the management of
the Group as indefinitely because the anesthetic drug production &
selling right, and trade name is expected to contribute to the Group's
net cash inflows indefinitely. The customer list and selling licenses has
a finite useful life of 10 years and 5 years respectively and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the useful life.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exception:

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HILEFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESTHBER (&)
h) Leased assets (Continued) h) HEEE(H&)

ii)  Assets acquired under finance leases i) WRIEBEHEEEHEE
Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, AR ERERERSESEENGE
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset or, if A BIEEREEEEATENS
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments of such B R (HRE)  ZZFEEREHRS
assets are included in property, plant and equipment and the NRMIBE - Dt AWE - BE KRR
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as % MEHBRVERIOEEER’ET
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates SR ABRBEREEENEME - YRE
which write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant AR FE T RITE - UMiEEE
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the KA S ASEEEEREEEN
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(f). Impairment AR BlABERR{FE RS (apf
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting 5 1(F) Pk ) o BB ES TR T AR R Ek i B
policy as set out in note 1()). Finance charges implicit in the lease (B EETEERETIR - HENRP AT
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of the BeryBsERTRELNBBG AR
leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate miE - NES SRS RGREEE
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each EROBHEHERRE
accounting period.

iii) Operating lease charges iif) AEFHERE
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, EAEERBESEHEMEGEERS
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or A - AIRBHEANNRIIREEF
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered MR ERN gt R NRBERE MDA
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more Balk RIFFEARKRESHESR
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the 2 2 19 77 2 A0 B B o BT URER &Y
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit HeRB KBRS ﬁﬁﬁﬁu«u%%;ﬁrfﬁi
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments 1‘JL/TA/%?§EE’J¥L;| o o SATH & PR B
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the TR AR EP IR o
accounting period in which they are incurred.

iv) Leasehold land for own use iv) #HEEHMALH

Interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

REE LRI AKEREL
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AR ©
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j)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other
receivables
Investment in equity securities and other current and non-current
receivable that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale equity securities are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
= A
B 15 = B ot
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE—Z-—=F+"_F=+—HItFE
1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. FESTEER (&)
j)  Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EEREGE)
i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other ) RAESFKRER A M E EE
receivables (Continued) (%)
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy — EBATRESHEITERIEMEY
or other financial reorganisation; THEM

significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note
1()i). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(j)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
i)  Impairment of assets (Continued)
i) Impairment of investment in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
i)  Impairment of assets (Continued)
ii)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
—  prepaid lease payments;
— intangible assets; and

—  investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are
not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether
or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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1.

j)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)
Impairment of other assets (Continued)

ii)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying amount of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
i)  Impairment of assets (Continued)
iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare a quarterly financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of each quarter of the financial year. At the end of the
quarterly period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see note 1())).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would
have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

k) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses for doubtful debts (see note 1(j)).

) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

m) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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n)

o)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

i)

ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to central
pension scheme

The Group participates in the central pension scheme (the
“CPS") operated by the local government authority for all of
its employees. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll to the CPS to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
CPS is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the CPS.
Contributions under the CPS are recognised in profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
central pension scheme and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

p)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amount of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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p)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the payment of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against tax liabilities, if the Group or the Company has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—HILEFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 1. TESFEER (&)

p) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

-  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

gq) Provisions and contingent liabilities

p) FrEH ()
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o

q) BERIRER

i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations i) EBEHPRENEAEE
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which %%&A{FEF'{E FEHHABBTIERR
are present obligations at the date of acquisition are initially BWBRESEE VL BRAFE
recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably EE w(ﬂfﬂ AFEAIE A FEETE) o BR
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value, such ARFERZIABBENERDLERS
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount R BT E#E(WEA) - URAIRE
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation where HIEE 1(q)(i) R EMEEME RS
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in EER - EFEAHITNBEXAGE
accordance with note 1(g)(ii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a REEAISEFTE  HERSEAMS AL
business combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or were FBABE - BIRHTE1(g)) A EE -
not present obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with note 1(q)(ii).

ii)  Provisions and contingent liabilities i) EERIEAERE
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing EAREEN AR EIERRBEEHE
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or BEREEIETEET  MAJEER

constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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r)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts and
returns.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Commission income
Commission income are recognised when services are rendered.

Government grant

Government grants and subsidies are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants and subsidies that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit and loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

s) Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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1)

u)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:
i) has control or joint control over the Group;

i) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or the Group's parent.

b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

1.

u)

v)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management
(i.e. executive directors) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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w)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants and subsidies are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grants and subsidies will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grants and subsidies relate to an expense item, they are recognised
as income or net off against directly related borrowing costs (see note
1(t)), over the periods necessary to match the grants and subsidies on
a systematic basis to the costs that they are intended to compensate.
Where the grants and subsidies relate to an asset, they are presented
as deferred revenue and are released to the income statement over
they are expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are relevant to the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009-2011 Cycle

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangement

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these financial statements.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE

ZE—=F+A=+—HBIFE

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

The Group has not applied any new HKFRS that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period with the exception of the Amendments
to HKAS 36 — Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets,
which modify the disclosure requirements for impaired non-financial
assets. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014, but as permitted by the amendments,
the Group has adopted the amendments early. The adoption of
the amendments has had no material impact on disclosure in these
financial statements.

Except as described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items of
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or
loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would
never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in these financial statements
has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen
to use the new titles “consolidated statement of profit or loss” and
“consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” as introduced by the amendments in these financial
statements.
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Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are
required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set
off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these
financial statements because the Group has not offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into master netting arrangement or
similar agreement which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during
the periods presented.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation
— Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on
whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to
use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has control
over an investee. The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 January 2013.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHOBRLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE

ZE—=F+A=1+—HBIFE

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in notes 18.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements for
both financial instruments and non-financial instruments. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in notes 33. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does
not have any material impact on the fair value measurements of the
Group's assets and liabilities.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduces a number of amendments to
the accounting for defined benefit plans. Among them, revised HKAS
19 eliminates the “corridor method” under which the recognition of
actuarial gains and losses relating to defined benefit schemes could
be deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the expected average
remaining service lives of employees. Under the revised standard, all
actuarial gains and losses are required to be recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income. Revised HKAS 19 also changed the
basis for determining income from plan assets from expected return
to interest income calculated at the liability discount rate, and requires
immediate recognition of past service cost, whether vested or not.
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Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are production and sales of
medicines, sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products
and commission income derived from the distribution of food products
and healthcare food products in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold net of value-
added tax, after allowances for returns and trade discounts and
commission income.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

3. EX%H
ARENEEEBORREEREARLNE
(TRE ) EEMBEEY  HERHHE
RRRRARRARRGRRIEARNKH
EAE A ©

BEFEECEEmMEZFE (FRREER
FMOREME ZITHRENE) - RAZUA -

2013 2012

—EB—=F —E——4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFT

Sales of medicines B IHERE 496,578 529,795
Sales and distribution of medicines SHE K SH % R AR 2

and healthcare products 113,557 -

Commission income [EEAON 1,531 663

611,666 530,458

Further details regarding the Group'’s principal activities are disclosed in
note 18 to these financial statements.

FRASENIEXRB 2 E—SFBERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=Ft-A=tALFE

4. Other Revenue and Other Net Income 4. HAW AR EMU A FEE
2013 2012
—B—=F —E——fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MosE ARET T AREFTT
Other revenue Hig A
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF K S A 2,186 1,508
Total interest income on financial WIEB BB AT AT R
assets not at fair value SREBEERF S ABRE
through profit or loss 2,186 1,508
Subsidy income released from B B IR E W= B B
deferred revenue 29(a) 3,340 8,911
Others Hith 525 952
6,051 11,371
Other net income HibU A F 58
Recovery of impairment on FEU AR FORE Y D]
trade receivables 1,154 282
Recovery of impairment on A fE ORI E R B [E]
other receivables 32 148
Write off of other payables B L Ath R AT BR X 10 195
1,196 625

90 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Profit Before Taxation
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

5.

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

BRBE A= A
B BLATR R TSR A TR -

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
a) Finance costs a) UKEHR
Interest on bank loans wholly AFNEBHEERITERNF S
repayable within five years 5,191 4,760
Interest on financial assistance HESARMBEERHFE
from the immediate
parent company 2,493 1,400
Interest on financial assistance B 2T E A R B 75 & Bh R A2
from a fellow subsidiary - 430
Total interest expense on W IEE BB R A AT R
financial liabilities not at fair CRBENT SRR
value through profit or loss 7,684 6,590
b) Staff costs (including directors’ b) EIKA (BEEEME) :
remuneration)
Contributions to defined TERRMERGRIRET SRR
contribution retirement plan 14,379 11,482
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREMER 61,587 50,731
75,966 62,213

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AT + =
B B MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE—Z-—=F+_F=+—HItFE
5. Profit Before Taxation (Continued) 5. BR¥ADER (&)
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —T——F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
c¢) Otheritems ¢ HfEAR :
Amortisation BiH
— prepaid lease payments —TENEERRIE 1,570 1,570
— intangible assts * —EmAE" 4,160 3,957
Depreciation e
— assets held for own use — BB EHERIEAANEE
under operating leases 3,165 2,990
— other assets —Hth&EE 14,877 13,431
Impairment of A
— trade receivables * — FEUR AR R * 379 504
— other receivables * — Bt R YRR IE * 331 65
Write down of inventories * WoRFE* 6,957 359
Net foreign exchange loss b H B85 5 1,574 263
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZE « KE REENEE*
plant and equipment * 442 412
Loss on disposal of HERFEERSSE
intangible assets - 649
Auditor’s remuneration %SRS
— audit services — BT IR 1,280 1,200
— other services — H AR 658 551
Operating lease charges: KERERY : RIEHES
minimum lease payment 6,038 4,989
Cost of inventories FEKA 358,756 331,854
R&D costs * g ===k 33,809 30,878
* These amounts are included in “Other operating expenses” on the * hEL A ALABERN [Hibga

face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fix] A e
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6. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss

a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

™

VB IEERYIH SR

RiF R BERIIHLHIPFEHE

represents:
2013 2012
—B—=5F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Current tax BT IR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R B ZEATIS AL 12,647 9,801
Over provision for PRC AP B S FT1SAHY
Enterprise income tax fiaskE ] (1,440) (1,433)
Deferred tax EIEDE
Origination and reversal of I Z RN DT A K
temporary differences (671) (3,241)
Attributable to a change in AR =g
tax rate (13,966) (602)
(3.430) 4,525

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group,
had no income assessable to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
(2012: Nil).

On 9 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group established in the
PRC was recognised by the Fujian Province Bureau of Science and
Technology as a high technology enterprise. As at 31 December
2013, two subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
qualified as high technology enterprise. In accordance with the
applicable enterprise income tax of the PRC, these subsidiaries are
subject to the PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") at a preferential
rate of 15%.

The other PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC EIT at a rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 25%).

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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B A EBHE A RS BIKK A
BT SE o RIREAS A
BRI ZEMBRARZER15%NE
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BlEEMERREMNR (ZE—=F
25%) °

20135 F3R 93



Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T-=F+-A=+-BALEE

6. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss (Continued)
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at the

/N N _yf

-

applicable tax rates: M) S BR
2013 2012
—ET—-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Profit before taxation BRA% A& A 43,568 40,603
Notional profit on profit before  {ZFRTEABRAFLTS Rl AME [ Y% 7
taxation, calculated at the rates @ FAF: R+ E 555 BT FIEY
applicable to profits in the tax B A
jurisdictions concerned 6,880 5,061
Tax effect of non-deductible AR RS2
expenses 1,712 404
Tax effect of non-taxable income  FERRFR W as A9 F 7% 57 25 (1,398) (2,481)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERR AT ARIBEENTEE
not recognised 4,782 3,576
Over provision in prior year dTF R R (1,440) (1,433)
Decrease in opening deferred T B 5 5| VIR
tax liability resulting from HIEB RS
a change in tax rate (13,966) (602)
Actual tax (credit)/expenses BEEHE GTA) X (3.430) 4,525
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 7.

Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012 disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the chief executive’s (i.e. general manager)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

ESENRSRITRAEME

BE-%—

=FgFrR-_ZE—-—F+=-A

St HALFEEEMERERITRAR
(@) MeRIBEE B ARGIE 161 1%

remuneration are as follows: WEMT :
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2013
fees in kind contributions Total
F2ic N 41 BIRGHE —B-=F
E=He REWHS R #@st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR¥ETT ARETT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (General Manager)  4eRIE G4 (BEIE) - 632 37 669
Mr. Zhang Feng RIEEA - - - -
Mr. Xu Yan He IREAEE - 480 30 510
Non-executive directors *HTES
Ms. Yu Lin T+ - - - -
Mr. Ren De Quan FEREEE (RZZE—mE
(resigned on 31 January 2014) —A=+—HB&fT) 200 - - 200
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun B hERE - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTES
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SXBEFRE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ARG TE 106 - - 106
Mr. Huang Yao Wen \RXGEE (RZE—=F
(resigned on 5 August 2013) NBRBEE) 59 - - 59
Mr. Yu Bo (appointed on 5 August 2013)  F#ik4t (R-T—=%
NARABEZE) a4 - - M
618 1,112 67 1,797

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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by D
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_ZT—=F+-"A=+—HILFE
7. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 7. EERSRTHAEME ()
(Continued)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme 2012
fees inkind  contributions Total
e A RINETE —T——F
Yok REDF = % mEr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT AREFTT AREBFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chai Xiang Dong (General Manager) — 4¢mR&E4 (F45E) - 626 29 655
Mr. Zhang Feng REEEA - - - -
Mr. Xu Yan He TRERASE A - 376 24 400
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Yu Lin Tzt - - - -
Mr. Ren De Quan TEELE (W22 —F
(resigned on 31 January 2014) —RA=+—H&F) 200 = - 200
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 2| HFEEE - - - -
Independent non-executive directors B EHITES
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SIKBEFE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung ERGEE 106 - - 106
Mr. Huang Yao Wen BRXEE (RZE—=F
(resigned on 5 August 2013) NAFHEHE) 100 - - 100
618 1,002 53 1,673

Mr. Chai Xiang Dong is the director and the general manager of
the Company and is responsible for the Company’s day to day
management and overall activities. The remuneration of Mr. Chai for
2012 and 2013 is disclosed above.

During both years, no remuneration was paid or payable by the Group
to any of the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out
in note 8 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years. No bonus was paid or payable to directors which are
discretionary or are based on the Group’s performance.
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8.

10.

11.

a)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T =F1-A=tHLHFE

Individuals with Highest Emoluments 8. mEIMES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two RAFERAEB R R FTMNEEBE
(2012: two) are directors of the Company whose emoluments are ME(ZE—ZF: MB)ARAES A
included in the disclosures in note 7. The emoluments of the remaining B RMET  c HBR=%2(=2F——4%:
three (2012: three) individuals are as follows: =) EaFMEENSBESHT :
2013 2012
—g—=% —8——x
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Salaries and other benefits e RHEMF 5 1,206 1,325
Retirement scheme contributions RN RET 2 111 88
1,317 1,413
Their emoluments are all within the band HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 BE_ZT—=%KkK_-_ZT——%+_AH1
(equivalent to approximately RMB804,000) for years ended 31 =+ HUEFERSHFHEENTHEE
December 2013 and 2012. NS T =% 1,000,000 7T (FBER L
AR¥E804,0007T) °
Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company 9. KRATEE AR EF
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company ARAREEAEBGGEREMNBREERA
includes a profit of approximately RMB3,642,000 (2012: approximately RNAM B KR A ARE R & FOAR
RMB4,778,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements B3 642,000 ( ZE—ZF: HARK
of the Company. 4,778,000 7T) °
Dividends 10. R 2
The directors do not propose the payment of any dividend for the years EESVTERENEBEE=_ZE—=F+=A
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil). St BUEFERAKRE(ZZ—Z4F:
/) o
Earnings Per Share 1. 8REF
Basic earnings per share a) BREAXREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BRERBADBBEARARGESE AEGER
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately FH A R# 35,855,000 L( —F——4F : A
RMB35,855,000 (2012: approximately RMB24,298,000) and the R##724,298,0007T) * ARAFERNE B
weighted average number of 1,678,000,000 ordinary shares (2012: 17 B AR A N T ¥9 240 1,678,000,000 A%
1,678,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year. (ZZF——4% :1,678,000,000 f% & @A% ) 5+
& .
Diluted earnings per share b) BREEZREF

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years
presented.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHOBRLDE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

12. Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s executive directors for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

i) Manufacturing and selling of medicines
i)  Sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products
iii)  Provision of R&D services of modern biological technology

Currently all the Group'’s activities above are carried out in the PRC. No
reportable operating segment has been aggregated.

The first segment derives its revenue from the manufacture and sale of
medicines.

The second segment derives its revenue from sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products.

The third segment derives its revenue from the provision of R&D
services. During the year, the Group suspended the provision of R&D

services to external parties.

The other segment derives commission income from the distribution of
food products and healthcare food products.
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12. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s executive directors monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current assets
with the exception of deferred tax assets, tax recoverable and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other payables
attributable to the activities of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segments profit is “adjusted EBITDA”
i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as including investment
income and “depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning adjusted
EBITDA, the executive directors are provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings managed directly by
the segments, depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses and
additions to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 is set out below.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

12. Segment Reporting (Continued) 12. ZEbERE (&)

a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) a) NWEE BEEREE(H)
Sales and distribution
Manufacturing and of medicines and
selling of medicines healthcare products R & D services Others Total
LERHESR HERPHERRRRR G At @it
For the year ended 31 December 2013 2012 213 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HETZB=t-HLEE Zg-f -"%--f Z8-cF _“%--F ZB-Zf _"%-"f CZ8-2fF "T--F ZB-If “T-°%
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ABBTR ARETT ARMTR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETr ARETn ARETn ARETR
Segment revenue ABRA
Revenue from external customers — SMREFMA 496,578 529795 113557 - - - 1,531 663 611666 530458
Inter-seqment reventie AHERA 8,035 - 404 - - - - - 8439 -
Reportable segment revenue CLEGED N 504,613 529,795 113,961 - - - 1,531 663 620,105 530,458
Reportable segment profitt  THEA A/

(loss) hefore taxation (B8) (RBiA) 5430 74619 15099 - - (1520 1515 662 71004 60,080
Interest income from bank deposits /7725 E A (2,169) (1,308) (1) - = (200) - = (2,186) (1,508)
Interest expenses HER 7,684 5190 - = - 1,400 - = 7,684 6,590
Depreciation and amortisation & REH -

- Property, plant and equipment ~ —¥1% - BERFEE 17,831 13,172 1 - - 3,209 - - 1808 16,421

~ Prepaid lease payment -BNRENE 1570 1570 - - - - - - 1570 1570

- Intangible assets -BHEE 3,958 3,950 202 - - 7 - - 4,160 3,957
Write down of inventories i 3983 359 3014 - - - - - 6,957 359
Impairment of B

- trade receivables — RS 360 504 19 - - - - - 379 504

- other receivables —H R 331 55 - - - 10 - - 331 65
Recovery of impairment on HERD

~ trade receivables ~ el (1,154) (282) - - - - - - (1,154) (280)

~ other receivables - £t fElEE 32) (148) - - = = - = (32 (148)
Income tax expense FifeHE (1923) 4525 4493 - - - - - (3.430) 4525
Reportable segment assets TERAIPEE 859,692 714,089 56,485 - - 1371 - - 916177 867361
Additions to non-current assets  FREIAERE

(other than financial instrument~ (FMEESRTA

and deferred tax assets) RERREAE) 60365 16759 2,035 - - BB - - 6400 60394
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THHAHEE 29751 261481 31,210 - - 2926 - - 38731 310687
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12. Segment Reporting (Continued)

a)

b)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer with whom

transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group'’s revenue.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities

N R N
A

H‘"‘--#

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z—=F+"HA=+—HIFE

12. DERERE ()
a) SEEE BERAMEE

rEBEFEZ T /H\EPE’E%%?)EEE%E

IV GRBEAEBWARN10% °

iR

b) ARHSBUA - Bm - BEEREEBEHNY

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue AR R FBULA 620,105 530,458
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %3 ZBEIUC AL $5 (8,439) -
Consolidated turnover REEET 611,666 530,458
Profit gl
Reportable segment profit A] R R BB A 71,004 60,080
Elimination of inter-segment profit ban=i i binwlEsiis (102) =
Reportable segment profit derived REEEINREF HIA] R R
from the Group's external customers paN:ivinl 70,902 60,080
Other revenue and other net income  E AU A R UL A F 58 7,247 11,996
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE (23,772) (21,948)
Finance costs B & (7,684) (6,590)
Unallocated head office ROBBHER R AR
and corporate expense (3,125) (2,935)
Consolidated profit before taxation BREERTAR S = A 43,568 40,603

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE_Z—=F+_"_H=+—HItFE

12. Segment Reporting (Continued) 12. D EBERE (1 E)
b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, b) FHEFIIFWKA - CEERBENY
assets and liabilities (Continued) BR (48)
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR HPEE 916,177 867,861
Elimination of inter-segment receivables %30 fE U R IE I 85 (3.887) 61)
912,290 867,800
Unallocated head office and ROMBIHER R AREE
corporate assets 300 300
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE 1,491 1,308
Tax recoverable AT Ug [B] F 78 28 1,328
Consolidated total assets e EEBE 914,109 870,736
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AR D HBEE 328,731 310,687
Elimination of inter-segment payables %330 &1 UIE K (3.887) 61)
324,844 310,626
Tax payable FESTFRIR 7,446 5,543
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 21,215 36,213
Consolidated total liabilities e aEERE 353,505 352,382
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12. Segment Reporting (Continued)
9)

d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR L

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=F1-A=t—ALFE

12. 28| E (&)

Revenue from major products and services 0 REFTEEMRBRBHKA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major AT AEAREEF EERMRBEHWA D
products and services: o
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Medicines and healthcare products 220 R (R o 610,135 529,795
Commission itk 1,531 663
611,666 530,458
Geographic Information d) #hEER

The Group’s turnover and results from operations mainly derived from
activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group were located
in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by geographical
segment is provided.

AEEMEEBAREEEETIZRETH
MERKES - £ AEBENEIREEN
KPR - Bt - BB IR D RO -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B F5 Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. 1% - RERRME
a) The Group a) AKHE
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
Leasehold and Motor and  Construction-
Buildings improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment  in-progress Total
ELES e #E
BF 5 EERRE RE E ERIE 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
Cost BRAE
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=5-f-H 65,679 - 88,220 3,653 9,108 41,609 208,269
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—EHBAR - 768 - - 17 - 785
Additions AE 3123 - 4,785 - 5,684 - 13,592
Construction expenditure BRI ERRFR
capitalised - - - - - 24,315 24,315
Disposals e - - (2,755 (514) (227) (26) (3522)
Transfer in/(out) g/ (1) 4,867 2,230 2,762 - 4,012 (53,871) =
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=5+ZA=1-H 73,669 22,998 113,012 3,139 18,5% 12,027 243,439
Accumulated depreciation SHHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=5-f-H (6,343) - (32,168) (591) (3,698) (834) (43,634)
Charge for the year AEETH (3,165) (230) (11,533) (734) (2,380) - (18,042)
Eliminated on disposal of assets WEAERS - - 2,35 467 208 - 3,027
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=t-H (9,508) (230) (41,349) (858) (5,870) (834) (58,649)
Carrying amounts KEE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—ZH+ZA=T-H 64,161 22,768 71,663 2,281 12,724 11,193 184,790
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
a) The Group (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

13. )% - BERRE (E)
a) AEE ()

Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
Buildings machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
KB K5
BF  RBRERF AE B EETR &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTL  ARETT  ARRTRE  ARETR  AREBTR

Cost BRAE
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—-F—H 62,754 86,451 2,983 6,762 2,201 161,151
Additions NE 1,216 3,562 1,760 2,665 - 9,203
Construction expenditure BAMEERAS
capitalised - - - - 41,377 41,377
Disposals HE - (1,793) (1,090) (319 (260) (3,462)
Transfer in/(out) BN/ (i) 1,709 - - - (1,709) -
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F+=A=1—H 65,679 88,220 3,653 9,108 41,609 208,269
Accumulated depreciation  RiTERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 R-E——%—F—H (3,353) (22,495) (998) (2,426) (834) (30,106)
Charge for the year FEEZ (2,990) (11,246) (615) (1,570) = (16,421)
Eliminated on disposal HEBEREH
of assets - 1,573 1,022 298 - 2,893
At 31 December 2012 R=Z——#+-A=1-H (6,343) (32,168) (591) (3,698) (834) (43,634)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F+=A=1—H 59,336 56,052 3,062 5,410 40,775 164,635

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's buildings with a
total carrying amount of approximately RMB35,786,000 (2012:
approximately RMB32,523,000) were pledged as part of the
securities to secure the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings of
RMB86,000,000 (2012: RMB86,000,000) (Note 25).

R_ZT—=F+_A=+—H  EEERLSE
#E AR 35,786,000 L (—ZZE——4F : 4
AR#32,523,00070) & TAEEETF -
ERERASEEIS S ERR - LEEERE
BIRTTEARBE AR 86,000,000 T (=F
—— % : AR¥86,000,0007T)(Hffz£25) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
+ =
B R 5 B
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-S-—=F+-"A=t+—HILFE
13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 13. 1%  BENEE (8)
b) The Company b) ZA&AF
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and Construction-
machinery vehicles  equipment in-progress Total
HE #£8
HERRE AE PEL] EEIR st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR  AR®TR

Cost RRAE
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—f—H 31,023 985 3,048 887 35,943
Additions R 301 - 601 609 1,511
Transfer in/(out) g1/ (1) - - 662 (662) -
Disposals HE (107) (412) (103) = (622)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+ZA=1—H 31,217 573 4,208 834 36,832
Accumulated depreciation REHERHE
and impairment
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=45-A—A (18,021) (609) (1,745) (834) (21,209)
Charge for the year REER (2,632) (29) (408) - (3,069)
Eliminated on disposals of assets HEBEREH 94 3N 92 - 558
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+-A=1+—H (20,559) (266) (2,061) (834) (23,720)
Carrying amounts BHEE
At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=4+ZA=1—H 10,658 307 2,147 - 13,112
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=F1-A=t—ALFE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 13. 1% - BEREE (&)
b) The Company (Continued) b) ZA2AF (&)
Furniture,
Plant fixtures
and Motor and  Construction-
machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
KB K5
GG HE Rk ERIR by

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AREBTR  ARETL  ARETL  ARETR

Cost RRAE
At 1 January 2012 RZE——%-F—H 34,440 942 2,221 834 38,437
Additions AR 12 318 1,058 - 1,388
Construction expenditure capitalised BAMEERFAR - - - 53 53
Disposals HE (3,429) (275) (231) = (3,935)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F+-A=+-H 31,023 985 3,048 887 35,943
Accumulated depreciation RIHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—F—H (16,792) (847) (1,689) (834) (20,162)
Charge for the year AFELH 2,718) (9) (265) = (2,992)
Eliminated on disposals of assets HEEERH 1,489 247 209 = 1,945
At 31 December 2012 WZE——%+t-A=+-H (18,021) (609) (1,745) (834) 21,209
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 13,002 376 1,303 53 14,734
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILLEFE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 13. 1% - BEREE (&)
c¢) The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold properties is as ) HEYEMNEREE2HTOT :
follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F =4
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥TT ARBTFT
Outside Hong Kong EHREN
Long-term leases REEE 1,230 -
Medium-term leases REFRE 130,090 128,065
131,320 128,065
Representing (1.3
Buildings carried at cost LKA AR EF 64,161 59,336
Interest in leasehold land held for REEME T HREER
own use under operating leases HE LR iEs 14 67,159 68,729
131,320 128,065
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AT £ =3
P el
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z—=F+"_A=+—HILFE
14. Prepaid Lease Payments 14. B HERIE
The Group REHE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTT
Cost B AE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H 72,000 72,000
Accumulated depreciation ZFtITE R #H
and amortisation
At 1 January R—H—H (3.271) (1,701)
Charge for the year REFZZ M (1,570) (1,570)
At 31 December W+=A=+—H (4,841) (3,271)
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 67,159 68,729
All the prepaid lease payments represent interest in land situated in the FrERNEERBREEBETNHEELRS
PRC under medium term leases which were amortised over the lease MRS i ZSAMNAERER
term of 50 years on a straight-line basis. 750 SFHE & BRI R B AR A B H o
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, all of the Group's prepaid R-IE—=FR-_FTE——F+-_A=+—
lease payment were pledged to secure the Group’s bank loan of H: AEERERENEEFREEEAANE
RMB86,000,000 (2012: RMB86,000,000) (Note 25). ER1TERARK86,000,000t(=ZF—=
F : AR¥86,000,0007T ) (KizE25) Ky I8

o
AR °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AT + =
AR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T-——Ft+-A=-+—RALFE
15. Intangible Assets 15. B &=
a) The Group a) AKHE
Anesthetic
drug Internally
production Technical  developed
Computer and selling Trade  Customer  know-how technical Selling
software ~ Trademarks rights name list ~ acquired  know-how licences Total

BE  AEER #E
Bla#fr BE RREERE RHAE  BFRE RMNR  REMR PR it
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RVBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTL ARMIL ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARBTL  ARETR ARETR

Cost A
At 1 January 2012 R=E--5-F-H 356 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 - 649 - 140,208
Written-off ik - - - - - - (649) = (649)
At 31 December 2012 i
and 1 January 2013 +-h=1-A
k=%-=£-B-H 356 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 - - - 139,559
Arising from acquisition WEBTRE
of Neptunus Changjian ELREE - - - - - - - 1,007 1,007
Additions HE 37 - - - - 6,000 6,593 - 12,630
At 31 December 2013 WoE-=%
T-h=1-H 393 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 6,000 6,593 1,007 153,196
Accumulated amortisation  EifM#REE
and impairment
A1 January 2012 R-E-—£-f-R (356) (56) - - ) - - R ]
Charge for the year AEESH - ) - - (3,950) - - = (3,957)
At 31 December 2012 i 3
and 1 January 2013 tZA=t-BR
“3-25-3-8 (356) (63 - L - - - B
Charge for the year REER 1) (7) - - (3,950) - - (202) (4,160)
At 31 December 2013 WoE-=%
T-h=1-H (357) (70) - - (12320) - - (202) (12,949
Carrying amounts HEf
At 31 December 2013 R_E-Z%
T-A=t-H 36 5 53,143 46,483 27,182 6,000 6,593 805 140,247
At 31 December 2012 R_F-
T-R=1-H - 12 53,143 46,483 31,132 - - - 130,770
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15. Intangible Assets (Continued)

b)

A% N

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

15. BILEE ()

The Company b) ZA&A2AF
Computer
software Trademarks Total
B e g st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT AREFIT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2012, RZZE——F—H—QH-
1 January 2013 and RZZ2—=F—HA—H &k
31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 356 75 431
Accumulated amortisation R RRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 W—ZE——%—A—H (356) (56) (412)
Charge for the year REFTH = (7) 7)
At 31 December 2012 RZB——F+-A=+—H "
and 1 January 2013 ;=F—=F—H—H (356) (63) (419
Charge for the year REFZH = (7) 7)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+"H=+—H (356) (70) (426)
Carrying amounts SRMEE
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-H=+—H - 5 5
At 31 December 2012 W—_ZE——F+=-_F=+—H = 12 12

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other operating

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. KPR | 7 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

15. Intangible Assets (Continued)

c¢) Intangible assets arising from business combination
The anesthetic drug production & selling right, trade name and
customer list are intangible assets acquired on 30 November 2010
through the acquisition of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd (“Neptunus Fuyao”).

Anesthetic drug production & selling right represents the fair value of
the rights as at the acquisition date in respect of the production and
selling specific anesthetic drug in the PRC.

The anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name are
considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows to the
Group indefinitely. It is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may have been impaired.

Selling licences are intangible assets acquired on 4 January 2013
through the acquisition of the 100% equity interests in Shenzhen
Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Neptunus
Changjian”).

d) Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the anesthetic drug
production & selling right and trade name was approximately
RMB126,652,000 (2012: approximately RMB91,077,000) and
approximately RMB74,023,000 (2012: approximately RMB65,728,000)
respectively, which were assessed by reference to a valuation
carried out by Shing Yin Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer of the Group and with appropriate qualification and
experience in the valuation of similar assets in the relevant industry. In
the opinion of the Company’s directors, no impairment to the carrying
amount of the anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade
name as at 31 December 2013 is required since its fair value as at the
date of the report is higher than its carrying amount of approximately
RMB53,143,000 (2012: approximately RMB53,143,000) and
approximately RMB46,483,000 (2012: approximately RMB46,483,000)
respectively.

15.

(9]

d)

BILEE (&)
EBAGEENRTRE

W HEMNE - $BAWRESBEIR
“E-TF+-A=t+EEAKBENE
IREHEARAR (VSTBE])
M AR -

TA W B B A i e 65 7 8 HEE 7 5 E D I 2 O
EHE BEZCREETRAERIEEM
RENERNATE -

ANER BB IR R A I B B S M A B SR TS
TR A P 6 HARE T AR EE - R IR 2 B 5
AR XIS MIRHIN R A K B E R )T
NFREMA ° ZBRB BFETRER -
NMAABRE PR BRI REBRIE

HEMFARDIN - T—=F—AWBEB
WERIBETREEBEERAR(IEER
212 EMEBNBTEE -

REFWENSHMBEEHERERKSR
B

MN-TE—=F+-"A=+—08 MEEE
HENREBEBOATFTEIFAHAR
#126,652,000 C(ZE——F : YARE
91,077,000 7T ) & #) A R % 74,023,000 7T
—T——%F: $HH A\R#¥ 65,728,000 ) °
Th 2 BB S A AN 5 B KO 08 S B S (B AT B
PIRTEER AR (EEA HHEETEEUE
EETHEMNER RER) (ELMEERE
TalE - RABIEEZRAE - AR EEE
HELAREBABRHFERAHNATES
RIEREBRE(EL A K 53,143,000 (=%
——fF : #H) AR ¥53,143,00070) R4 A
R#46,483,000c(—TE——F: H AR
#46,483,0007T) A= MEFHEN=Z
—=F+-A=t+—HBMEAEETRE -
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15. Intangible Assets (Continued)

d)

e)

Anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of the anesthetic drug production &
selling right is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budget
approved by the executive directors covering a four-year period. Cash
flows beyond four-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3% which is consistent with the
forecasts. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the pharmaceutical industries. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 24%. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

The recoverable amount of trade name is determined based on the
fair value of trade name as measured using a royalty rate of 4.5% on
sale and discount rate of 24%. The annual sales was projected base on
financial budget approved by the executive directors covering four-year
period and has been extrapolated using an average 3% growth rate.
The average 3% growth rate is based on the average 10-year consumer
price index of the PRC and does not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the pharmaceutical industries.

The anesthetic drug production & selling right and trade name has an
indefinite useful life which was assessed by the management at the end
of reporting period.

Customer list

The customer list has a finite useful life and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 10 years. The useful life of the customer list is
determined with reference to the estimated future revenue from the
customer list which is based on historical information. The management
is of the view that the future economic benefits that can be derived
from the customer list beyond the 10-year period are insignificant.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements
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15. BILEE ()

d) REBUBETDEHNMBEEEFERE
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IV P S E SR LA S 3675 2 R O T W ] 2 B
TRBEREENTEIEZMEE - %F
ENRERERTESRMEZ MFE R
BEEAEENBRERAAMAE - B8
PUEHY 2 3R B 8 30% BV fA ET ke
IR R (EENE—BOETER - £4
MEREXIASRBABETRNRAFIHE
X -ReREMFTHER24%  ERAH
MRS HARIRE - WRIRE R D B H
e R o

EBABOA N ESREIREEEN4.5%
RN B R RAE R 4% A E 2 55
BAFERETE - FEHEDRBENITE
EHERE N F R BTEE ETIEA
WiEFA3% FIIIEREHEH - %3% T35
ERDERTRI0OFTFHEBEREER
WARBBEETERPIHERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

15. Intangible Assets (Continued)

e) Customer list (Continued)
The fair value of the customer list at the date of business combination
was measured using the excess earnings method under the income
approach. This calculation is based on the present value of the
incremental after-tax cash flows attributable to the customer list
and a discount rate of 21%. The annual cash flow is calculated
by reference to the latest applicable annual revenue from existing
customers and has been extrapolated using an averaged 14% growth
rate. The averaged 14% growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth and management forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. At the date of the
business combination, the fair value of the customer list amounted to
RMB39,502,000.

f)  Technical know-how acquired and internally developed technical
know-how
Technical know-how acquired and internally developed technical know-
how represented development cost of recombinant human thymosin
al, which has a finite useful life and is determined with reference
to the estimated future revenue from the recombinant human
thymosin a1. The amortization will be started when the Group obtains
production license and generates revenue from the recombinant
human thymosin a1. The management is of the view that the future
economic benefits that can be derived from the technical know-how
beyond the 10-year period are insignificant.

The recoverable amount of technical know-how acquired and internally
developed technical know-how is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. This calculation use cash flow projections based on
financial budget approved by the executive directors covering 10-year
period. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 15%.

15.

e)

f)

mEEE (&)

EFRE(M#)
REBEHBHENEFZERTFEIIAR
BAFENWRAGE - LB TIURFEZ
BREEEERTERSRERER21% T
REAGEE - FERERENSEZEHAR
FPRETAEMAFEE Wt B F R 14% F
B R RMAELR - 14% FHEERTHERP
MEETEERREEERR B W AREBE
BT FHRERE - NEBKEHB
HHNEFHZEQATEAARK 39,502,000

JG ©

B BB N E R B & A5 B BRI

B KRB B A BT A ERF % H A Rl
BHEAMR o 1HFRBEKA - BEREENE
RER - BA2ZEEANR o 189EETR
RBMAREE - RAEEESLERAE
NEBHAMIR o 1 EEWARFEIGE - &
BEERR  10F&RKEBARMARIKE

B R BN

BEWENEERMEAIHAESE KM
AU Bl BB 55 R U A A TE T RO B BE & A A
HHE -FERRDERRITESIEZ
T FHMRBEEMNERAmMGAE - BeRE
RYER(E A 15% H730 R G E%E -
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15.

g)

16.

Intangible Assets (Continued)

Selling licences

Selling licences have a finite useful life and is amortised on a straight-
line basis over 5 years. The useful life of the selling licenses is
determined with reference to the period of validity of the selling
licences.

The fair value of the selling licences at the date of business combination
was measured using relief from royal approach under the income
approach. The valuation was carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer and with
appropriate qualification and experience in the valuation of similar
assets in the relevant industry. The calculation was based on the royalty
rate of 5.1% on sales and discount rate of 19.84%. The annual sales
was projected based on financial budget approved by the executive
directors covering a five-year period and has been extrapolated using
an average 3.19% growth rate. The average 3.19% growth rate is
based on the average 10-year consumer price index of the PRC and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. As at the date of the business combination, the fair value of
the selling licenses were RMB1,007,000.

Deposit for Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment
The Group

The Group is conducting research and development activities on
recombinant proteins and polypeptide drugs in Taizhou, the PRC.

During the year, the Group has commenced the upgrading and
enhancement for a part of the existing production equipments to meet
the requirements of new GMP in Fuzhou, the PRC.

The amount of approximately RMB11,570,000 (2012: approximately
RMB2,614,000) mainly represents deposit to acquire property, plant
and equipment for research and development in Taizhou and for the
new GMP requirement of production base in Fuzhou. During the year,
additional deposit of RMB10,071,000 was paid and property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB1,115,000 was transferred
and delivered to the Group and reclassified as property, plant and
equipment.

The Company
The amount represents deposit of approximately RMB38,000 (2012:
Nil) to acquire equipment for daily operation.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHOBRLDA
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KRBAABITEZFHRBEER - R
BEHBENEETIERATERARKE
1,007,000 7T ©
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e

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-F-=F+-A=t—ALFE

17. Deposit for Acquisition of Land 17

In 2011, the Group applied to the relevant local authorities in relation
to the acquisition of land use right (“Lands Acquisition”) for the new
production base in Lianjiang through the auction for which a deposit of
RMB8,630,000 was paid.

In 2012, the Group won two bids at the tender by the Bureau of
Land Resources of Lianjiang, Fuzhou City at the consideration of
approximately R\MB22,940,000 and RMB13,280,000 respectively. The
Group paid additional deposit of RMB8,700,000 to the Bureau of Land
Resources of Lianjiang. The management expects the Land Use Rights
Transfer Contract for the Lands Acquisition will be entered in July 2014.
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, total amount of RMB17,330,000
was paid for Lands Acquisition.

The deposit is refundable if the transaction is not completed.

BEIHRE

R=F——F  AEEABEELHAS
OB B E R & T 3 A E R s Y
TR LR - KR EX R
& AR#8,630,000 7T °

RZT——F  AEBEERMMETIHE
T ERBHMR LR EFRIEZ R
BH Rl A AR22940,0007T & AR
13,280,0007C ° AK B M:ETHERH T EIR
B RIS AR 8,700,000 7T ° BEIE
[EBIEsT AT HERN T AEEES
HER_Z—NEFLAFIY - R=ZFT—=
FER-ZF—-F+-_A=+—H8" gLt
WEE BT 4% A A RM 17,330,000 LB K
1A -

o

A

R BARTH © ZIRE AR

18. Investments in Subsidiaries 18. RMIVB A RNIRE
The Company
AAF
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT
Unlisted share at cost FE_ETRAD AL A 547,560 500,480
Less: impairment loss B OREESE (1,040) (1,040)
546,520 499,440

In previous years, a subsidiary became dormant and it is expected that
no further business activities will be conducted to generate sufficient
income to fully repay the outstanding balance due to the Company.
The investment cost of RMB1,040,000 and the amount due from
the subsidiary of approximately RMB311,000 were assessed to be
fully impaired. After considering the poor operating performance of
the subsidiary, the directors of the Company are of opinion that the
impairment loss should not be reversed.

RBEFE  —ENBARATEE @ I
BT SE—PREEBAELERHI
A BEREERNAQRMNREEHRK
B AR 1,040,000 7T K fE W EZ B B
ARNEEHARE 311,000 tEF AR
FRE - CEEMNBARTEMNKEEE
% ANRAREERBTIEEERAERIS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_ZT—=

FH-A=1t—HILFE

18. R B A RHIRE (&)

AEBEBETHBRRNFEBHINWT © (&
SERPEIN  FAIHANRDSEBERK -

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of RERERLA
Place of authorised/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries Principal activity
SRR HE/BRIR REEH KAF )

NEER EXHR BRBAFE BRER kel biial TEXR

Ascendent Bio-Technology Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% - Dormant
Company Limited BE 17T Tmex

S EDHRERAR

Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao PRC RMB30,000,000 80% 80% = Production and
Pharmaceutical Company i AK%30,000,00070 sales of medicine
Limited (“Neptunus Fuyao”)* EERHEEN

BN TREHEERAR
(Nexfeg))

Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC RMB10,000,000 76% = 95% Production and
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd ] AK%10,000,00070 sales of medicine
("Neptunus Jinxiang")* EERHEEN

BMETERPERERRAR
(Nexe%l)*

Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd PRC RMB30,000,000 79.6% = 100% Production and
(“Fuzhou Fuyao”)* HE AK#30,000,0007C sales of medicine

BNBERERRAR EERHERY
(FEMiZ]) *

Jiangsu Neptunus PRC RMB90,000,000 100% 100% - Research and
Bio-pharmaceutical ] AE%90,000,0007T development of
Company Limited biopharmaceutical
("Jiangsu Neptunus”)* (Note i,ii products

IEETENRRAERAR HEEnESER
(DTEEE ) * (at, i)

Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical PRC RMB50,000,000 79.8% - 100% Production of
(Lianjiang) Co., Ltd ("Neptunus HE AK%50,000,0007T chemical medicine

Fuyao Lianjiang")* (Note iii)
BIRERE(ET)FRAR
(DEEREET]) * (M)

HE(CEEY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the

18. R B R RRIRE (&)
AEBETHERANRBERIMT - B

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. SETAEIN FAHFENRND AL ER -
(Continued) (%)
Proportion of ownership interest
Particulars of BEERRLA
Place of authorised/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by Held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries Principal activity
AR HR/EROR AEEN A )
NEER EXuE BRRARE BRER el el IEXH
Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC RMB50,000,000/ 76.2% - 100% Production of
Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) i RMB31,000,000 chemical medicine
Company Limited AR#50,000,0007/ EELEEY
(“Neptunus Jinxiang AK#31,000,0007
Lianjiang")* (Note iv)
BIRRPERE(ET)ERAR
(DBE&KEL])* (Wzkiv)
Lianjiang Neptunus Fuyao Foods PRC RMB500,000 79.8% - 100% Wholesales and
Trading Co., Ltd. i AR%500,00070 retail of packaging
("Lianjiang Neptunus materials and
Foods")* (Note v) pre-packaged food
BIEIRERRESERAR HERTEARMHR
(IBTEERA)) * (Hzv) BEXRA
Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100% Sales and distribution of
Company Limited (*Neptunus Changjian”)* H AK#10,000,0007 medicines and
(Note vi) healthcare products
BT RRELEERA] HERDHERRRRES
(MEERRE)* (Fzkvi)
Notes: s -

i) On 8 June 2011, the Company acquired 20% equity interest in Jiangsu
Neptunus held by Neptunus Pharmaceutical at a consideration of
RMB200,000. Following completion of the equity transaction, Jiangsu
Neptunus became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased to R\MB10,000,000
through additional capital contribution of RMB9,000,000 by the Company
on the same date.

) R-E——FXANB ARAKEEE
WEMRMFLIEHEE20% WRE  RKEAR

#200,0007T ° FEEKRIER 5%

LIRS

FRAEBARRZENBAR - NAGRE
HE)I#8 & A KK 9,000,000t * A
a8 Tt &A= AR 10,000,000

JT °
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

ii)

iii)

On 4 November 2011, the board of the directors of the Company
passed a resolution in respect of the “additional capital contribution of
RMB80,000,000 to Jiangsu Neptunus” to increase its registered capital to
RMB90,000,000.

On 12 July 2012, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was increased
to RMB35,000,000 of which additional capital of RMB25,000,000 was
paid up on 20 July 2012.

On 3 December 2012, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
further increased to RMB55,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB20,000,000 was paid up on 5 December 2012.

On 25 April 2013, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
further increased to RMB72,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB17,000,000 was paid.

On 24 July 2013, the registered capital of Jiangsu Neptunus was
further increased to RMB90,000,000 of which additional capital of
RMB18,000,000 was paid.

On 21 March 2011, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang was newly formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid
up during the year 2011. On 17 April 2012, the remaining registered
capital of RMB40,000,000 was paid up.

On 15 August 2011, the board of directors of the Company resolved
to increase the registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB112,000,000 of which RMB106,400,000 and
RMB5,600,000 will be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus
Jinxiang, respectively. Up to the date of financial statements, the
formalities for the increase of registered capital is still in progress.

On 24 June 2011, Neptunus lJinxiang Lianjiang was formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was
paid up during the year ended 31 December 2011. Additional capital of
RMB21,000,000 was paid up on 17 April 2012. The remaining registered
capital of RMB18,050,000 and RMB950,000 will be contributed by
Neptunus Jinxiang and Neptunus Fuyao respectively. Up to the date of
financial statements, the formalities for the increase of registered capital is
still in progress.

On 30 May 2011, Lianjiang Neptunus Foods was formed with registered
capital of RMB500,000.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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18. R B A RHIRE (&)
fia : ()

i) MZE——&F+—ANA ARAIEES
B ENIEE T EINEE AR 80,000,000
TC) BB RRR - IEINEFREAE
AE# 90,000,000 7T °

R-BE——F+A+-H IHEIENZ
fit & AR n= A R ¥ 35,000,000t © EHF
FINE AR NER¥ 25,000,000 R =T ——
EXA-+BAXfte

R-ZE——F+=-A=H "  I#HE8EN=
& AR#E— 1 INE AR 55,000,000
T EHREEINEAR ARME 20,000,000 TR
—E——F+ZAREAXM-

R-ZBE—=FENMA-+HB  I#HETH
R E AN — 2 nE A R 72,000,000
gL EREEINE AR AR 17,000,000 T E
(I

R-ZE—=F+tA-+WB  IHEEHN
T B AN — 2 = A R # 90,000,000
JC + HREINEAR AR 18,000,000 TE,
it e

iy R-ZZE——F=ZA-+—H SBTwzE
LEAK L - A AN A AR 50,000,000
T ERR =T ——4F AK% 10,000,000
TEX RZZE—Z—FWHA++H " &
TR A A R # 40,000,000 7L E 21+t ©

RZZE——FNA+HH ARFREEE
RS TREEETHEMEAEAARE
50,000,000 T & i &= A K ¥ 112,000,000
7T Hih A R# 106,400,000 7T & A R #
5,600,000 T A RIHEERERFEER
EE o BEMBHRERBEH - HMEINER
ITEH#ETT ©

vy M-ZE——&XA-+tWBE BELgE
JIRX S - #Efit & AR B A R # 50,000,000
T ERREBE_T——F+_A=+—
BHIEFE AR 10,000,000 TE 17 - 58
INER AR # 21,000,000 tER—E——
FEMA+TLAIN - B THMERAARKE
18,050,000 7T & A & # 950,000 7T #% % 5!
HETERRETRELE - BEMBR
KEBHE  EINBEINE RN FEDERIEF -

vy RZZE——FRA=+H EIETRM
XL+ AR A A AR 500,000 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-S-—=F+-"A=t+—HILFE
18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Continued) 18. KRB A BV RER (&)
Notes: (Continued) Misx : (&)
vi)  On 4 January 2013, the Company acquired 100% equity interest of vii RZZE—=F—AWA: A2aKEE
Neptunus Changjian with a registered capital of RMB3,000,000. On 28 FREZHBEE TMREAABARE
January 2013, the registered capital of Neptunus Changjian was increased 3,000,000t c R=FE—=F— A=+ N
to RMB 10,000,000 of which additional capital of RMB7,000,000 was paid. H BT REHNIMEAELEZTARKE

10,000,000 HHREIHNERARK
7,000,000 JLE AT ©

b=lld

* These companies are registered under the laws of the PRC as limited &

Z2ERARBETRERELREREER
liability companies. °

0

The following table lists out the information relating to each of the TRINTEAEERNFERERHAEER
Group's subsidiaries which has material non-controlling interest (NCI). EWBRARNER o T RIFEERE
The summarised financial information presented below represents the ZTEEM AR HAI 2 &5 -

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Neptunus Fuyao

BERE

2013 2012

—E—=fF —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETFT

NCI percentage EERER A DL 20% 20%

Current assets MENEE 408,159 392,985

Non-current assets ERBEE 330,091 323,350

Current liabilities A=Y (287,389) (315,286)

Non-current liabilities SERBBE (54,340) (37,463)

Net assets BEFE 396,521 363,586

Carrying amount of NCI FEIERRAE =S MY AR 79,304 72,717

Revenue WA 504,612 529,795

Profit for the year REZ A 55,934 50,386

Total comprehensive income EHEM 4R 55,934 50,386

Profit allocated to NCI 2 BT IR AR R A5 T 11,187 10,077

Dividend paid to NCI ST IR R A AR S 4,600 4,000

Cash flows from operating activities LEEBMEREMN 68,443 91,939

Cash flows used in investing activities & EEFTAR SR (760) (22,807)
Cash flows (used in)/from financing BMEEE (ATA), P8RS R

activities (13,729) 17,225
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19.

20.

Available-for-Sale Investments

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

19. AIEHERE

The Group and the Company

2013 2012
—E—=5F —E—_4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Unlisted securities FEMFES
— Equity securities in the PRC, at cost —FRBIAMARAE % + 12K ANME 300 300

As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company held 5%
equity interest in SR AEEEERR EMEHZBR AR (the “Shenzhen
Company”) (2012: 5%) which is a company incorporated in the PRC.
The Company contributed RMB240,000 to the Shenzhen Company
during the year 2011 following an increase of paid-in capital of the
Shenzhen Company from RMB1,200,000 to RMB6,000,000. The equity
securities do not have a quoted price in an active market and therefore
the fair value cannot be reliably measured.

R-ZE—=F+-"A=+—H AX&EEE
RAARFHARITEBHBEMRIEER
ARI(TRINAR D 5% BE(ZE—=
F:5%) " RNAEA—HERPR R
VAT o BEERIARNELBEALEA
IR #1,200,000 7T # = A R # 6,000,000
L ARAIR =T ——FmFRYIA B HE
ARM240,0007T © #ZRAEH R RIS R
M5 LW ERE - WERAFEREER SFqT

=
=@

Inventories 20. B8
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Raw materials R 58,212 55,666
Work-in-progress ER 17,098 19,221
Finished goods SURY SR 45,433 59,478
120,743 134,365
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P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T-=F+-A=+-BALEE

20. Inventories (Continued) 20. & (&)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and B AT W ABEHESSED TN
included in profit or loss is as follows: T
The Group
ES 3
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
BT ARET T ARETT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERA®E 351,799 331,495
Write-down of inventories HoRF & (i) 6,957 359
358,756 331,854
Notes: FYaE

i) As at 31 December 2013, write-down of inventories was approximately

BE-_T—=F+-A=+—8  #MR’E

RMB6,957,000 (2012: RMB359,000). During the year, obsolete inventories B4 ANR#6,957,0007t( —Z T — — 4 :
of approximately RMB4,628,000 (2012: RMB359,000) were identified and AR%¥359,0007t) c FRREFELH A
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. R%4,628000c(=ZF—=F: AR%

359,0007T) ERER & BEa sk MR R HER
After the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sold certain RBE_Z—=F+-_A=+—HLHFE
inventories to third parties at a gross loss. As at 31 December 2013, write- B AEBREBERNF=-"FHEETHT
down of inventories of approximately RMB2,329,000 for lower of cost B -BE-T—=F+=ZA=+—8:' A
and net realisable value (2012: Nil) were identified and recognised in the AR A R AT SR EEFEMBRTEELD
consolidated statement of profit or loss. ARY2,329,0000(=F—=F : ) ' W

RiFA B R PR R AER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables 21. EWEARFR K H At FE U SR 18
The Group The Company
AEE NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——F —EB-=F —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FitzE ARBT T ARETT ARET ARETT
Trade and bill receivables G S 87,795 55,742 308 308
Less: allowance for doubtful debts - REREE (2,140) (1,204) (308) (308)
85,655 54,538 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHTEB A AR (i), 35(d) - - 78,817 59,235
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries ~ FEIXREZH B A AIZE (i), 35(d) 108 2,879 - 28
Amounts due from related companies  FEMBEEA BIZE (i), 35(d) 12,502 1,130 = =
Amount due from the immediate EXEBHRRFE
parent company (i), 35(d) 2,070 22 - -
Other receivables Hi YRR 9,014 10,678 164 300
Loans and receivables EF NIRRT 109,349 69,247 78,981 59,563
Prepayments and deposits BNFERES 5,591 12,684 485 425
114,940 81,931 79,466 59,988
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered Y& EA By A Uk BR R R L i JRE U SR 1B AT A —
within one year. FRUgmE -
Note: Mz -
i) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year. i) FEU R IE AEEA - R EARAR—ER
B -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-F-=#+-A=t+-ALFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

21. R BRI At B IRGRRIR (3R

a) Ageing analysis a) RRoN
The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age, presented NTAEREEZESREKERIZEZHEH
based on the invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue 25 2 RER O T (BLF W ATER B ERSE) ¢
recognition dates:
The Group The Company
TEH PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ET-——-F ZE-=ZF —ZT—_-F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTrT ARETRT ARETT
Within 3 months AR 72,042 48,318 = =
More than 3 months but A3 ME A B R 121E A
less than 12 months 12,893 6,177 - -
Over 12 months HBiE121E A 720 43 - -
85,655 54,538 - -

Trade receivables are due within 90 days from the date of billing.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy is set out in note 33(a).

FEU R R —RAEZRRHHE HELFFI0AR
XN c ARBEERRNE - FHEB
HHIEE33(a) ©
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

21. PR BRI H B UGRROR (4]

Impairment of trade receivables b) EWIERFEE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using FEUBR B R E A 1B Ty AR RC 8%« 1
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of AEEBEREZRIENEERE £
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off BERT - BB ORISR E RS -
against trade receivables directly.
Movements in the allowance for impairment loss RIBRBEEF
The Group The Company
b8 | b NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F& —E——f —E-=F —Z——F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BizE ARMT T ARETL ARETR AREFTL
At 1 January W—HA—H 1,204 982 308 308
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEHTE AR (iv) 3,174 = = =
Impairment loss recognised ERERRERE () 379 504 - =
Recovery of impairment loss W ElREE% (ii) (1,154) (282) = =
Uncollectible amount written off NI EE Ot 6 (iii (1,463) = - -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 2,140 1,204 308 308
Notes: M5

i) As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of the Group amounting to
RMB379,000 (2012: RMB504,000) were individually determined to be
impaired and allowance had been made. These individually impaired
receivables were outstanding for over 1 year as at the end of the reporting
period or were due from companies with financial difficulties.

ii) RMB1,154,000 (2012: RMB282,000) of the trade receivables previously
impaired was recovered during the year. Therefore, the impairment loss
was reversed.

i)  As at 31 December 2013, bad debt of RMB1,463,000 was written off
against trade receivables directly as the Group assessed recovery of the
amount is remote.

iv)  During the year, trade receivables arising from acquisition of a subsidiary
amounting to RMB3,174,000 were individually determined to be impaired
and allowance had been made. These individually impaired receivables
were outstanding for over 1 year as at the date of acquisition or were due
from companies with financial difficulties.

V) The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

i) R-_ZE—=F+_A=+—8 ' ' A£EH
e Uk BR TR A R 379,000 T ( =B — —4F :
AR ¥ 504,000 7T) @RI EERKE - Wit
A o 5% 55 [ BI (E B U IR 5k R 2 3R B 45
RE D AR E 1 FRBAMBRENA
ﬁj o

i) ERIEREREKRERARY1,154,0007T
RERWKE (ZE—=F : AR 282,000
7)o Atk - RERSEE #E -

iy MZZE—=F+"A=+—0  aREKEE
R EZ RIS &M - BUBRARE
1,463,000 T E #: BL B 5 fE WK AR SR SH o

iv) RERG KEWBRARELNESEWKIR
KARK 3,174,000 L5 T E R EE ARE
I 1EH B o 52 55 (8 B R 18 P U BR SRR Uk
i B HRAm AR A A 1 F kR A R R IS
ERRA] ©

v)  AEEYERZSERFAENERSR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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B 1% = B ot
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE—Z-—=F+_F=+—HItFE
21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 21. EWERFA R H At R W R IE (&)
c¢) Trade receivables that are not impaired o) IR {E KRR K
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor I £ 8 51| 3k 55 B8 4R 73 R (E B FE AR AR A B
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: AT
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ET-——_F IZE-ZF "ZT—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR¥TR ARETET
Neither past due N e HR SRk (E
nor impaired 74,651 49,520 - -
Past due but not impaired # #{E£E R (E
1 to 3 months pastdue  #HA1ZE3{EA 7,517 4,160 = =
Over 3 months past due  #HfB:E31E A 3,487 858 = =
85,655

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

54,538 = =

A 45 780 HA 24 R0 18 O 8 U SR TR B % 4 3 S ST
HIR R =R P AR o

ERREERENERFERZZERR
HRESNASEEFHER REEEL
% BEEEMRRE AREEKFEERE
8 MERDERRRBRKE - BBA
TR R ERE RS - ARBE L ERL U
SHESFAEAER -
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22. Pledged Bank Deposits

23.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

The pledged bank deposits of nil (2012: RMB19,060,000) are bank
deposits pledged to a bank to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group. The bank deposits that have been pledged represent margin
deposits to secure bills and other trade finance facilities granted to the
Group from time to time and are therefore classified as current assets.
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bills and other trade finance facilities granted.

The interest rate on the deposit was 2.8% (2012: 3.05% to 3.3%) per
annum.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+_A=+—HILEE

22. IWHBITER

ERRITERLST(ZTE—ZF: AR%K
TR AEEEREER

19,060,000 7% ) °
B FIRITHERT

TR - EHEIREVIRTT

FREASEIRAIERERREMES
MEFEANRES  EMBERRRDE
E - BRRTESBINGEFHBRERE

ROEME 5B ERER

ERAMEEFF28%( T — = F:
3.05% & 3.3%) °

23. BERIREEEY

The Group The Company
A5EH AQT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F —FT——_F ZEB-=ZF —Z=—_-F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR¥TR ARETT
Cash at bank and on hand RITFARR S 255,511 248,366 11,277 78,579
Less: Fixed deposit with R 31 A sk A R ER
maturity of 3 months Y7 BRTF K
or more (2,000) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents in the WA4RA BIFSHALER MRS
consolidated statement of ReERERNRE R
financial position and the REEEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 253,511 248,366 11,277 78,579
In 2013, deposit with banks carry interest at market rates which range R-ZT— =4 F1T RN T8 EFH =

from 0.35% to 3.30%. (2012: 0.35 % to 3.05%) per annum.

RYITE T BB R R B R AT

N F035%E330% 2H(ZF——_F:
0.35% £ 3.05%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T =F1T-A=t—"HILHFE

24. Trade and Other Payables

24. RS BRFN R H B Y 5R0R

The Group The Company
piS-: | DA
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=f —T——fF “E-=F —E--F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
By zE AR®T R AREFTT ARET T ARETT
Trade payables FERIERER 76,915 113,723 667 667
Receipts in advances FBUGRIE 6,568 6,434 1,705 1,705
Other payables and accruals HitERSERETER 50,380 39,002 5,281 5,786
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries ENRAENBARZE (i), 35(d) 17,379 13,298 448 2,813
Amount due to the immediate
parent company ERERBEARFE (i), 35(d) 36,712 39,232 23,383 25,902
Financial liabilities measured TRE A 2R
at amortised cost BaRE 187,954

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

211,689 31,484 36,873

P RR AR R LA A R IR TR —F AT
NRERBBBA LR EREE -
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24. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

24. R BRFA R HL B (Y 7RO (3R

REHBPEREIZER A AT ENEMNIR
RO RRE DT

The Group The Company
REE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —=T——-F IZEB-=F T——F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETT AR¥BTRT ARETT
Within 3 months 3EAA 55,114 65,372 - =
4 to 6 months 4=618A 14,415 38,721 - -
7 to 12 months 7&212{8A 4,336 7,286 = =
Over 1 year 1504 3,050 2,344 667 667
76,915 113,723 667 667
Note: FftsE -

Included in amount due to fellow subsidiaries, there was interest-bearing
financial assistance from a fellow subsidiary of RMB10,000,000 as at 31
December 2012 which is unsecured, bearing interest at 6% per annum
and repayable on demand. The remaining balances are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

On 9 January 2013, the Group repaid the interest-bearing financial
assistance of RMB10,000,000 in full. As at 31 December 2013, the
balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included in amount due to the immediate parent company, there was
interest-bearing financial assistance from the immediate parent company
of RMB23,000,000 (2012: RMB23,000,000), which is unsecured, bearing
interest at 6.6% per annum and repayable on 31 December 2014. The
remaining balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHOBRLDE

i) R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H:tAENHE
B A Rl 5K IE R 1E A R 10,000,000 7T
MM EMEER - AR HEF 6%
B BEREREE-

R=ZF—=F—ANB ~&EETEHEE
M 2 81 75 & Bh A R %5 10,000,000 7T ° 1A=
T—=—F+_A=+—H #HTLBEAE
T B MIBEREER -

i) FABRCNEBSARZECIEREERS
A7 AR23,0000007T(=F— 4 :
23,000,000) BT SEA TS & BY - B EE A
FREF6.6%:E  B—FAFEE -4
T&BEAERF RERAR-ZT—HF
+—A=+—H8{EE&-
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. [ ESRITEE
The Group
Effective AEE
interest rate Maturity 2013 2012
1 ES FIH A —E2-=F —E--F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
FiEE ARETRT  ARETRT
Short-term bank loan-secured REISRITE R — FER @ 5.6%-6% 2014 86,000 86,000
86,000 86,000
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—B—=fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETIT
Within 1 year or on demand P RSB Z KR 86,000 86,000

The interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of
the non-current interest-bearing borrowings is expected to be settled
within one year. All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in
RMB.

A subsidiary of the Group was subject to the fulfillment of financial and
non-financial covenants, as commonly found in lending arrangements
in interest-bearing bank borrowings. The subsidiary was required to
maintain profitability and certain level of gear ratio.

MBHEBEERR —FAXN - REEF

MY SR B TR E A AT R o TEHIME A IE
Laps
BEEHAARKE -

AEE KB R ARTHIERIEHBR
#oOUERERAMEETEEOERE
BE o BB A RARERFIRE T &AM
b3 o

130 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



25. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

a)

During the year 2013 and 2012, a director of the Company and a
shareholder of a subsidiary provided guarantees RMB40,000,000
for the Group’s bills payable of RMB40,000,000. The bills facilities
was expired on 10 September 2013. As at 31 December 2013,
there was no bills payable secured by the pledged bank deposit.

As at 31 December 2012, the bills payable facilities of
approximately RMB34,621,000 were secured by the pledged bank
deposit of approximately RMB19,060,000.

As at 31 December 2013, the banking facilities of the Group
of RMB86,000,000 (2012: RMB86,000,000) were secured
by mortgages over its buildings and prepaid lease payments
with carrying value of approximately RMB35,786,000 (2012:
approximately RMB32,523,000) and RMB67,159,000 (2012:
approximately RMB68,729,000) respectively.

The facilities were utilised to the extent of approximately
RMB86,000,000 (2012: RMB120,621,000) and the Group has no
available un-utilised banking facilities (2012: RMB5,379,000) as at
31 December 2013.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

25. [ ERITEE (&)

a) R-ZE—ZER_FT——F  KAAA
MNEZLKERQRMRERAE B
A Z 35 A R 40,000,000 JTiR 4
1 AR #40,000,0007C ° ZiF{EE
R_E—=FhAt+HER RN=_F
—=F+-_A=+—8 TEENE
BRI RITE R -

R-ZT——F+-_A=+—8 " Eft
ZREEH AR 34,621,000 7T A K
IR 1T 17 4 A R 19,060,000 T E
I o

R-E—=F+_A=+—8 K&
EmiR1TEE AR 86,000,0007(=
= — —4F : AR¥86,000,0007T) H
HARmEE S 54 AR 35,786,000
T(ZZ—=F : H AR 32,523,000
7T) R ARY67,159,000 L (= ——
F : YARKEE8,729,00070) I E EIR
BRBEAAENRERR -

d

EEE 8 A A A KS86,000,0007T
(ZZ2—=—%F: AR¥120,621,000
T)RANEEBR_-_ZE—=5+_A
=t+—HYERHAGE(ZZE—=
& : AR#¥5,379,0007T) °
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P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T-=F+-A=+-BALEE

26. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial
Position

26. BAFSARR AR A Y AR 15 %

a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial a) HAMBRRRARRTIEE
position represents:
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F 2= ZB-=f =—EZ—=f
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AREBTR AREBTET
Provision for the year  ZAEEEE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A BI{>ZEFTSHT 5,076 1,873 = =
Balance of PRC Enterprise E24ERiIFE A BH
Income Tax provision A B (b SEFT1S AR
relating to prior year BB 2,342 2,342 2,342 2,342
7,418 4,215 2,342 2,342
Representing: FEAG
Tax recoverable EREE (28) (1,328) = -
Tax payable FERTRIE 7,446 5,543 2,342 2,342
7,418 4,215 2,342 2,342
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Position (Continued)

26. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z—=F+"HA=+—HIFE

AR R ARG (4

b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by EERELEHBEERARE:
The Group REE
The components of deferred tax (assets)liabilities recognised ERER G B ISR 5 2= B SR 0 3R E A7 1H
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the (BE)/BBERAFEENEHNT
movements during the year as follows:
Fair value
change of
non-current
assets
FRBEE Others Total
HRAFESE Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR®TT
Deferred tax arising from E et E A RIRERIA ¢
At 1 January 2012 —Z2——%—H—H 40,296 (1,548) 38,748
Effect of change in tax rate Fi R i B 22 (655) 53 (602)
Credited to profit or loss B8R0 (3,428) 187 (3,241)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=—A=+—H
and 1 January 2013 ;r—ZE—=F—HF—H 36,213 (1,308) 34,905
Arising from acquisition of W — B A REE
a subsidiary 252 (796) (544)
Effect of change in tax rate HERSH R (13,966) = (13,966)
Credited to profit or loss T ABRRER (1,284) 613 (671)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+"H=+—H 21,215 (1,491) 19,724

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE—Z-—=F+_F=+—HItFE
26. Income Tax in the Statement of Financial 26. BIBEARRTRAWETES (&)
Position (Continued)
b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued) b) EERELHRBEENERE: (B)
The Group REE
2013 2012
—ZE—=fF —T—=—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised EA4RA BAFSHAI K EREY
on the consolidated statement FIRERIRE E
of financial position (1,491) (1,308)
Net deferred tax liabilities BRERE M IR R AR Y
recognised on the consolidated ~ JFIRLEF B A &
statement of financial position 21,215 36,213
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+"_A=+—8H 19,724 34,905
The Company /N |
Others
Hit
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Deferred tax arising from EERREERIE
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—A—H (969)
Credited to profit or loss T AE &R =
At 31 December 2012, RZB——F+-A=+—8H
1 January 2013 —E—=F—H—H
and 31 December 2013 M—Z—=%+"H=+—H (969)
o) Deferred tax assets not recognised ) WARERNIELEHREEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RERALERE XEEHRSAR
losses of RMB116,849,000 (2012: RMB112,487,000) available for BEBRARY 116,849,000 (=&
offset against future profits that may be carried forward for five ——%F : AR%112,487,0007T) * 7]
years for PRC Enterprise Income Tax purposes. No deferred tax FA DA 85 28 2R A 3z AT st AR B 1 22 P
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the SHAERF - FARRETER AR
unpredictability of future profit streams. B HRE R LT A 1R R R AR A

BEE °
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27. Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent

Company

The Group and the Company

The entrusted loans from the immediate parent company of which
RMB48,000,000 were repayable on 5 April 2009 were unsecured and
bore interest at 5.00% per annum (2012: 5.00% per annum). On 2
December 2008, the immediate parent company agreed to extend the
repayment date of the entrusted loans for at least one year to 5 April
2010.

On 18 March 2010, the immediate parent company further agreed
that the repayment dates of the entrusted loans in the amount of
RMB48,000,000 were to be extended to 5 April 2011.

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extend the repayment date of entrusted loan in the amount
of RMB9,000,000 unless and until: (1) the repayment of such
shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the operations
of the Company and/or its business objectives as set out in the
prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the
"Prospectus”); and (2) each of the independent non-executive directors
was of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted
loan would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/
or the implementation of its business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus, and the Company would make an announcement in
respect of the decision of the independent non-executive directors
made under (2); and (3) the Company had a positive cash flow and had
retained profits in the relevant financial year.

The interest of RMB450,000 (2012: RMB450,000) attributable to
the entrusted loan in the amount of RMB9,000,000 was waived by
Neptunus Bio-engineering.

On 25 November 2011, the Company repaid the entrusted loans in the
amount of RMB39,000,000.

On 26 March 2012, the Company obtained a RMB 30,000,000 interest
bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The entrusted
loan was unsecured, bore interest at 0.5% per month and repayable
within one year.

On 4 September 2012 the Company repaid the entrusted loan in
amount of RMB 30,000,000.

The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s entrusted
loans from the immediate parent company approximates their fair
value.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

27. EERARZETEER

AEERAAT
HEBQRZAERAEER BEME
500B(=ZZF—=F: F8A500%) H
AR # 48,000,000 TR T NN A
hAREE - R_ZEEN\F+=-_A=-H &
BEARRECEREZAEREENZ L —
FE_FT-FTFMPARAA -

RZE—ZFF=ZA+N\B  EEBEEA
AEE—PRAEERZTERARE
48,000,000 TH)EEHEZE T ——FMA
Gl =

R-ZE——FNARH EBSARE—
FRBERZLERARE 9,000,000 7TH]
EEH BRIEREE (NEEZRREZR
EXRBTEHEREARARZZZEZRAFEN
AR+ BRHENBRER(HBRERE]
HARRR]2IE R, H 28 H IZEATA
TE L RQEBEUFNTEFHIRRER
ZREZEEFSTHHERNBRERED
ARRIEER SHLEFEZENETEMN
FRFE  BARRBERBILIERNTES
REQIEMEAEZELHAE  RG)AAA
RIERET R EEEBIER SR RIRE R

Z T E A R #9,000,000 7T HY fE 5t 7l B
ARBA50,000(ZE——F: ARK
450,000 7C) BB T EYER -

R-ZE—&F+—H_+HB  ARAFME
BRAERARY 39,000,000 7T °

RZE—=—F=A=+x<8 ' ~x27H
BIEVES —EMBEZTERARE
30,000,0007T ° ZEERAEET - § A
M2 0.5ERER—FARE -

R-ZEBE——FNAWNB  AXRAAREEZRFT
B AR% 30,000,000 7T °

AEENEBESARERNERERLR
FEESE -
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HE-2-=Ft-A=tALFE
28. Financial Assistance from the Immediate Parent 28. REEES A A5 EB)

29. Deferred Revenue
a)

Company

On 4 June 2013, the Group obtained interest-bearing financial
assistance of RMB27,000,000 from the immediate parent company.
The financial assistance is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6.6% per
annum and repayable on 4 June 2015.

RZZ—=F-A0B AEEESHE
B QA G S B E B A R % 27,000,000
T ZEVBENREERRT  BREME
6.6%tERN-_ZE—RENAMBEE -

29. IEIE W &=

The Group b) =&
Other
Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C SubsidyD SubsidyE SubsidyF Subsidy G SubsidyH Subsidy| Subsidy) SubsidyK SubsidyL SubsidyM ~subsidy  Total
BHA  WHe  RBC #BD  WBE  WBr BBC  WMH BB BB REK  BBL REM EtED &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTT ARBT T ARRTR ARRTT ARRT T ARRT ABRTT ARRTL ARRT R ABRT R ARRT L ARRTR ARET R ARRT T ARRTR
(Notea) (Noteb) (Notec) (Noted) (Notee) (Notef) (Noteq) (Noteh)  (Notei) (Notej) (Notek)  (Notel) (Notem) (Noten)
(Wita) () (Mako (W) (M)  (W&) (M) (Wath) (W) (W) (W& (M) (im) ()
Cost i
At1 January 2012 W-E-5-f-H 500 50 3,000 400 300 3000 18,000 400 450 370 100 - -3 93
Additions HE - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1405 1405
A3 December 012and ~ R=F-—E+=A=1-A
1 January 2013 R-E-=E-H-A 500 500 3,000 400 300 3000 18,000 400 450 310 100 - - 306 0746
Additions HE - - - - - - - - - - - 4010 8089 2194 14293
Projects compleed BHER - - - - (W - - - B0 B (00 - - - (1
At 31 December 2013 WN-B-=F+-f=1-H 500 50 3000 400 - 3000 18000 400 - - - 4010 8089 5920 43819
Accumulated amortisation 23
At1 January 2012 NZ5-5-A-A 350 - 2049 133 00 1436 11097 360 450 310 100 - - 1193 1789
Released fo income BATERRA
statement for the year Y&x 50 - " - - B 6 - - - - - - 18 8N
A3 December 202and R ZE-—E+ZA=t-R
1 January 2013 RA=3-=£-f-H 400 -9 33 00 1819 18000 360 450 370 100 - - 2478 26809
Released to income BAREERA
statement for he year Wix 50 - 1% - - - - - - - - 06 7 3300
Projects completed BEAER = = - - () - - - 50 B (100) - - - (120
At 31 December 2013 ’5-=F+-A=1-A 450 -5 13 - 2200 18000 360 - - - - 2005 255 289M9
Carrying Amounts T
At 31 December 2013 M5-=Et-A=1-A 50 500 546 167 - 198 - 40 - - - 4010 538 335 148%0
At 31 December 2012 R5-#t-A=1-A 100 500 0 167 - 18 - 40 - - - - - 148 39

136 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



29. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=F1-A=t—ALFE

29. EFEW = (48)

b) The Company b) ZA&AF
Subsidy A SubsidyB  SubsidyC  SubsidyD  SubsidyE  SubsidyF  SubsidyG  Subsidy H Total
FBA e B B C #8D FHE B F #EG B H @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note ) (Note ) (Note g) (Note h)
(M) (WD) (ko) (Bsd)  (Wie) (M) (Mikg)  (Wskh)
Cost A&
At 1 January 2012 W=E-—5-f-H 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 26,100
Additions hE = = = = = = = = =
At31December 2012  RZT-ZETZA=1-H
and 1 January 2013 k=%-=%-A-A 500 500 3,000 400 300 3,000 18,000 400 26,100
Additions hE = = = = = = = = =
Projects completed EhER - - - - (300 - - - (300)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=E+2A=1-H 500 500 3,000 400 - 3,000 18,000 400 25,300
Accumulated amortisation 23t #
At 1 January 2012 R=3——%-5—-H 350 = 2,049 233 300 1,436 11,058 360 15,786
Released to income BAREERN
statement for theyear &% 50 - 250 - - 383 6,942 - 7,625
At31December 2012  RZE-—#TZA=1-H
and 1 January 2013 RA=5-=F-f-H 400 - 2,299 233 300 1,819 18,000 360 23411
Released to income BAKEERY
statement for theyear &% 50 - 155 - - 383 - - 588
Projects completed B5EEE - - - - (300) - - - (300)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+ZfA=1-A 450 = 2454 233 = 2,202 18,000 360 23,699
Carrying Amounts HEfE
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+-f=1-A 50 500 546 167 - 798 - 40 2,101
At 31 December 2012 RZF-—F+-f=1-A 100 500 701 167 - 1,181 - 40 2,639

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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SR e

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T =F1T-A=t—"HILHFE

29. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

c¢) The classification of current and non-current is as follows:

29. IEFEW = (78)
0 RERFRDHZHBMT

The Group REME
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREF T
Current liabilities mENaE 2,282 =
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 12,608 3,937
14,890 3,937

The Company bIN/NE|
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Current liabilities mEIaE 588 =
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE 1,513 2,689
2,101 2,689

Notes: MisE -

a) In June 2003, a subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by the

a) R-ET=FKA

CARIIT R R B

Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen Bureau of
Finance to the Company for the acquisition of certain plant and machinery
for the production of interferon spray. The amount of RMB50,000 (2012:
RMB50,000) was recognised as income over the useful life of the related
plant and machinery.

In July 2003, another subsidy of RMB500,000 was jointly granted by
the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the Shenzhen
Bureau of Finance for assisting the Company in performing research
and development of interferon ointment. The subsidy is not required to
be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and the
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance only if the project is subsequently approved
and certified by Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology and
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance upon its completion. Since the Company
has not yet obtained the approval for the project, the subsidy was not
recognised as income for 2013 and 2012.
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b)

FITMHBEREALEREZBEZH LN
ETHRERKSS KRB FARRAARE
500,000 L #B) - AR 50,0007T (=%
—— 4 : AR¥50,0007T)EREBEER
22 H A] (R F IR R AN ©

REZZEZT=F+ A FImEEFNHE
I B BB H R F AR 500,000 K9
e AMBARRHEEREREEA
ERERE  RELEEBEBERNKE  BER
YT BT B RORYITH BF BB B &5
FEHBERT @ LERBHBAEET R
MEBEMBERRNTHERE - ARAA
Al ARBZEE R RIEAR=-T
—=FER T —FHERANE#HAKA -
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29. Deferred Revenue (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(o}

d)

f)

9)

h)

In December 2004, a subsidy of RMB2,000,000 was jointly granted by
the Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and Information and the
Shenzhen Development and Reform Bureau as a science and technology
fund to subsidize the acquisition of certain plant and machinery. A
further subsidy of RMB1,000,000 for the same purpose was granted in
July 2005. These subsidies are not required to be repaid and the amount
of approximately RMB155,000 (2012: RMB250,000) was recognised as
income over the useful life of the related plant and machinery.

In December 2005, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by the
Shenzhen Bureau of Finance for financing the research and development
of interferon vaginal effervescent tablet. The subsidy is not required
to be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Finance only if the project is
subsequently approved and certified by the Shenzhen Bureau of Science,
Technology and Information upon its completion. The subsidy was not
recognised as income for 2013 and 2012 as the project has not been
completed.

In June 2008, a subsidy of RMB300,000 was granted by the Shenzhen
Bureau of Science and Technology Branch for financing the research and
development of inactivated split influence vaccine. The subsidy is not
required to be repaid to the Shenzhen Bureau of Science and Technology
Branch. The amount of RMB300,000 was recognised as income in 2010 as
the project was completed.

In December 2009, a subsidy of RMB3,000,000 was granted by Shenzhen
Bureau of Science, Technology and Information Council for financing a
project to carry out the research and development of H1IN1. The subsidy is
not required to be repaid to Shenzhen Bureau of Science, Technology and
Information Council. The amount of RMB383,000 (2012: RMB383,000)
was recognised as income to match with the research and development
expense of HIN1 incurred during the year.

In June 2010, a subsidy of RMB18,000,000 was granted by the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality pursuant to the preferential
treatments given to biological industry under the policies of the People’s
Government of Shenzhen Municipality for the purpose of supporting the
research and development. The amount of RMB6,943,000 was recognised
as income to match with the research and development expense of
incurred in 2012. No income was recognized during the year as the subsidy
of RMB18,000,000 was fully recognized as income.

In April 2011, a subsidy of RMB400,000 was granted by Science, Industry,
Trade and Information Technology Commission of Shenzhen Municipality
for financing the research and development of ¥TEHINTRERSZHE.
The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the authorities. The amount
of RMB360,000 was recognised as income to match with the research
and development expenses incurred during the year 2011. The remaining
amount of R\MB40,000 will be recognised when the project is completed.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHOBRLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE—Z—=F+-A=+—HIEE

ESEW R (48)

Mt : ()

)

d)

R-ZZTWE+=F - FImRIBRmE
EREFRYTERMAEREREFTAR
#52,000,000 JC A 1/ B © 1 B RHE K BT
B BB ETHRERESSE - R=
TTRFELA  AEBESHEIEHAR
#1,000,0007C * {ERERM AR © LR
B BAEEE - MAOARE 155,000 (=%
—— 4 : AR#¥250,0007t) BREEHE
RS ey n] 5 A FRERBUA ©

REZZFZRF+=A FITHBEBET
AR % 400,000 TR B - (EAT R LR
LHEZROERORE - AEEEE T
% BEFYTEZREMNES B ERR
FBRERT - LLBEBHHAEE - AR
EEEARTER  WER - ZT—=6EF %
——FHERLIBRHEARA -

RZZFZNEXNA FITRERMD B
B¥ ARK300,000THIME)  {EAMIEHE
FBERITENERSHMEONERE - &%
HYHDEEETRYMAERMHS B - B
RZEE B+ MARK300,000THE
BR_Z—ZFERBEA -

RZZBZTAE+—F  FIHRERIEMN
=E{tZ B8 g’ T AR 3,000,000 JTHIH
By EAETHIRHININIEERE © %M
BEAEEE T FRIMEEIEMEBLR
& AR%383,000L(=—T——F: A
R#383,0007T) W& FEEEERRKAR
ABREARFEANEEMHINTI A -

RZF—ZFXA FITARKFR
BEUHAMEENEERRETARE
18,000,000 ST H B - {E R ¥ 38 R F 8
M - ARK 6,943,000 TS EEEN =
T —ERERBRANRERERELEDN
HEEFX o AR E) AR 18,000,000 7T
TEHBHERBWA - BRAF A ERERBA -

R=ZF——FWMA  FYMEEIEMNE
BIlEZEER T ARKEA00,0007T1E A B
DARREST AL HIN R R SR E o sk B
HEETEBAKE - ARY¥360,0008 %%
EEERBRAUNRER =T —— FHMHE
EEMFERY - 8 T2 AR 40,000
JCi% P18 B oAk ¥ RERR ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

29. Deferred Revenue (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

i) In December 2008, a subsidy of RMB450,000 was granted by #&/iT
BLEFERMB and BMWEEE for financing the research and
development of KYMBREEEIRF. The subsidy is not required to be
repaid to the authorities. The amount of RMB450,000 was recognised as
income to match with the research and development expenses incurred
during the year 2011.

) In December 2008, a subsidy of RMB370,000 was granted by &) &4
BB and @MmEHEEATA for financing the research and development
of KB ERIE . The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the
authorities as the Group obtained the approval for the project. The amount
of RMB 370,000 was recognised as income to match with the research and
development expenses incurred during the year 2010.

k) In September 2009, a subsidy of RMB100,000 was granted by #&/NH&
ZERERM B for financing the research and development of ZHE A .
The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the authorities. The amount of
RMB100,000 was recognised as income to match with the research and
development expenses incurred during the year 2011.

1) In October 2013, a subsidy of RMB4,010,000 was granted by Jinan
Regional Finance Bureau of Fuzhou City for financing the property, plant
and equipment in relation to new GMP enhancement of production base
in Fuzhou. The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the authorities. The
amount is recognized to match with the useful life of property, plant and
equipment for the new GMP enhancement. As at 31 December 2013, no
income was recognized (2012: Nil) as the new GMP enhancement has just
completed at the end of reporting period.

m) In November 2013, a subsidy of RMB8,089,000 was granted by the
Administrative Committee of Taizhou Medical High-tech Industry
Development Zone for financing the research and development of
recombinant human thymosin & 1 for injection and for the industrialization
of infrastructures. The subsidy is not required to be repaid to the
authorities. The amount of RMB2,705,000 was recognised as income to
match with the useful life of property, plant and equipment and incurred
research and development expenses during the year.

n) During the year 2013, the Group obtained several subsidies with an
approximate total amount of RMB2,194,000 (2012: RMB1,405,000) from
government authorities for financing, the research and development.
These subsidies are not required to be repaid to the authorities. The
amount of RMB47,000 (2012: RMB1,285,000) was recognised as income
to match with research and development expenses incurred during the
year.

The directors consider that, except for the subsidies mentioned in note
4 and note 29, there were no other forms of government assistance
from which the Group has directly benefited.
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29. IEFEW = (48)

BaE - (&)

) R-ZBEZENFE+-A BNTEZRES
BT B HEEMN T B HE T AR 450,000
TR EAMERHAERDETS
PRAHEBE - ZEDEFTEETEAK
# - AR¥450,0000 ¢ EERARA
NEAR T ——FHEEENHERS -

N RIEBEENFE+_A BNTHRBEE
MR BE T AR 370,000 7T K9
e ERMERMABKDIBRMER
BlIME - 2B BEEETHBEE -
BAESEERBSZEENHR  ARKE
370,000 tH & REE B HERABRA R E R
—ESFEANRERAY -

kY RZZEZAFAA BNTELERZRE
fiT B% T AR #100,0008978) © {EA/E
MABHERAOME - ZHHBAEET
BRAKIE - ARK100,000008 5B EER
BWANRRER - ——FHEEENH
R -

) REZE—=F1+A BNTEBERERIER
BT AR® 4,010,000 THIME) - {EARKE
12 M A B B0 #T GMP ER S FRRE R M 2 -
BWERSENRE ZMBEFTEETS
PR - RS BOEER - UEREFGMP
BUEWME - BEREENERABR - B
—ZT—=%+=-A=+—H " BHRH:GMP
HUERIRIRA & BR A - I ERERIK
AZE—=F: %)

m R-ZTE—=F+—A ZTMNEEIHX
TEXHAEREEZEERTARE
8,089,000 WM B - ERESTHAEAA
MIRRAR c VIR B MEE(CEBEZ N
B ZMPETEETERARE ARE
2,705,000 TR S FEE ERER B RA - AR
EME BEREENEAHREREA
ELERNARRAY -

n REZT—=F AEERZEE BT
PSRN AREK2,194,000( ==
——4F: AR¥1,405,0007T) M) % B #
B {EAMEBHELKFARIEENRE - &%
HEIBEEETERKE  EAEED M
BZBEEMIL X - AR¥A47,000T(=ZF
——F : AR¥1,285,0007T) W& RED &
EREBWAR A FNELENTERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

30. Share Capital 30. iR
2013 2012 2013 2012
Number Number
of shares of shares
—B-=F —E——F
REAEE RiAEE “E-=% —T-f
Note ‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BizE Fit Fiz ARETR AREFT
Registered, issued and fully paid: AT BETRBRRA -
Domestic shares of RMBO. 10 each FREEARE0.10T
HNER 0} 1,252,000 1,252,000 125,200 125,200
H shares of RMBO.10 each SREEARE0.107T
B H % (i) 426,000 426,000 42,600 42,600

1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800

Registered, issued and fully paid: AT BETRERRR :

At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—BR+=ZR=+—H 1,678,000 1,678,000 167,800 167,800
The owners of domestic shares and H shares are entitled to receive NE& B & HAR A A B R UE T R = R 6
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote e WEERARREHEEUSRIE—
per share at meetings of the Company. All domestic shares and H RoFMENERRHBREARATMRTEES
shares rank equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets. B RSN -

Notes: MiaE -

i) The domestic shares are not currently listed on any stock exchange. i) NE IR I R NMEMEHR ST L ©

i) The H shares have been issued and listed on the Growth Enterprises i) HBREE-ZEZERAFNARARBRBETIRE
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 5 September BEAER AR ARIGIZER LT o
2005.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
AT + =
B 1% = B ot
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE—Z-—=F+_F=+—HItFE
31. Reserves 31. f#&E
a) The Group a) AXEH
The Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and AEBRAFERATFENFESER
prior year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in HE)  OCRGAEREFHRAZR -
equity.
b) The Company b) Z&AAF
Statutory
Share reserve Accumulated
premium fund losses Total
RGEE EERE Rt et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——%—HF—H 554,844 3,330 (127,634) 430,540
Profit for the year and NEEH T
total comprehensive RAFEEA
income for the year Was4a=E - - 4,778 4,778
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F+=-F=+—8”
and 1 January 2013 ;r—ZF—=F—H—H 554,844 3,330 (122,856) 435,318
Profit for the year and ANF
total comprehensive RAFEEEA
income for the year Was4a=E - - 3,642 3,642
At 31 December 2013 R-_ZTE—=%+—-A=+—H 554,844 3,330 (119,214) 438,960
Under the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Company’s BiERREE R EBRURAR R ALE
articles of association, the Company has to make provision to the 2/mE| - AR T AR EEATESH RS
statutory reserve fund from its net profit after tax but before dividend ZIAE 5B R 2B e R B 5 R B H 45 F
distribution. BAES o
¢) Share premium ) B@EE

Share premium arose from the issue of shares at prices in excess of
their par value less share issue expenses.

BEZRTRNELENRMDEEBLE®
BNRERNDETER -
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31.

d)

e)

f)

g)

Reserves (Continued)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises (i) the difference between the total amount
of fair value of shares issued to the immediate company and a fellow
subsidiary of the Company and the amount of the net assets value
acquired during the acquisition of Neptunus Fuyao, and (i) the
difference between the total amount of consideration paid to the
immediate parent company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company
and the amount of the net assets value acquired during the acquisition
of Neptunus Changjian.

Statutory Reserve Fund

The Company is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit
according to its PRC audited financial statements to the statutory
reserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached 50% of the
Company'’s issued share capital. Any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses or
for capitalisation into share capital, provided that the remaining balance
is not less than 20% of the issued share capital after such capitalisation.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2013, the Company had no distributable reserves,
while its accumulated losses, calculated in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and relevant rules and regulations,
amounted to approximately RMB119,214,000 (2012: approximately
RMB122,856,000).

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE
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31.

d)

e)

f)

9)

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

feéi i (48)

A
EARRREOAARAEBAAR MR
R B AR THREG 0D TFEBEEK
WS T RESDKEAEFEL MNEE
RiNXNFARNEBTAAR—MAR
B 2 ] £ (B 4B R SRR 08 R AT IR
BEAEFENSELMOES -

5> fl
= o
L

=t

B EARE P B S EAZ 3R
10% P EEEEAE @ HEE#%H
EHARNFBEETRAKNS0% &
AE AR ZBELEMREEINER - X
BRATARBRER  KEX AR
N WEBRBANDRETERERED
BEITRA20% ©

Iy

oH

e

5 =

m B B

I
i

8 2 AR
R-ZZE—=F+-_A=+—H AARIL
EOHSRGHEE  MIRARRABEREMA
Ak BEAERRAGE  HRFEER
AR 119,214,000 L (ZFE—=F : HHA
K#122,856,0007T) °

BEXREE
AEEEREANBERRERARERE
REMRES - ETMRERBEESBRTRE
HRAEMANEREEFRRNE  TER
B L e 7 S Y 2 v B AR TE (B 1R B IR
RAESRE -

AEEREEBELREHRRIREELERE
B AEFESERRER(FTEBREEE
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RIEM T - WERBEEEN RN B S Y
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SR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

31. Reserves (Continued) 32. f#fE (&)
g) Capital management (Continued) 9) EAXEEE)
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net AREBILFEBRELTHEE AR R E
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as ERHEAGEE HUME  AEEEH
total debt (which includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, entrusted FEBRERABER (2EFTERTEE -
loans from the immediate parent company and financial assistance EBNAGZAERERZMNBATIRE
from fellow subsidiary and immediate parent company) plus unaccrued BEARNBBER) MRS RES
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital BIRELBECEHEEY  KRABRERBIEE
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends @ PTA KR IE Rat 9 IR AR B 5 N4 F
plus adjusted net debt. BEHESHE -
During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from R-ZE—=F AEEHKDRNKRKBE_Z
2012, was to maintain a gearing ratio within 30% to 70%. In order —ZFHR RERERBGBLER3I0%
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of £270% < H - BERNAZREESGEL
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to o KREBE A RABIRM TRENRES
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The S BOOHRKRG  MBREREEARN - 1E
gearing ratio at 31 December 2013 and 2012 was as follows: EFNEBEREREEEENRIAE -
RZBE—=FR-F—-F+ZA=+—
HOWEARBBELLEAT
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR¥TT ARETTT
Total borrowings =k
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 25 86,000 86,000
Entrusted loans from the BB RARELER
immediate parent Company 27 9,000 9,000
Financial assistance from B R M8 A R B & Bl
a fellow subsidiary 24(i) - 10,000
Financial assistance from the HESARMEER
immediate parent company 24(ii), 28 50,000 23,000
145,000 128,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRe MRS EEY 23 (253,511) (248,366)
Adjusted net surplus KRBT (108,511) (120,366)
Total equity el 560,604 518,354
Gearing ratio BERBFHE N/A N/A
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31.

g)

32.

33.

)

Reserves (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the gearing ratio of the Group was
nil. Except for a subsidiary of the Group is subject to externally imposed
capital requirements under lending arrangements in interest-bearing
bank borrowing as disclosed in note 25, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Contingent Liability
At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the Company
had any significant contingent liability.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables, entrusted loans
from the immediate parent company and financial assistance from
the immediate parent company. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33.
Polices (Continued)

a) Credit risk a)
The Group

i) Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial
loss from defaults.

i) Inrespect of trade and other receivables, in order to minimise risk,
the management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position and condition
are performed on each and every major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
The Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 90 days from the date of
billing.

iii) In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. The default risk of the industry and location in
which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
concentrations of credit risk for which individual trade or other
receivable’s balance exceeds 10% of the total trade and other
receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out
in note 21.
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

a)

b)

Polices (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

iv)  Deposits with financial institutions
The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established credit rating
or other criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has certain concentration
of credit risk as 59% (2012: 61%) of total cash and cash
equivalents were deposited with two financial institution in China
with high credit ratings.

The Company

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has certain concentration
of credit risk as 96% (2012: 99%) of total cash and cash
equivalents were deposited with two financial institution in China
with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their
own cash management, including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to parent company’s board approval. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
amount of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquid fund. As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no
available un-utilised banking facilities (2012: RMB5,379,000) details of
which are disclosed in note 25.
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P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T =F+-A=t"HLFE

b)

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. K REKREE B ZERECK (8)
Polices (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) b) HBELEK(E)
The following liquidity and interest risk tables set out the weighted THIREE S KA R @ = 55 2 25 4
average effective interest rate and the remaining contractual maturities HEAEERAATORE BN INETEY
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the Company’s TEAZRETANDESHE  sEsHa
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows BEREANRTEESEZE (BEFNBA
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if HF RS F S ZHTE - AT E R
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and AR 2 RELEREFAFIER) AR AEE KA
the earliest date the Group and the Company required to pay: NEENZNREBE
i)  The Group i) AEE
013 01
5z 5-IF
Weighted More than ~ More than Total Weighted Morethan ~ More than Totd
average Within 1 yearbut 2 years but contractual alerage Within -~ 1yearbut ~ 2yearshut contractual
effecive ~ 1yearor lessthan  lessthan Morethan undiscount  Camying  effectve  fyearor  lessthan  lessthen  Morethan undiscounted  Carying
interestrate ondemand  2years  Syeas  Syears castflow  amount interestrate  ondemand 2 years 5 Jears Syeas  ashflow  amount
2 afl
WERS R-FRy BE-E BERE FRRE g™ A-ERE BE-F BERE RS
ERAE BEERR ROMRE @ORDE RBRE REEE 0 BEE IUE BEDG BOIRE EJNEE  BERE  RBME BAR
% RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 % RMB000  RMBOOD  RMB0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0
AEBTL ARMTn ARMTn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR NEBTL ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR
Secured bank loans BERRTER
Variabl rates iz 5.6% 86,450 - - - 86450 86,000 6% 89,524 - = = 89,524 86,000
Enrusted loans rom EESNT
immediate parent st
company* - 9,000 - - - 9,000 9,000 - 9,000 - - - 9,000 9,000
Iterestoearng fiancal ~~ ~REEBHLFN
asisance fom GRS
immediate parent
company 6.6% 26,300 0,15 - - 54,057 50,000 6% 24380 - - - 24380 23,000
eresthearng frencal - RERZWELTH
asstance froms felow WasimEn
Subsidiary - - - - - - - 6% 10,037 - - - 10037 10,000
Amount due toimmedate  EREESATHE
parent company - 1311 - - - 13 13 - 16,232 - - - 1623 163
Amount due to EfRZNBARSE
fellow subsidaries - 11319 - - - 11319 17319 - 329 - - - 3198 329
Tadeand otherpayatles ~ EREHRAGEME - 133863 - - -3 W - 159,159 - - - 159059 159159
286,704 2,151 - - 314461 300954 311,630 - - - 3630 306689

* The immediate parent company agreed to waive interest on the entrusted

loan of RMB9,000,000.

i HEESARIRERKR AR 9,000,000 7TH)
ZEEFHFE
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HE-_Z-—=6+"A=+—BILtEE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. I EREEEERBUR (B)
Polices (Continued)
b) Liquidity risk (Continued) b) RBESRR (E)
ii) The Company i) ARE]
013 2012
8-z 5
Weighted More than ~ More than Total Weighted More than ~ More than Total
average  Within  Tyearbut 2yearshut contractual alerage Within 1 yearbut 2 years but contractual

effective ~ fyearor lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscount ~ Camying  effectve  fyearor  lessthan  lessthan  Morethan undiscounted  Carying
interestrate ondemand  2years  Syeas  Syears castfow  amount interestrate ondemand  2yeas  Syeas  Syeas  cshfow amount
a8 &l
nEYE  W-FRd BE-F BERE FiRRE WERS I-FRR BE-E BERF L3t
ERiE BAZRE BOHRE BOMEE HBRE RESE  BEE ERAE 2ERG EJIRE BONDE  BERE  NEEE BEE
% RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB00  RWB'000 % RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMB'00  RMBI000
AEBTL ARMTr ARETn ARMTR ARMTZ ARETR NRBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Entrusted loans from B2

immediate parent EiE

company* - 9,000 - - - 9,000 9,000 - 9,000 - - - 9,000 9,000
Interest-bearing REERBATN

fnancalasistance~~ HSEIKED

from immedlate

parent company 6.6% U518 - - - WY BN 6% 24,380 - - - MR B0
Amount due to OEEEAE

immediate parent

company - 38 - - - 383 38 - 2902 - - - 2902 2902
Amount e to ERRZNRARE

fellow subsidiaries - 48 - - - 48 8 - 2813 - - - 2813 2813
Trade and other payebles T B2 oAU - 1653 - - - 7653 7653 = 8158 = = = 8,158 8158

& The immediate parent company agreed to waive interest on the entrusted * BHEBATIRESK ARK9,000,000TH

loan of RMB9,000,000. ZEBERWNFE
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P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Polices (Continued)

c¢) Interest rate risk
The Group
The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings and financial
assistance from the immediate parent company which are at variable
interest rate.

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately RMB1,360,000 (2012:
RMB860,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis points (2012: 100 basis points) increase or decrease in
interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to the
executive directors and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2012.

The Company
As the Company has no significant bank deposits and interest bearing
liabilities, the executive directors consider the risk is not significant.

d) Currency risk
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. The Group's functional currency is Renminbi as
substantially all the turnover and expenditure are in Renminbi. The
Group's transactional foreign exchange exposure was insignificant.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, converted into
using the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

150 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Polices (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

33. SRR EE A ERBR (&)
d) HERRGE
AEE

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

SEREE (AR

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E—CF
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
EH BT ET BT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETFT ARETFT
Cash and cash equivalents  IR& MIREEEY) 46 15 49,444 17,638
Gross exposure arising EEBREERBERS
from recognised B E AR
assets and liabilities 46 15 49,444 17,638
The Company N |
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)
SMNERER (UARYEE)
2013 2012
—E-=fF —T——4F
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
dollars Dollars Dollars Dollars
E4 BT = I
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥TT ARBTFT ARETFT
Cash and cash equivalents 3% MIREEEY) 1 - 49,396 17,622
Gross exposure arising EEREERBEEAR
from recognised B E AR
assets and liabilities 1 - 49,396 17,622
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Polices (Continued)

d) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's
and the Company's profit after tax and accumulated loss that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group and the Company
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained

33. IR EIE B R R BUR (&)

d) E%ERGE)
BRE DT
RERPERE  REECRBREET
o ANEE B KRR B H 8 N E R A B E
ERREEEMSERNEERAR R
B m N & RETBENZB 25T -

constant.
The Group RE
2013 2012
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange rates accumulated loss exchange rates  accumulated loss
HNEER HREHBEBBIR SNERESR  HERTE RN &
i (Rd) RetBENEE B CRd)  RetEBiEmgE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
Hong Kong Dollars BT 5% 1 5% 882
(5%) (1) (5%) (882)
United States Dollars =TT 5% 2 5% 2,472
(5%) (2) (5%) (2,472)
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

d)

Polices (Continued)
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33.

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

IR EE R BRREK (8)

Currency risk (Continued) d) EH¥EKE(E)
The Company VNN |
2013 2012
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange rates accumulated loss exchange rates  accumulated loss
SHEEE HRBREEAR HNERER  HIFRRFE LIS FI K
®/inO0Rd) RiEBENE #winOd)  RiEBHRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Hong Kong Dollars I 5% - 5% 881
(5%) = (5%) (881)
United States Dollars ETT 5% - 5% 2,470
(5%) - (5%) (2,470)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’
profit after tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, converted into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group and the Company which
expose the Group and the Company to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2012.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the end of the
reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Polices (Continued)

e) Fair values
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts
of interest-bearing bank borrowings, entrusted loans and financial
assistance from the immediate parent company approximate their fair
values.

f)  Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in
estimating the fair values of the following financial instruments.

i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

34. Business Combination

On 11 December 2012, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co.,
Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”), the substantial shareholder and
immediate parent company of the Company and Shenzhen Neptunus
Yinhe Pharmaceutical Investment Company Limited (“Neptunus
Yinhe"), a fellow subsidiary of the Company, for the acquisition of the
100% equity interests in Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”) for a consideration of
RMB5,080,000 of which RMB1,524,000 shall be payable to Neptunus
Bio-engineering and RMB3,556,000 shall be payable to Neptunus
Yinhe. Neptunus Changjian was principally engaged in the business
of purchase and sales of medicines, health supplements and food
and is the holder of the licenses in relation to sales and distribution of
medicine and health supplements and food. The Group is of the view
that through the acquisition of Neptunus Changjian, the Group may
expand its business in marketing, purchase and sales of medicines and
healthcare food by utilizing the licences held by Neptunus Changjian.
The acquisition was completed on 4 January 2013.

33.

e)

f)

34.
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34. Business Combination (Continued)
The amounts recognised as of the acquisition date for each major

Notes to the Financial Statements

B H5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 De

cember 2013

BE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HIFE

34. XS (&)

BEEXEHAMPEEEMIEAERERI

class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the corresponding B A HER Y S AN B W BT FERR
carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were as follows: EEMT :
Amounts
recognised
Carrying Fair value (at fair value)
amount charge ERZELE
REE AFE (RDTFHE)
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBETIT AREET T
Plant and equipment RS M st 785 = 785
Deferred tax assets RIERIIRE EE 796 = 796
Intangible assets mLEE - 1,007 1,007
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 2,419 - 2,419
Trade and other receivables JFEE ST B 3 e At B LKL K 16,400 = 16,400
Inventory 7] 3,397 = 3,397
Trade and other payables AT R 35 e EL At R A~ /IR (17,978) = (17,978)
Tax payables FERIEEIE (1,642) = (1,642)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBB B - (252) (252)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEERTR 4,177 755 4,932
Deemed distribution BRIED K 148
Consideration RE 5,080
Consideration, satisfied in cash LRSS 2RE 5,080
Cash and cash equivalent
balances acquired FiliiE v R e MR EEMES (2,419)
Net cash outflow in respect of
acquisition of subsidiary MUEEHT B AR 2R e m HH FRE 2,661

On 31 December 2013, Neptunus Changjian contributed revenue and
profit of RMB113,557,000 and RMB10,307,000 respectively to the
revenue and profit of the Group for the year.

Had the business combination been effected on 1 January 2013,
the revenue of the Group would remain the same at approximately
RMB611,666,000 and the profit for the year would remain the same
at approximately RMB46,998,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessary an indication of the
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2013, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results. Acquisition
related costs amounting to approximately RMB153,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred.

R ERBFEEYRMBRHOBRLDE
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BEREBEARESENRKARETDFIE
BRUL A K B A AR5 113,557,000t R AR
# 10,307,000 7T °
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HE-ZE—=F1+-"A=1T—HILFE
35. Material Related Party Transactions 35. ERBERRS
During the year, the Group and the Company have the following RAFEEA  NEERARE Y HREER
material transactions with related parties. EITTIEARS
a) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered a) MEE-_ZE—=F+-A=+—H81t
into certain continuing connected transactions. FE KEBFIV A TEEBERSS
b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) AEBERAFEANZGHEBEFETT
parties during the year: FEARRS :
Related party transactions with the immediate parent HEBERBARETHRELSRS
company
Name of
related parties Relationship Nature of transactions 2013 2012
BERER B R5HE —E-=f —E-Cf
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARBT R AREFT
Shenzhen Neptunus Immediate parent Entrusted loans from immediate (i) (iv) 9,000 9,000
Bio-engineering company parent company
Company Limited VA EBRRAETER
("Neptunus Bio-engineering”)
AImET AN TEERAR Obtained additional entrusted loans (i) (v) = 30,000
([gT4Eml ) from immediate parent company
BEBSARERENETER
Accrued interest for the entrusted loan (i) (iv) - 810
ZEEAMEFIS
Interest bearing financial assistance (i) (iv) 23,000 23,000
Wi S BT A B
Obtained additional interest-bearing (i) (iv) 27,000 30,000
financial assistance from immediate
parent company
BEBNAREREINN S LN
Accrued interest for the interest (i) (iv) 2,493 590
hearing assistance
M5 & BT H S
Acquisition of 30% equity interests of (iif)iv) 1,524 -
Neptunus Changjian
WEET RE30%HRE
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes:
Entrusted loans from the immediate parent company

i) In April 2007, the Group obtained a RMB39,000,000 interest-
bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
repayable on 5 April 2009.

On 13 December 2007, the Group obtained a RMB9,000,000
interest-bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 5% per annum and
repayable on 5 April 2009.

On 2 December 2008, the immediate parent company agreed to
extend the repayment date of the above two entrusted loans for at
least one year to 5 April 2010.

On 18 March 2010, the immediate parent company agreed to
further extend the repayment dates of the entrusted loans to 5 April
2011.

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extend the repayment date of entrusted loan in the amount of
RMB9,000,000 as Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to
the Company that it would not demand repayment of the above-
mentioned shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the
repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives
as set out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29
August 2005 (the “Prospectus”); and (2) each of the independent
non-executive directors was of the opinion that the repayment
of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect
the operations of the Company and/or the implementation of its
business objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and the Company
would make an announcement in respect of the decision of the
independent non-executive directors made under (2); and (3) the
Company had a positive cash flow and had retained profits in the
relevant financial year.

The interest of RMB450,000 attributable to the entrusted loan in the
amount of RMB9,000,000 was waived by Neptunus Bio-engineering
for both 2012 and 2013.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE—Z—=F+-A=+—HIEE

5. EREERRS (1)

b) AEERAFEAZMERESETT
SIEXRRS : (#)

ff3

R

REEBRRRINETEER

) R-ZZTEZELtFHA A&EEAE
TEVMESHEZTERARE
39,000,0007C ° ZEE R AERA -
BEHRESERAR=-ZZTAFMA
HHEE-

R-BZT+F+-_HA+=0  A&H
BETEMESHEZAERAR
#9,000,000 7T ° WL Z T E R AEER
H BFEWMESE  BR-_ZEThF
MARRBEE -

RZZBZNF+ZAZH BEEERQ
AREBER M IAZEE R E RS
RO—FE_FT-TFHAAA -

RZE-—ZF=F+/\H  BEBFLQ
AREE—FERE_T——F0A
fH -

R-T——FMARRE  BRBETAE
MRAR R AEEE TS ERER L
MBRREZRER BB RARE—F
AEERZTE R ARK9,000000
THEEE ﬂ%#&ai C(NEE
ZRRELEZ BT HHERARF]
mf22£¢ﬂﬂf+naﬂ%m%
BRER(HBRERDHARA ﬁ%@
RSk E A B ZEAN R
(aﬂﬁ4%ﬁﬁ§$ﬂw%ﬁ@&h
%;%E BT e HHERBRERRN
RREEERSELEBENET
%ﬁ?ﬂ%; BARRR B IE
HITEETREQEMEREELA
% RO)AR AR BEBETRFEEES
FEE R RREHF

RZB——FR=_T—=F  ZxE
FAR9,000,000 TR EAFI B AR
¥ 450,000 TR EB T EMEE ©

RYIHBERBFEEVRMROBRAT  2013F 55, 157



Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
i) (Continued)

On 25 November 2011, the Company repaid the entrusted loans in
the amount of RMB39,000,000.

On 25 March 2012, the Company obtained a RMB 30,000,000
interest bearing entrusted loan from Neptunus Bio-engineering. The
entrusted loan was unsecured, bore interest at 0.5% per month and
repayable within one year.

On 4 September 2012, the Company repaid the entrusted loan in
amount of RMB30,000,000.

ii) The financial assistance was unsecured, bearing interest at 6.6% per
annum, and repayable on demand.

On 5 September 2012, the Company obtained RMB30,000,000
interest bearing financial assistance. The financial assistance is
unsecured, bearing interest at 6% per annum and repayable on
31 December 2014. In May 2013, the interest rate was increased
to 6.6% per annum. In December 2012, the Company repaid the
financial assistance in the amount of RMB7,000,000.

On 5 June 2013, the Group obtained another interest-bearing
financial assistance of RMB27,000,000 from Neptunus Bio-
engineering. The financial assistance is unsecured and bearing
interest at 6.6% per annum and repayable on 4 June 2015.

As at 31 December 2013, the interest-bearing financial assistance of
the Group were R\MB23,000,000 and RMB27,000,000 respectively.

i)  On 11 December 2012, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Neptunus Bio-engineering, the substantial
shareholder and immediate parent company of the Company
and Neptunus Yinhe, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, for the
acquisition of the 100% equity interests in Neptunus Changjian
for a consideration of RMB5,080,000 of which RMB1,524,000
was payable to Neptunus Bio-engineering and RMB3,556,000 was
payable to Neptunus Yinhe.
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35. E K3

BHERS (8)

b) AEERAFEANZEFESETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

GG

i)

iii)

(%)
(#8)

R=F——F+t—A=-t+AHH &
EENZEEREBARE
39,000,000 7T

R-_ZE——F=A=-+HH  AQa
BESTEYMES —EMNERZTERA
R #30,000,0007T ° £+t E KA EER
1 B AMB0SERER—FRIEE -

R-ZT——FhAWA  AREEE
ZEEHARKE 30,000,000 T ©

MHEEHREIEE  BEXEE8F
6.6% RIEBRKTHEER -
R-E——FhAFEH ARAE
15 B 2 B 75 & Bh A R % 30,000,000
T ° M BB 15 A Bh A KR R B
SE6E WBAR-_ZT—NE+_—A
=t+—BEZ R=FT—=F1A7"
FEEAETF66%  RZT——
F+f ARREENBEPDAR
#7,000,000 7T °

M-TB—=FARA  KNEFHES
T A RO EE T B B S K Bh A R
27,000,000 ° s E M & B AEE
HRRERR66%TE - WAR=
T—RAFNAMNAEE -

R-ZF—=F+-A=+—8"' &
KENEMBEDNDAINBARE
23,000,0007T K A K # 27,000,000
JC °

R=ZF——F+=-_A+—H &2
RIEARREERRLEBRT QA
BEEYMRARARRRHBAREE
SROMET MR EE E T 0 WERE
FRENZHRE REAARE
5,080,0007T * EF AR 1,524,000
TESNGEIEDRARE
3,556,000 JL /A {458 F R ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

5. ERBEELXRS (&)

AREERAFERNE EBAETETT
SIEXRRS : (#)

ERAMEARETHNREIRS

Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions 2013 2012
HELER & REMHE —Z-=% —E—F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt =t ARET T ARETFT
Shenzhen Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Reimbursement of water, (v), (vi) 448 278
Pharmaceutical GEAEING electricity and fuel costs
Company Limited IKE RIRBIR AN ER FRIE
AIBEEXBRATF Purchase of raw materials (v), (vii) 85 304
BERME
Purchase of finished goods (v), (vii) 29,026 -
fEEHKM
Sales of goods (v), (vii) 2 -
HEEY
Technology Transfer (v), (xii) 6,000 -
SR
Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (vii), (x) - 7,794
Pharmaceutical GES VNG HEED
Company Limited
BT REBEERAA
Hangzhou Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Processing income (v), (vii) 147 436
Bio-engineering EEAGEAS BEKA
Company Limited Purchase of finished goods (v), (vii) 2,593 -
mMEEENIRERAR EEHIKm
Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai Fellow subsidiary Rental of office and (v), (xi) - -
Pharmaceutical Information RZEHBAR factory premises
Consulting Company Limited HERAERTRYE

(“Tongai Pharmaceutical”)
(previously known as
“Shenzhen Neptunus
Tongai Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing
Company Limited”)
AIBTEEBEES
HABRATE
([EERE])
(FaRIIELER
RBEFRRA)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=Ft-A=tALFE

35. Material Related Party Transactions 35. ERBBEARRS (1)
(Continued)

b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b)
parties during the year: (Continued)

AEERAFENGEBEETETT
FIBRRZ S : (&)

EEAMBLARETHHRELIRS

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

(Continued)

(%)

Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions 2013 2012
BEHER B RHME —2-=% —E—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bzt AR%T ARETT
Zhejiang Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iv), (vii) 175 205
Pharmaceutical FEAL)EING HEEY
Company Limited
I BEBRAR
Shandong Neptunus Yihe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iv), (vii) 636 203
Pharmaceutical Company EELN=NG HEEY
Limited Interest bearing (iv), (ix) - 10,000
BT R EESR AR financial assistance
Mt S BT E BY
Accrued interest for the
interest-bearing assistance - 430
bt BB & B AT LR
Shenzhen Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Commission income (v), (viii) 1,531 663
Jiankang Technology RZRKEA R RAEBA
Development Company Ltd Purchase of finished goods (v), (vii) 8,400 -
AMEERERRER BB I m
BRATE
Shenzhen Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Acquisition of 70% equity (iii), (iv) 3,556 -
Yinhe Pharmaceutical REMEAR interests of Neptunus
Investment Company Limited Changjian
RITE 8RR B B B WeHE G T REE70% KAk HE
BRAT
Anhui Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iv), (vii) 8 -

Pharmaceutical Company Limited B ZfiE A 7]

ZRETRIBEERAF

HEEY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=F1-A=t—ALFE

35. Material Related Party Transactions 35. ERBEERRS (1)
(Continued)
b)  The Group had the following significant transactions with related b) AEERAFEANGERHETETT
parties during the year: (Continued) HEARRS : (%)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries HERMBARETHNBELIRS
(Continued) (#&)
Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions 2013 2012
BEL AR B% REME —E-=% —T——F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
P ARBTT ARBTT
Jiamusi Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iv), (vii) 33 -
Pharmaceutical RZMBEAF HEEM
Company Limited

EAEEEREERAR

Henan Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iv), (vii) 8 -
Pharmaceutical RZKBAR HEEY
Company Limited

AEEERABERRAR

Hubei Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iv), (vii) 50 -
Pharmaceutical RZHBAR HEEY
Company Limited

HitEEBERR AR

Liaoyuan Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (iv), (vii) 15 -
Pharmaceutical RZKBAR HEEY
Company Limited

ERETRABEBRAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-T-=F+-A=+-BALEE

35. Material Related Party Transactions 35. ERBBEARRS (1)

(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes:

iv)

The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties is
also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group.

b)

AEERAFENGEBEETETT
FIBRR S : (&)

EEAMBLARETHHRELIRS
(%)

iv)  UFBESNREERSARTAAR

SEMRKZERE AT -

v)  The ultimate controlling parent company of these related parties v)  WEBEINSKEREARMAR
is also the ultimate controlling parent company of the Group. The SR SRERE AR - NRARIES
director of the Company, Mr. Zhang Feng is also a director of these REBEEMBUERETNES -
related parties.

vi)  The reimbursement of water, electricity and fuel costs was based on vi) KERMEKAZEERE 2 ERE
pre-agreed rates with reference to the Group'’s production activities. EoEEEDE - RELHRAOER

EE e

vii)  The purchases, sales and processing income received were vi BIRFIMEE - HEREEBRATIRN
transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms as —REBBIER - REEME=H
those charged to and contracted with other third party suppliers and FERS R B P FTR] M A MR & 5T £ 48 )
customers respectively. B TRHETT ©

viii) On 16 October 2012, the Company entered into a 2 years vii) RZZE—ZF+A+/"H  ARAEHE
distribution agreement with Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang FNTEETRREEERERER ARG
Technology Development Company limited. The commission income SR - REIRE - RKEREER
derived by distribution of food products and healthcare food @BRRBERMOASKARBEELE
products were made in ordinary course of business and at the terms BEPET  BRDKEFTRE -
agreed by both parties.

ix)  On 17 April 2012, the Group obtained RMB10,000,000 interest- ix) RZT—Z—FMNA++ERH ' ~EEE

bearing financial assistance. The financial assistance is unsecured,
bearing interest at 6% per annum. The Group repaid the interest-
bearing financial assistance on 9 January 2013.

BAR#10,000,0007THIM BB 75 E
B) o ZM BB EBAEEIT 8
EKE6% AEER-_T—=F—A78
NBEENSMBER -
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

X)

Xi)

Xii)

The acquisition of 100% equity interests in Neptunus Changjian was
completed and ceased to be fellow subsidiary on 4 January 2013.

Tongai Pharmaceutical leased office premises to the Company. The
rental of office and factory premises was charged at pre-agreed
rates with reference to market rates. The rental of approximately
RMB268,000 attributable to 2013 and 2012 was waived by Tongai
Pharmaceutical.

On 9 April 2013, Jiangsu Neptunus entered into the Technology
Transfer Agreement with Neptunus Pharmaceutical for the
acquisition of “approval for recombinant human thymosin o 1
clinical research” and related technology for a consideration of
RMB13,000,000. The consideration will be paid by four installments,
the first and second of which amounting to RMB6,000,000 have
been paid by Jiangsu Neptunus pursuant to the agreement and

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+_A=+—HILEE

5. EREERRS (1)

b) AEERAFEAZMERESETT
SIEXRRS : (#)

ERZAMBLARETHNHEELIRS
(%)

BaE - (&)

x)  WEEEIRE100%KES ETK -
YR —F—=F—-AOBTHEREZH
MR °

xij ERBERNAQALBERADE-
PBRAERBMEMELLEM SRS
Xﬁéf%ﬁlfiﬁmﬁ’ﬁﬂéﬂﬁzg =B
T—=FR-T—-FHARK
268,000 TR EER BEAHR -

7/3*

xiy R=ZZE—=FWANB I#HSTHE
T BT ph UGBS [ S48 A B9 AR AR
o 1ESRHL M | R E BT 5] Sz AT 8
EiHzE - KE AR AR 13,000,000
TL e REES BT - BiHHOTE
&Enuﬁ;&%ﬁl_; ’ /Ié%/IE,@SE
NE—HERE-_HRELFARE

progress of clinical trail. 6,000,000 7T °
Related party transactions with related party HEEE S ETEERS
Name related parties Relationship Nature or transactions Note 2013 2012
BEHER Bi% REME Bt —Z-=f% —T——F
Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical ~ Related company Sales of goods (vii), (xiii) 19,174 5,817
Company Limited LN HEEY
("Nepstar Pharmaceutical”) Marketing fee (xiii), (xiv) 718 -
ﬂ\\m/if_%ﬁ SEERA =HHEM
Notes: B E
xiii)  The director of the immediate parent company, Mr. Zhang Si Min xii) BEESAREFREREETABE
is also the director of the related party. The income received were FHVEERE - ERENRIBATIR—
transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms, as REBBREFP  REEME=FFF
those charged to and contracted with other third party customers. FiT 51 32 H9 WCER K 5T 4948 A B9 1R 3E
e
xiv) The marketing fees were based on pre-agreed rates with reference Xiv)

to the volume of purchase of goods from the Group.

RYITE T BB R R B R AT

BHEBERNESERAARENER
RIBER  WAAMENERE -
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P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=Ft-A=tALFE

35. Material Related Party Transactions 35. ERBBEARRS (1)
(Continued)
¢  Financing arrangements o RELHE
The Group The Company
358 LY
Amounts due to Related interest Amounts due to Related interest
related parties expenses related parties expenses
EfiBERLE HERISHY EREBENLE REASHR

213 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“§-=f %% C%-=f %-f CB-Zf _-T--F C-B-zF C-T-C%
RMB000  RVB000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB(000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Entrusted loans from the EBSARZREN

immediate parent company 9,000 9,000 - 810 9,000 9,000 - 810
Interest-bearing financial assistance ERSAAMNEHEED

from the immediate parent company 50,000 23,000 2,493 50 23000 23,000 1,475 590
Interest-bearing financil assistance RENBRFNH S8 KA

from a fellow subsidiary - 10,000 - 430 - - - -
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35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

(o}

Financing arrangements (Continued)
Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans from
the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 27.

The interest-bearing financial assistance from the immediate
parent company is unsecured and bearing interest at 6.6%
(2012: 6%) per annum. The amount of RMB23,000,000 and
RMB27,000,000 is repayable on 31 December 2014 and 4 June
2015 respectively.

The interest-bearing financial assistance from a fellow subsidiary
is unsecured, bearing interest at 6% per annum and repayable
on demand. The Group repaid the interest-bearing financial
assistance on 9 January 2013.

On 26 March 2012, the immediate parent company of the Group
agreed to provide additional entrusted loan of RMB30,000,000,
the entrusted loan was unsecured, bearing interest at 0.5% per
month and was fully repaid on 4 September 2012.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=F1-A=t—ALFE

5. ERBEELXRS (&)

@]

BERYE (&)
BEESRARZAE RO RN R AR FF
TERMTEE 27 R H#KEE o

REEBERARNKM EHBEENAE
EHAFEFBRA66% (T — _F:
6%) > & % A A K% 23,000,000 7T
B AR ¥ 27,000,000 TCHYFRIEH 5 Bl
R-ZZE—NWF+—_A=F+—HK=Z
—RFENANBEE -

KERZRKERARNNETEERS
I FEXRR6NHAEEENKTE
B AEER-_T—=F—HFNAE
BTHBER -

RZBE——F=A=-+H" K
SEEES R ARAREREBEARE
30,000,000 TTHIREINEFEE K © 5% &
AERAEEFRTANS05E @ I
ER=ZZE——FNAMBBHER -
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P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

35. Material Related Party Transactions 5. ERBEERRXS (&)

(Continued)

d)  Outstanding balances with related parties d  HARBEMBEZES &R
The Group
FEE
Amounts owed by

related parties
as at 31 December

Amounts owed to
related parties
as at 31 December

PR BAE S TR ENBRERLRE
Rt+=A=+—H R+-A=t—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F —E-=F —T——fF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
Entrusted loans from the BB RAELER
immediate parent company - - 9,000 9,000
Amount due from/to the WSk e BB A AR
immediate parent company 2,070 22 13,712 16,232
Financial assistance from the BESRAHBEER
immediate parent company - = 50,000 23,000
Amount due from/to fellow FEMR/ e R 2 B
subsidiaries: NCIF O
Neptunus Pharmaceutical R B - - 8,260 334
Zhejiang Neptunus WML TEESRAR
Pharmaceutical Company
Limited 89 49 - -
Shenzhen Neptunus BT REEEZBR AT
Changjian Pharmaceutical
Company Limited - 2,830 - -
Shenzhen Neptunnus Jiankang  FIIMEERZREEFHERER
Technology Development NG|
Company Limited - - 7,315 2,534
Shandong Neptunus Yihe TR = SN
Pharmaceutical Company
Limited 19 - 430 10,430
Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-engineering TN/ XA T2 B R A A
Company Limited - - 1,374 =
108 2,879 17,379 13,298
Amounts due from e BB AR RUR
related companies:
Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited ERBE 12,502 1,130 - -
14,680 4,031 90,091 61,530

Apart from the entrusted loans and financial assistance from
the immediate parent company, the balances with these related A
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans from

the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 27.
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35. Material Related Party Transactions

(Continued)

d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

The interest-bearing financial assistance from the immediate parent
company is unsecured, bearing interest at 6.6% (2012: 6%) per
annum. The amount of RMB23,000,000 and RMB27,000,000 is
repayable on 31 December 2014 and 4 June 2015 respectively.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

5. ERBELRS (&)

d) HARBENBESER(E)
HESQRINEMBE R AEEMA -
BREE66% (T — —F :6%) it
B o &% A AR 23,000,000 K% A
K ¥ 27,000,000 TR IB#E 25 B =
TE—NFE+-_A=+—HEK-ZT—F
FRNAMNBEE -

The Company
NG

Amounts owed to
related parties
as at 31 December

Amounts owed by
related parties
as at 31 December

PEWERE S RIE FEfTBAE S RE
WRTt—HA=+—H W+=—HA=+—H
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F —E-=F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT AR¥ETR ARETIT
Entrusted loans from the BB RAEZFEER
immediate parent company - - 9,000 9,000
Amount due to the immediate ~ ENEBRAFZE
parent company:
Neptunus Bio-engineering - - 383 2,902
Financial assistance from BT LY E R
Neptunus Bio-engineering = = 23,000 23,000
- - 23,383 25,902
Amount due from a e/ PRI B A RIFRIA
subsidiary:
Ascendent Bio-technology N AR AR A E]

Company Limited 69 61 - -
Jiangsu Neptunus IERT 5,775 7,319 - -
Neptunus Fuyao BErREE 71,775 51,855 - =
Shenzhen Neptunus AT REEERRAR

Changjian Pharmaceutical

Company Limited 1,198 - - -

78,817 59,235 - -
Amount due from/to fellow et/ FER R R KT A B3R
subsidiaries:
Neptunus Pharmaceutical BT g - - 448 278
Shenzhen Neptunnus Y MR ER

Jiankang Technology ERARAA]

Development Company

Limited - - - 2,535
Shenzhen Neptunus RIBETREEERRAR

Changjian Pharmaceutical

Company Limited - 28 - -

- 28 448 2,813
78,817 59,263 32,831 37,715
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F-=F+- A=t ALFE

35. Material Related Party Transactions
(Continued)

d)

e)

)

35. ERBELXRS (&)

Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) d WEARBEMEES &R E)
Apart from the entrusted loans and financial assistance from BREBEFRARZAERNTEEY
the immediate parent company, the balances with these related Hh - BB N RIMERAEER £
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRBRENRER -
Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans from HESRAEFEE RO GRRRAGHF
the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 27. BB 27.
The interest-bearing financial assistance from the immediate HEEERAAMEMEER AEER -
parent company is unsecured, bearing interest at 6.6% (2012: BEF6.6%(—ZT——4F :6%)it A
6%) per annum and repayable on 31 December 2014. WERZ-ZZ—WNF+_A=+—HE
Key management personnel emoluments e) TEEHEAEHE
Emoluments for key management personnel of the Group AEEFZEREEAEMEEELN
including amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in TARREEZHNSRHA(RM T 7H 8
note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in BRI TETRRFTHESN SR
note 8 are as follows: (RHIEES R #EER) AT -
Total emoluments are included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). e saERNIBIKA] (R
5(b)) A ©
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTFT
Salaries and other short-term o REMEHBESER
employee benefits 2,935 2,891
Retirement scheme contributions  #R{K< fH5k 313 135
3,248 3,026
The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c) above f) AR L (b) & (o) MBER R 5EK A

constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The disclosures requirement under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules has been complied with a the details can be found in the
Reports of the Directors.
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36. Commitments

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_ZT—=

36. HKiE
a) UFRZ-ZZE—=F+-A=+—8K

a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2013
authorised and not provided for in the financial statements were

F+-A=1t—HILFE

30 1) B AR R I R B 7% 3R A H BB

as follows: & :
The Group The Company
FEE b NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F —E—=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR¥TRE ARETR
Property, plant and equipment M - BERFE
Contracted for, but not provided for: 2 5] 418 K B -
Property, plant and equipment W% - BB KEE 18,631 10,497 3,000 4,518
Acquisition of 100% equity interest ~ WEEEBEREET
of Netpunnus Changjian MR ARz - 5,080 - 5,080
18,631 15,577 3,000 9,598
Authorised, but not contracted for:  E#t/EERETA
Land T+ 18,890 18,890 - -
37,521 34,467 3,000 9,598
Intangible assets BEE
Contracted for, but not provided for: 2 5T 41 R B -
Technical know-how, net of deposits ~ EARAMT (HKRIZEE) 2,992 1,300 1,300 1,300
Acquisition of intangible asset WisEREE 7,000 - - -
Authorised, but not contracted for: B EIHLAEERRETL
Acquisition of intangible assets W ER B E - 13,000 - 13,000
9,992 14,300 1,300 14,300
47,513 48,767 4,300 23,898

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHOBRLDE
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hII= — 'ﬁ'
Notes to the Financial Statements
AT L =
BA 1Rk M &
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILFE
36. Commitments (Continued) 36. &IE (1)
b) At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease payments b) RZE—=%F+=-A=+—H " B
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: ] H5 B A5 A 40 B R 2R S (R & R
MBEAAN ¢
The Group The Company
TEE AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
=®B_=F —ZT——F ZB_=F _—FT—_1F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AR%STrT ARBTT
Within 1 year R—FR 4,585 4,068 312 307
After 1 year but within 5 years —FERERAFA 8,860 12,449 = -
13,445 16,517 312 307
The Group as lessee leases office premises under operating leases AEBRBECEHELHBEASE T
arrangements. Leases for the office premises are negotiated for NE - WMAEMENFEHRLEHEAE—
one to five years term. None of the leases includes contingent ZRF c ZEHEW TN EHAEE ©
rental.
37. Immediate and Ultimate Controlling Parent 37. EBREAERE AT
Company

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate and
ultimate controlling parent company of the Group to be Shenzhen
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Neptunus Group
Co., Ltd. respectively, which are incorporated in the PRC. Shenzhen
Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. produces consolidated financial
statements for public use.

RE-B—=F+"A=+—H EFRA
AEBEBERARLRRIZERE AT D5
BRINTEEENTEREOHDAER AR LR
YmEERERNARAR  MEAAFN
NG NCTES R i) AVAD i%ﬂ\lfn‘iiiff%lﬁ'ﬁﬁ
MAERARRIEGRE KRB EARA
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38. Subsequent Events

ENTERING INTO A COOPERATION AGREEMENT (THE
"COOPERATION AGREEMENT")

On 8 January 2014, Jiangsu Neptunus, the subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the cooperation agreement with a non-related third
party (the “Partner”) in relation to the establishment of a joint venture
company (the “JV Company”). The development direction of the JV
Company includes, among others, utilizing the established preparation
technique of fluorescent quantum dots labeled biological probes using
metal cadmium sulfide and selenide as core, which is developed by the
Partner, to carry out research and development of in-vitro diagnostic
reagent and achieve industrialization.

On 26 January 2014, Jiangsu Neptunus established a wholly-owned
company by a cash contribution of RMB3,000,000 to carry out the
preparation work of the industrialization of in-vitro diagnostic reagent
(the "IVD Reagent”).

Upon the IVD Reagent developed by the wholly-owned company
meeting the conditions of industrialization, the wholly-owned company
will be transformed into the JV Company by increasing its registered
capital to RMB10,000,000, of which Jiangsu Neptunus will make
additional cash contribution of RMB2,100,000 and its accumulated
contribution will represent 51% equity interest in the JV Company,
while the Partner will hold 49% equity interest by a capital contribution
of RMB4,900,000 in the form of patents or proprietary technology in
respect of the abovementioned IVD Reagent which met the conditions
of industrialization.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

38. i8¢ =18
FiIeEw=E ([ &1EHED)

R-Z-—HE-ANR  TXRAHERAF
IEEBTEFEBEFE =7 (AER D #K
YRERAR(EERA] R A EHE -
BERBBRIMBHEETRRINBEE
ARARACBHEOGY - BLYHZ
B DL E T B A YIRS BRI ETT R I
ZETAB I - WEREE M -

R-ZEBE—NE—A=+/,x8 ' JI&HFE I
HEHE AR 3,000,0007T © KIZBEA
A ETERSBROGRLEY  WithA
%) & B T 2h A YIRS Y BE 1 2 B S
([Nl A ) EE AL RO EE T -

ERERATHAEMNEIINZCEHABFEEE
biEHE - BERRBEZEBEERR]
Tt &AL mE AR ®10,000,000
T ERIHRETEANRSEEAR
2,100,0007T * 2FFHEGEEERRIS1%HY
fe#E - AEFRILL EMAENFEEEL
{6 1 B BB SN2 i A BB AR B R s B B kAl
& B ARE 4,900,000 ' IHEERQ
7) 49% HIRRHE ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments and deposits for acquisition of land and property,
plant and equipments
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value
less cost to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset, which requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating costs.
Changes in these estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying amounts of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.
The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments, deposits for acquisition of land and
deposit for acquisition of property, plant and equipments as at the
end of the reporting period are approximately RMB184,790,000,
RMB67,159,000, RMB17,330,000 and RMB11,570,000
respectively.

ii)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recovered during the year. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.
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39. Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

iii)

iv)

v)

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful debts
based on an evaluation of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables, where applicable, at the end of each reporting period.
The estimates are based on the ageing of the trade and other
receivables balances and the historical write-off experience, net
of recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be required.
The carrying amount as at the end of the reporting period is
approximately RMB109,349,000.

Write-down of inventories

The Group determines the write-down for obsolescence of
inventories. Those estimates are made with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
the goods and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, a write-down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market conditions, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in the estimation.

Capitalised development expenditure

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. In the development phase of an internal
project, the Group has to exercise judgement to identify an
intangible asset and demonstrate that the asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. To demonstrate how an
intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,
the Group assesses the future economic benefits to be received
from the asset. If the asset will generate economic benefits only in
combination with other assets, the Group applies the concept of
cash-generating units.

RYIHBERBFEEYRMBRHBERLDE

Notes to the Financial Statements

BIH5 R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-F =F+- A=t ALFE

39. EES AT R E ()

a) N TEEEENETERR(E)
i)  FEW 5 TE e e

iv)

v)

REERPAERE - REBERBREK
R M H R SOR M A B
R BRRERERBE(HE
) - ARG HIREE N FORR L E
L JE WO R TR A R O AR i I R SR T SR AT
EMBRAWE SR E - HREAD
BN E IR - ATRE AR ER BRI
BEFE ZRPLEEANKREED
AR 109,349,000 °

B E

FEBESETREFTEOHOR - 1hF
BEtI2ZEFERE DT - REIARK
EmmHEERKEEE &R H
Erm e o RIRUER - WEENK
HEEXREEREGEFATREFE - A
AEEEMBFENEER - ERTR
AREHLED  EREREENER
AIREERAFT AR - MutfhatmE

b B 480 42 SL
Bt &8 o

B CAEH
MEMABEBEMELENMRAS  RE

RIATERTHREERRT AR
E - REERERE AT E T B E A
ERAHEERM ERIT - AREH
BREKZBERE  LHENEARE
ERRE  RBABENEEERKE
B AENERENATHKE BA
B ARNABSEA FHFTEX
He RABEBRERE  AEEA
Fhas Rl BB A HIE - AR
BEBEUREERREENES - 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 1% = B ot
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_T—=F+_A=+—HItEE
39. Accounting Estimates and Judgements 39. EEE AT R FIE ()
(Continued)
a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) a) MBENTRERZNEERR (&
vi) Impairment of intangible assets vi) BEIEEZEHE
The Group performs annual test on whether there has been RIBH R 1)) IR + A
impairment of intangible assets in accordance with the SESFHETEERASRMELETTA
accounting policy stated in note 1()(ii). The recoverable amounts Ao EWHMReEEENSEIRR
of cash-generating units are determined based on value in-use FREBEHEELERT - ZirHE A EH
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and CERAETEENRREREEMED
assumptions made by management on the future operation of the AEst RERR - BEAIEEE X - A K&
business, pre-tax discount rate, and other assumptions underlying HIBFAEBETEAEENSEEM
the value-in-use calculations. The carrying amount as at the end B - ERMEEFENEREEBEOAA
of reporting period is approximately RMB140,247,000. R ¥ 140,247,000 7T °
vii) Amortisation of intangible assets vii) EIEEE#E
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their EREERBEGEEEREGFAIE
estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives AERTREH - EE A LAFRY
involves management’s estimation. The Group reassesses the REBEMNMG - AEBEEGHEFRE
useful life of the intangible assets and if the expectation differs ENAFERAFR - MEGFEHE IR
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact the RIGETEH - BEERR e EZF
amortisation in the year and the estimate will be changed in the BEHTE - Mz BAET R R EARE A5 T
future period. EAEHl o
viii) Income taxes viii) Bz ﬁz
Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the ETMERBEBEIREETRIHR
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully KRG ERIBIELENARE - KEBEE
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are BTGRP EE EW AR R
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is BHEE AEEERZERSHOTE
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax BRIB VBT BIRTAE © AR R AR S AR
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not WFTEZ 8 - RAMRBKEE LA
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those deferred TR EmEOBERASELEHREEE - £
tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable RELIRETIBE ERRECHNE
that future taxable profit will be available against which the o e A B A YRR 8 R A AR 7S 4R 2 B
unused tax credits can be utilized, management’s assessment TewmR  BEEBHGTEEZ
is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are AR SR AR AT B 25 FE =R A e 1 2 LA SR 4
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will FEEFREEE  ASBEIABEINGE
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The carrying amount EMIBEE - RNmEHRR EEH
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at the end BHEEREEMBEBENREED
of the reporting period are approximately RMB1,491,000 and B4 B AR % 1,491,000 T & A R
RMB21,215,000 respectively. 21,215,000 7T °
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39. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

b)

(Continued)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and liabilities, the
Group makes assumptions for the effects of uncertain future events
on those assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. These
estimates involve assumptions about such items as cash flows and
discount rates used. The Group's estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and expectations of future events and are
reviewed periodically. In addition to assumptions and estimations of
future events, judgements are also made during the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR L

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=F1-A=t—ALFE

39. ERERHhE R E (&)

b)

Y E RS EYRMROERAE

A S IR R A0 B E R b

EEETHEMEENRENKRESERE X
SERTHENREEHAERZHHER
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ERhEEREAABANRSREXRR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

P

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-2-=Ft-A=tALFE

40. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the Year ended 31 December

2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
cycle?

Financial instruments?
Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and transition disclosures?

Investment entities'

Defined benefit plans: Employee
contribution?

Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities’

Novation of derivatives and continuation of
hedge accounting’

Levies'
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40. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the Year ended 31 December
2013 (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR L

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_T-—=F+_A=+—HULEE

40. B2 —_E—=F+-_A=+—
Bk FEC EMERERERD
&3] ~ ] B RRENEE
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements’ is set out below.

RESULTS

TURNOVER

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Profit/(Loss) from operations

Finance costs

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Income Tax

PROFIT/ALOSS) FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

EFEBERHE

EH

HAHA

Hi WA FE
HE RN X
TR

Hi &R

i/ (B1R)
BHER

BRBAnET] (BR)

Pt

AEZEH/(FR)

AT
RABHEEA
JEER R

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLHFE

TXHEIARBBER AV RFENEEREE
HEEHE - DREEAMEERMBRE -

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B-=f T -F ZTF —TF  ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETET
611,666 530,458 474,652 38,256 3,696
(360,504) (334,960) (309,811) (25,876) (2,719)
251,162 195,498 164,841 12,380 977
6,051 11,371 9,973 8,361 712
1,196 625 22,853 28,859 6,344
(101,640) (75,743) (63,772) (7,232) (1,157)
(59,039) (48,253) (56,460) (37,200) (25,166)
(46,478) (36,305) (20,853) (20,350) (7,523)
51,252 47,193 56,582 (15,182) (25,813)
(7.684) (6,590) (14,084) (15,330) (11,663)
43,568 40,603 42,498 (30,512) (37,476)
3,430 (4,525) (13,045) 131 -
46,998 36,078 29,453 (30,381) (37,476)
35,855 24,298 21,686 (30,104) (37,476)
11,143 11,780 7,767 (277) -
46,998 36,078 29,453 (30,381) (37,476)
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFEYHRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLEFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —E-—fF —T——fF —T-TF —TTNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT AREETTT ARBFT ARETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHEE
TOTAL ASSETS BB 914,109 870,736 761,317 985,700 343,426
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (353,505) (352,382) (275,041) (529,832) (310,075)
560,604 518,354 486,276 455,868 33,351
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Group Property
L RYES

PROPERTY IN PRC

Location Intended use
b3k A&
Kuiqgi Village, Industrial

Gushan Town,

Jin"an District

Fuzhou City

Fujian Province

The PRC

hEIEZE M T T
BRI EBIE Y

ERBEIR Y
Gross
Site area floor area
T A EEEE
(sq.m) (sq.m)
(FFK) (FFHK)
166,109.5 58,434.74
166,109.5 58,434.74
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